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PROCEEDI NGS
8:37 a.m

JUDGE BAKER  Good norning. | am Judge
Dor ot hea Baker.

We have a court reporter here today, and
anmong her instructions are not to go off the record
unless | direct her to do so. Also, she is to ensure
that all exhibits are properly nunbered and stanped.
So, when you hand her your exhibits, if you' d pl ease
allow her tine to do that.

If you offer exhibits into evidence, three
copies are required. However, it would be hel pful if
you had additional copies for the participants and for
ne.

The Governnment does not furnish copies of the
transcript. |If you wish a personal copy of the
transcripts, it is suggested you nmake purchase
arrangenents with the court reporter at the earliest
possi ble tine.

It is essential that each tinme you rise to
speak or make an objection, that you please state your
name and representation, if any. |If you forget to do
this, I shall find it necessary to interrupt you and
ask you to do so. This is in the interests of making
an accurate transcript.

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
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| shall be glad to answer any questions of
procedure at any tine.

This hearing is beginning at 8:30, and at
approximately 10 a.m, we will have a 15-m nute break,
and at approximately 12:15, we will have our |uncheon
break, and then another break of perhaps 15-m nutes
duration in the evening. |If we do not finish today, we
shall continue tonorrow, commencing at 8: 30.

Handl er to supply the fluid mlk needs of the
Central Order Marketing Area requested this hearing.
The principal issue to be addressed is the degree of
association mlk supply should nmaintain with the
Central Fluid M|k Market to benefit from participation
in the marketw de pool.

Proposal s to be consi dered incl ude maki ng
performance standards for participation in the pool
year-round for both supply plants and producer mlKk;
elimnating the possibility of the sane mlk sharing in
t he hi gher-valued return of nore than one marketw de
pool ; and increasing the rate of partial paynents to
dairy farners.

The hearing will also consider relaxing sone
requi renments for pooling the mlk of individua
producers.

Details of these proposals are set forth in

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
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full in the Notice of Hearing and Federal Register
whi ch was published October 23, 2001, Vol unme 66, Numnber
205, commenci ng at Page 53551. That docunent has been
mar ked for identification and is admtted into evidence
as Exhibit 1.
(The docunent referred to was
marked for identification as
Exhi bit Nunber 1 and was
received in evidence.)

JUDGE BAKER: Shoul d you desire to scrutinize
the proposal to greater length, it is suggested that
you obtain a copy of Exhibit 1, if you have not already
recei ved a copy of the Notice of Hearing.

This adm nistrative action is governed by the
provi sions of Sections 556 and 557 of Title 5 of the
United States Code, and therefore it's excluded from
the requi renents of Executive Order 12866.

The hearing is called pursuant to the
provi sions of the Agriculture Marketing Agreenent Act
of 1937, as anended, and the requirenents of 7 USC
Sections 601 through 674, and the applicable Rules of
Practice and Procedure governing the fornul ati on of
Mar keti ng Agreenents and Marketing Orders found under 7
CFR Part 900.

The purpose of the hearing is to receive

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
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evidence with respect to econom c and marketing
conditions which relate to the proposed anendnents;
nore specifically set forth in the Notice of Hearing,
and any appropriate nodifications thereof to the
tentati ve Marketing Agreenent and to the Order.

Evi dence also will be taken to determ ne
whet her energency marketing conditions exist that would
warrant om ssion of a recomended deci sion under the
Rul es of Practice and Procedure as set forth in 7 CFR
Section 912(d) wth respect to any of the proposed
amendnent s.

Actions under the Federal M1k Order Program
are subject to the Regulatory Flexibility Act as found
in 5 USC, comrencing at Section 601. This Act seeks to
ensure that within the statutory authority of a
program the regulatory and information requirenents
are tailored to the size and nature of snal
busi nesses.

For the purpose of the Act, a dairy farner is
a small business, if it has an annual gross revenue of
| ess than $750, 000, and a dairy products manufacturer
is a small business, if it has fewer than 500
enpl oyees. Mbdst parties subject to a MIk Order are
consi dered a small busi ness.

Accordingly, interested parties are invited

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
(301) 565- 0064
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to present evidence on the probable regulatory and

i nformati onal inpact of the hearing proposals on snal
busi nesses. Al so, parties may suggest nodifications to
t hese proposals for the purpose of tailoring their
applicability to small businesses.

| see that there are sone people comng in
the room and there aren't enough chairs in the back,
but we'll try to accommopdate themas well. | see they
have found sone chairs. Al right. Thank you.

The amendnents to the rule proposed herein
have been revi ewed under Executive Order 12988, Civil
Justice Reform They are not intended to have a
retroactive effect. |f adopted, the proposed
anendnents woul d not preenpt any state or |ocal |aws,
regul ations or policies, unless they present an
irreconcilable conflict with the rules.

The Federal Register Notice of Hearing, being
Exhibit 1, sets forth in detail provisions that nust be
foll owed before a party may file suit. Your attention
is directed to that part of the Federal Register,

Cct ober 23, 2001.

If you have any questions, | shall be glad to
answer them

The proposed anendnents whi ch we shal |
consi der have not received the approval of the

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
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Secretary of Agriculture. Unless there is sone good
reason to the contrary, we shall consider the proposals
in the Oder in which they are set forth in the Notice
of Heari ng.

The Proponents of the proposals will go
first, and after they have conpleted their
presentation, they are subject to cross exam nation and
guestioning. Opponents or those who wish to testify
otherwise will then be given the opportunity to do so.

This is a public rul emaki ng hearing, in which
the public can participate, and all interested parties
have a right to be heard with respect to matters
rel evant and material to this proceeding. That right
and opportunity to submt evidence will continue until
the hearing is closed.

All witnesses give their testinony upon oath
or affirmation, and after the direct testinony of a
W t ness, questioning and cross exam nation is

permtted. However, repetitious or extraneous

guestioning of a witness will be ruled out of order.
Al so, evidence which is immaterial, irrelevant or
unduly repetitious will be ruled out of order, if it is

not of the sort upon which responsible persons are
accustoned to rely.
I have not engaged in the adm nistrative

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
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11
actions leading to the proposals under consideration
nor do | participate in or do I have any part in
formul ati ng the recommended deci si ons or what may
foll ow hereafter, other than after the close of the
hearing, the parties have the opportunity to submt (1)
proposed corrections to the transcript, and (2) briefs
setting forth proposed findings of fact and concl usi ons
and a brief in support thereof.

Interested parties who wish to do so should
submt four copies to the Hearing Clerk, United States
Departnent of Agriculture, 1400 | ndependence Avenue,
Room 1081, South Buil di ng, Washington, D.C. 20250, at
a date to be announced prior to the close of the
heari ng.

Wth respect to notices, | will ask later on
that the Governnment supply the necessary notices that
supposedl y have been sent out in this case, and | shal
mar k t hem accordingly.

| shall now ask for appearances by the
parties, those who wish to participate, and to enter
their appearance on the record. | shall ask that they
do so now at this tinme. | shall start at this end of
the roomand go over to that end of the room

M. Cooper, | shall start with you. Wuld
you pl ease enter your appearance?

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
(301) 565- 0064
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MR. COOPER: Yes. M nane is Gregory Cooper.
I"'mwith the Ofice of the General Counsel, United
States Departnent of Agriculture, Washington, D.C.
20250.

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you, M. Cooper.

M. Cooper, do you have those Notices to the
Gover nors?

MR COCPER: Yes, Your Honor, | do.

JUDGE BAKER: Woul d you care to supply ne
with themright now, and I'll enter themin the record?

MR, COOPER. Ckay. Do you want nme to go one-
by- one?

JUDGE BAKER  Yes, that would be hel pful.

MR. COOPER Ckay. The first one is the
Notice to the Governors, and it's Notice of the Hearing
that's given to the Governors of the States of
Arkansas, California, Colorado, |daho, Illinois, |owa,
Kansas, M nnesota, M ssouri, Nebraska, New Mexi co,
Nort h Dakota, Cklahomm, South Dakota, Texas, Ut ah,
W sconsi n and Womn ng.

JUDGE BAKER: What is it dated, and by whonf

MR. COOPER: And it's dated the 24th of
Cct ober 2001 by Joyce MPherson.

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you.

MR. COOPER: And | have three copies.

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
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JUDGE BAKER: Very well. Thank you, M.
Cooper.
That document shall be marked for
identification and admtted into evidence as Exhibit 2.
(The docunent referred to was
mar ked for identification as
Exhi bit Nunber 2 and was
received in evidence.)
MR. COOPER: By the way, mght | inquire as
to the reporter having sufficient copies of Exhibit 17?
JUDGE BAKER At this point, no. Thank you,
M. Cooper.
(Pause)
MR. COOPER: Next, Your Honor, we have the
Notice that a press rel ease has been issued, and a copy
of the press release, the Notice states that the
attached press rel ease, sonebody didn't have the
staple, so it's two pages that aren't attached. The
second page is the press release itself.
It's signed by the Acting Director of the
Public Affairs Staff, dated Novenber 2nd, 2001, and
attached is the press release entitled "USDA Sets
Hearing to Anend the Central M Ik Marketing Order".
JUDGE BAKER: Thank you.
MR COOPER: | would ask this be marked as

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
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Exhi bit 3, Your Honor.

JUDGE BAKER  Exhibit 3. That shall be
identified and entered into evidence as Exhibit 3, M.
Cooper.

(The docunent referred to was
mar ked for identification as
Exhi bit Nunber 3 and was
received in evidence.)

MR. COOPER: Next, we have, Your Honor,
docunentation of Mailing of Notice to Hearings of the
Interested Parties, signed by Donald N chol son, the
Mar ket Adm nistrator of this Order, and that's dated
Cctober 17th, 2001. That's a one-page docunent.

JUDGE BAKER: Very well. That docunent is
identified and admtted into evidence as Exhibit 5.

MR. COOPER: Is it 4, Your Honor?

JUDGE BAKER 4. 4. You're correct, M.
Cooper. Thank you.

(The docunent referred to was
marked for identification as
Exhi bit Nunmber 4 and was
recei ved in evidence.)

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you, M. Cooper.

M. Cooper, are you the only one who's
entering an appearance at your table there?

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
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MR. COOPER: No, Your Honor.

M5. BRENNER M nane is Constance M
Brenner. 1'ma Regional Dairy Products Marketing
Specialist with Dairy Prograns, Agricultural Mrketing
Service, U S. Departnent of Agriculture, 14th and
I ndependence, Washington, D.C. 20250.

JUDGE BAKER  Thank you, Ms. Brenner.

M5. WARLICK: Carol Warlick, a Marketing
Speci alist at the Departnent of Agriculture,

Agricul tural Mrketing Services, Washington, D.C

20250.

JUDGE BAKER  Very well. Thank you, Ms.
War | i ck.

"1l start at the next table.

MR HOLLON: | amElvin Hollon, Dairy Farners
of Aneri ca.

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you.

MR, BESHORE: Marvin Beshore, Attorney,
representing Dairy Farners of Anerica, Inc., Prairie
Farns Dairy, Inc., Swiss Valley Farns, the Proponents
of Proposals 1 through 6, and al so under Proposal 7.

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you, M. Beshore.

MR, LEE. Gary Lee, Prairie Farns Dairy, Inc.

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you, M. Lee.

MR. DeFRAIN: Rex DeFrain, Nebraska. [|'ma

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
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dai ry producer.

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you, M. DeFrain.

MR. VAUGHN: Jerry Vaughn of Oca, Nebraska.
I'"malso a dairy producer.

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you. Thank you.

MR. VETNE: My nane is John Vetne, V-E-T-NE.
I"'man attorney with offices in Anesbury,
Massachusetts. |'mrepresenting Proponents and
Qpponent s, including NTI, Forenost and others who wl|
appear at various tines of the hearing.

JUDGE BAKER  Thank you, M. Vetne.

MR. KURTH My nanme is Curtis Kurth,
K-U-R-T-H, Forenost Farns.

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you, M. Kurth.

MR. HAHN: Janmes Hahn, H- A-H N, Land of
Lakes, Inc.

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you, M. Hahn.

MR GRAN. My nane is Gary G an, G R A-N,
Fam ly Dairies, USA

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you, M. Gan.

MR. CONOVER:  Carl Conover. 1'Il be a
wWitness in this hearing.

JUDGE BAKER: Very well. Thank you, M.
Conover.

MR. ENGLI SH. Charles English, Attorney,

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
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Washi ngton, D.C., representing Sweeza Foods and
Ander son Erickson Dairy Conpany with respect to
proposal s to this hearing.

JUDGE BAKER:  kay.

MR ENCGLISH: | have Wtnesses Carl Conover,
Warren Erickson and Ernie Yates.

JUDGE BAKER  Thank you, M. English.

MR. TONAK: Dennis Tonak, T-O N A-K, M dwest
Dai rynmen's Conpany, Rockford, Illinois.

JUDGE BAKER  Thank you, M. Tonak.

MR ERICKSON: Warren Erickson, Anderson
Eri ckson Dairy, Des Mdines, lowa. |'Il be a wtness.

JUDGE BAKER  Thank you, M. Erickson.

Thank you very nmuch for entering your
appear ances.

If there is anyone who has not entered an
appearance and who would |ike to do so, he nay do that
at any tinme during the proceeding.

| see that we may need sone additiona
chairs, and I'msure that can be arranged | ater on.

It is customary for the Governnent to go
first. M. Cooper, | shall ask you two things. One,
woul d you be ki nd enough to describe your function
here, and secondly, would you pl ease indicate whether
t he Governnent has any statistical or other data it

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
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wi shes to offer?

MR. COOPER: Yes. To the first question,
Your Honor, ny purpose here is to -- is not in favor of
any particul ar proposal or opposed to any particul ar
proposal. It's rather to help make a full record of
all the necessary information to help the Secretary
reach his decision in this matter and to provide such
| egal advice as the Secretary's representatives nay
request during the course of the hearing.

JUDGE BAKER  Very well. Thank you, M.
Cooper.

MR, COOPER. And secondly, yes, we do have
some statistical information we'd |ike to put in, and
we'd like to have M. Stukenberg fromthe Mrket
Adm nistrator's Ofice testify.

JUDGE BAKER: Very well. Thank you.

M. Vetne?

MR. VETNE: Your Honor, John Vetne.

Before the first witness testifies on
statistical data, four exhibits have been received, and
I"'mnot sure what's the best way of addressing that,
but we have -- nmaybe it's sinply a representation by
M. Cooper would be sufficient.

We have a press release, and it's sinply the
words of the press release, but it doesn't indicate to

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
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whomit was released. For exanple, you know, is there
a place in Washington, D.C., where it's posted, and the
fol ks in Washington get notice of it, or is it sent to
newspapers and the television/radio nedia regionally or
nationally, or is it a press release that lays on a
desk in Washi ngton that doesn't have the sane notice
effect as one that is sent to newspapers in |Iowa or
| daho or Tennessee?

So, we don't know what the effects of that
rel ease is. W do know what the words are, and then

secondly -- that's Exhibit 3. And secondly, on Exhibit

4, we have no disinterested parties. Again, | have the
same concern, whether that -- to whomdid that notice
go? | guess we have the words. | assune that it went

to handlers in the markets.

I"mnot sure, | don't know to what extent it
went to handl ers and producers under other markets or
even state markets who may be affected as a result of
changes in marketing practices or changes in policy
that nmay derive fromthis hearing.

So, | would request whoever is the best
W tness or person to explain for the record, to explain
to whom those -- that rel ease and those notices went
and perhaps to whomit did not go, which is nore
i mportant.

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
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JUDGE BAKER: Very well. Thank you, M.

Vet ne.

M. Cooper?

MR. COOPER: Wth regard to Exhibit 3, it
says on the Notice itself that's attached to the press
rel ease that the press rel ease was sent to "such
newspapers and television and radio stations in the
area subject to regulation or proposed to be regul ated
as reasonably will tend to bring the attention of
interested persons that USDA will hold a hearing".

Now, | don't know with any particularity
whi ch newspapers and tel evision and radio stations in
this area got this notice or didn't get this notice.
That was sonet hi ng done by the Acting Director of the
Public Affairs staff in Washington, and | really have
no idea, other than it does state that newspapers,
radio and television stations in this area, this
Mar keti ng Area.

JUDGE BAKER: Very well.

MR, COOPER. Now, with regard to Exhibit 4,
that's sonething sent out by the Market Adm nistrator's
Ofice, and | think the representative who's going to
put in the statistics will be able to tell us to whom
what interested persons it was sent.

JUDGE BAKER: Very well. Thank you.
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| believe you indicated, M. Cooper, that M.
Stukenberg is going to give testinony at this tinme, is
t hat not correct?
MR. COOPER: Yes, Your Honor. We'd like to
put his testinony on first, so we have the statistics
avai l able to all parties at the hearing to use in their

cross exam nation or their exam nati on of other

Wi t nesses.

JUDGE BAKER  Very well. Thank you.

Sir, would you step forward and be sworn,
pl ease?
Wher eupon,

DAVI D C. STUKENBERG
havi ng been first duly sworn, was called as a w tness
herein and was exam ned and testified as foll ows:
JUDGE BAKER: Wbul d you be seated, please.
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR COOPER

Q Coul d you pl ease state your nane?

A My nane is David C.  Stukenberg.

Q And by whom are you enpl oyed?

A By the M|k Market Admi nistrator here in
Kansas Cty.

Q I n what capacity?

A | am an Assistant Market Adm nistrator.
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(301) 565- 0064



© 00 N o g A~ w N P

N NN N NN P P R R R R R R R
g DN W N P O ©W 0O N o o M W N P O

22

Q kay. And have you brought with you today
certain exhibits?

A Yes, | have.

Q And you' ve brought three copies of those
exhi bits?

A Yes, | have.

Q And have you brought with you an exhibit
entitled "Selected Statistical |Informtion"?

A Yes, sir.

MR. COOPER:  Your Honor, |'d Iike to have

t hat exhibit marked as Exhibit 5.

JUDGE BAKER: It shall be so marked, M.

Cooper.
(The docunent referred to was
marked for identification as
Exhi bit Nunber 5.)
BY MR COOPER
Q I noticed this says "selected", M.

St ukenberg. Could you tell us, is the material herein
regul ar - publ i shed nmaterial fromthe Market
Adm ni strator's O fice?

A Most of the material contained in this
exhibit is regularly-published material, although there
was sone tables in the back that we thought would aid
i n maki ng a deci sion.
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Q Now, those tables that weren't regularly-
publ i shed material, is that frommaterial gathered by
the Market Administrator in the course of his duties?

A Yes, sir, it is.

Q And speci al docunents of the Market
Adm ni strator?

A Yes, sSir.

Q Ckay. 1'd ask you to go through Exhibit 5
page- by- page, expl ai ni ng what each of these tables or
charts are, and then at the end indicate which ones
weren't published material.

A Yes, sir. Okay. Table Nunber 1 is the Price
Summary, which is normally published on our
statistical. The first five colums are Prices Paid or
MnimumPrices to be paid to producers. The next four
columms are the Class Prices Adjusted to a 3.5 Percent
Butterfat Basis, and it's Mninmum Prices that handlers
are required to pay, and the last colum is the
Statistical UniformPrice which is nerely the first
colum, which is the Producer Price Differential, added
to the Class 3 Price to have serve as a benchmark on a
uni form pri ce.

Tabl e Nunber 2 is Marketing Data, indicating
the nunber of farns that were pooled on the market, the
utilization of the mlk by class, and then the next
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four colums were the Average Conponent Levels of the
mlk that is marketed or, excuse ne, the three col ums
are the Conponent Levels of the mlk marketed with the
| ast colum being -- or the Somatic Cell Count being
t he average for the market as far as the nunber of
somatic cells. Somatic cells are not a conponent, and
the last colum is the Average Marketings Perforned.

Tabl e Nunber 3 indicates the Receipts by the
Pool ed Handl ers, the first colum being the Producer
M Ik, the second columm being O her Source and O her
Federal Order M1l k. The next two col ums, Begi nning
I nventory and Overages, which is part of doing
busi ness. The last colum then indicates the Total
Recei pts by the Pool ed Handl ers.

Tabl e Nunber 4 indicates the Cass 1
Utilization. The top portion of Table 4 is a listing
of the Individual Products that were manufactured or
sold. The bottom portion, we get into the Total Route
Di sposition, which is a carryover fromthe top page,
and the Cass 1 to Non-Pooled Plants consists of bul k
and package to other Federal Order Plants and Plants
Not Regul ated under any Federal Order, and then we have
the I nventory Shrinkage and a G oss O ass 1.

Fromthe G oss Class 1, we subtract the O her
Source and O her Federal Order Receipts that were
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allocated to Cass 1, and the Beginning Inventory and
Overage, and we end up with the resulting Total
Producer M1k Utilized as O ass 1.

JUDGE BAKER: Excuse nme, M. Stukenberg.
What is included in "Excess Shrinkage"?

THE W TNESS: Excess Shrinkage. Most
handl ers are all owed, especially of distributing pooled
plants, is allowed two percent of the skim and
butterfat as part of doing business. Anything in
excess of that two percent at a bottling plant, in this
case, would be allocated to Cass 1 and be entitled to
excess shri nkage.

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you.

THE W TNESS: You're wel cone.

Tabl e Nunber 5 is the Class 2 Utilization.
Listed are the products, the fluid creans, dips and
sour cream yogurts, cottage cheese, frozen desserts,
and then Oher Cass 2, that is a smaller nunber
primarily fromthe standpoint that there are certain
Class 2 products that are not listed here, and they're
a small anmount, and it would normally be restricted
nunbers. So, it's just listed as Other O ass 2.

Then we have the Cass 2 to Non-Pool ed
Pl ants, which again includes O her Federal Orders, and
Shrinkage that is allocated to Cass 2, and then the
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Goss Cass 2, and then the bottom part of Table 5, we
do the same thing again as in Class 1. W have the
G oss, and fromthat, we subtract the O her Source,
whi ch includes O her Federal Order, and then the
Begi nning I nventory and Overage and end up with the
Total Producer MIlk Uilized in Cass 2.

Table 6 is a CQlass 3 Uilization. This is
products that are -- the first colum is Products Used
in Class 3 or the mlk that is used to manufacture
Class 3 Products, | should state. The amount of mlKk
that is ending up in Dunp or Animal Feed, Cass 3 to
Non- Pool ed Pl ants, again including O her Federal Order
Pl ants, and Shrinkage and the Gross, and fromthe
Gross, we subtract the Ot her Source and Begi nni ng
I nventory and Overage, and end up with a C ass 3
Producer M K.

I mght point out, too, that on the Approved
Dunps and Ani mal Feed for the Year 2001, down at the
bottom there, for July, August and Septenber, you
notice zeros. That is due to pricing where mlk that
is in these and in Shrinkage, also, ends up in the
Lowest Class Price, and C ass 4 happened to be the
Lowest Class Price. So, when we nove to Table 7, you
W ll notice a big increase in those nunbers down in
Tabl e 7.
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Table 7 is the Class 4 Uilization. The
first colum is the MIk UWilized in Cass 4 Products,
and then the Dunps and Ani mal Feed, Class 4 to Non-
Pool ed Pl ants, Inventory Shrinkage, Gross O ass 4
Utilization. Subtract fromthat the Cther Source, the
I nventory and Overage, and you'll end up with the O ass
4 Producer MIk Uilization.

Tabl e Nunber 8 lists the Pool ed Handl ers that
were included in each of the nonths of the Year 2000,
and flipping to the next page are 2001. This is a
continuation of Table 8.

First listed as the Distributing Plants, the
city in which these plants are | ocated, and the
Applicable Cass 1 Location Adjustnent. The second
section is the Supply Plants that supply or qualify to
supply the distributing pool plants, and the |ast
section are the Cooperative Acting as Handler, also
known as 9(c). The second page on that for 2001 |ists
the sanme thing through the nonth of Septenber.

Flipping to Table 9, listed in Table 9 are
for the year -- for the nonth Decenber 2000. Listed
here are the plants that have actually received
transferred or diverted mlk from pool ed plants or
cooperative acting as handl er.

Some of the plants listed in here are
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bottling plants. In other words, they are Cass 1
Manuf acturers but are not pooled or they manufacture
products other than Class 1. These are broken down by
state.

The Location Adjustnment on the far right-hand
colum is also listed, and going through these, | think
t here's seven pages, and then on Table 10, we did the
same listing for July 2001.

Also, | forgot to point out, too, on Table 9,
as on Table 10, where it says, "Unregul ated
Manuf acturing Plants", we have a nunber after that in
parenthesis. For the year -- for Decenber 2000, it's
listed as a 163. That is the nunber of plants that are
listed on Table 9. On Table 10, we have a 140 pl ants.

Continuing on then to Table 11, we have the
Mar ketings by State, |listing the nunber of farns that
wer e pool ed on the market and the anpbunt of mlk
marketed. This is broken down for each of the nonths
listing a Total for the Year 2000. D rectly underneath
that is the Nine-Month Total or Average, and then the
Percent, that is, of the Total for the N ne Mnths.

The reason we used nine nonths was to give it
a conparison between the Year 2000 and the Year 2001
since we only have nine nonths of data for 2001.

At the end of Table 11, we have the Tot al
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Federal Order Summary.

Table 12 actually consists -- starting off
with a map of the Ml k Shed for the Year -- for
Sept enber 2000. The darker colors indicate a nore
concentrated anount of m |k production. The Tot al
Mar keti ngs for Septenber 2000, you will note at about
1.3 billion pounds. O that, fromcounties |ocated in
the Marketing Area, 730 mllion pounds were pool ed, and
fromcounties outside the Marketing Area, and the
Mar keting Area, by the way, is defined by the dark |ine
on each of the respective maps, and for Septenber 2000,
Qut -of -Area Counties marketed a total of 601 mllion
pounds.

For Septenber 2001, which is the nbst current
data we have avail able, the Total Marketings were 1.4
billion pounds. In-Area Counties marketed 751 mllion
pounds, Qut-of-Area Counties marketed 657 mllion
pounds on to the Order.

Continuing on on Table 11 is a breakdown by

st at e.

MR. COOPER  Excuse ne. Do you nean Tabl e
127

THE W TNESS: Continuation of Table 12. [|I'm
sorry.

For instance, if we were to look at the third

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
(301) 565- 0064



© 00 N o g A~ w N P

N NN N NN P P R R R R R Rp R
g N W N P O ©W 0O N o O M W N P O

30
state down, Col orado, there were 23 counties in
Sept enber of 2000 that had marketings fromcounties in
the Marketing Area in the state of Col orado, and four
counties were | ocated outside of the Marketing Area but
still were pooled fromthe state of Col orado, and this
continues on for each of the states and into Septenber
2001. Listed on the far right colum is the Percent
Change.

Moving on to Table 13, we have the Individua
Mar keti ngs by County, the Nunmber of Producers, the
Pounds of M|k Marketed, the Percent of the Total for
the Market, and then the Average Marketings Per Farm
for each of the states and counties |isted, and that
continues on for 11 pages, and then we list the sane
thing for Septenber 2001, which is Table 14 for
Sept enber 2001.

Table 15. Now, this data is not regularly
prepared or regularly released by our office, but in an
effort to docunment some of the information far the
proposals as |listed, we prepared Table 15 and 16 for
thi s hearing.

Tabl e 15, the first colum shows the Tot al
Pounds a Producer of M|k Marketed. The second col umm
under the heading "M Ik Physically Received at
Distributing Plants from Producers”, that includes the
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9(c) or Cooperative Acting as Handler M|k Received at
Pooled Distributing Plants.

The third colum over is the Amount of MIKk
Received at Distributing Plants from Pool ed Supply
Plants. The next colum is the Addition of the
Producers and the Supply Plant M|l k. The next two
colums are the Percents. They are of the Total
Producer and Supply Plant MIk

The last colum is taking the fourth colum
over, dividing it by the first. |In other words, the
Percent Producer and Supply Plant M1k Received at
Distributing Plants are of the Total Producer MI Kk
Pool ed.

Table 16 relates strictly to Supply Plants.
The first four colums are the Recei pts at the Supply
Plants. The first colum is fromthe Producers. The
second col umm from Pool ed Supply Plants which include
Supply Plants and Distributing Plants shipping to a
supply plant. The third columm is the O her Federa
Order Receipts, and the fourth colum is the Non-G ade
A and Non- Pool ed Receipts at Supply Pl ants.

Now, Non-Grade A and Non-Pool ed i ncl udes
manuf acturing grade m |k producers, plus mlk received
fromunregul ated supply plants.

The next section is entitled "Dispositions".
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So, of the mlk received from-- at the supply plants,
t he pool ed plants, they shipped out two pool ed plants
the anount of mlk indicated in the first col um under
Di spositions, and the next columm under Disposition is
t he Amount Shipped to O her Federal Order Plants, and
then the last colum is the Amount of MIk to Non-
Pool ed Pl ants.

The final colum, entitled "Percent Pool ed
Plants and O her Federal Order Dispositions” are of the
Total Producer Receipts, is sinply adding the first two
col ums under Dispositions and dividing by the Total
Producer M|k Received at Supply Pl ants.

Tabl e 16-A, and this table was requested by
M . Beshore as an expansion of Table 16, under the
O her Federal Order Dispositions, and it lists by Oder
the anount of mlk shipped to each of these -- each of
t he ot her Federal Order Plants.

And that concl udes the explanation of the
information contained in this particular exhibit.

JUDGE BAKER: Al right. "Il ask if there
are any questions on this exhibit. Does anyone have
any questions for M. Stukenberg with respect to what
has been marked as Exhibit 5? Yes?

MR, ENGLI SH.  Your Honor, Charles English.

| believe there are other exhibits that were
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requested by the Industry, and I'mwondering if it
m ght make nore sense to put those in first, because |
think there may be questions that cross-reference the
various exhibits.
MR. COOPER: That's what | was going to
suggest, Your Honor.
JUDGE BAKER  Very well. You know nore than
I do who requested it. Thank you, M. English. Very
wel | .
MR. COOPER:  Yes.
BY MR COOPER
Q M. Stukenberg, have you brought with you
t oday another exhibit, entitled "Information Requested
by Charles M English, Jr."?
A Yes, sir, | have.
MR. COOPER: And 1'd |like to have that marked
as Exhibit 6, Your Honor.
JUDGE BAKER: It shall be so marked, M.
Cooper.
(The docunent referred to was
marked for identification as
Exhi bit Nunber 6.)
BY MR COOPER
Q And was this exhibit also prepared fromthe
official records of the MIk Market Adm nistrator's
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Ofice?

A Yes, sir, it is.

Q And can you tell us what this exhibit is?

A This exhibit consists of a Request by M.
English I ess than two weeks before the hearing. This
was received by fax and is indicated by the first page
in the exhibit. It is listed here, each of the
requests that he had, and after his signature, he
followed it up with a Table of Contents which is the
Tabl e of Contents fromthe hearing recently held in
Wadsworth, Onhio, in regards to Federal Order Nunber 33,
and he requested that we prepare sonething al ong the
line of this particular exhibit fromthe O der 33
heari ng.

After that, consists of each of the questions
that he -- or points that he requested in his letter
requesting the informati on, and each of the bullets or
stars after the question indicate a reference either to
our hearing-prepared Exhibit Nunber 5 or other tables
contained in this particular exhibit.

Most of it are references, except | m ght
want to draw attention to Nunber 4, where it was a two-
part request. The first part of it consists of
reference to Tabl es Nunber 13 and 14, which are the
Mar keti ngs by State and County, and then the next
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bull et after that, he requested the Producer M1k
Produced in California. | think he nmeant pooled from
the state of California, and I wanted to provide the
Aver age Federal Order Class 1 Location Value for the
Quantity of that mlKk.

And as indicated by that particular bullet,
the California Producer MIlk on the Order from March
t hrough Septenber 2001 was priced at an average
| ocation val ue of $1.62.67 cents per hundredwei ght, and
the range for that anmount during the period that that
California mlk was pooled was from $1. 6146 in March of
2001 to $1.6317 in July 2001.

Moving on, then, the rest of it is pretty
much straightforward. Exhibit or Item Nunber 7 is a
Restricted Nunmber we were not able to provide to him

Nunber 9, the point that he made there, |I'm
not exactly sure what he's getting at here, but we
interpreted it strictly as |isted here. He requested
how we woul d interpret or how we woul d provide or how
woul d we adm ni ster Proposal Nunber 5, and the answer
is fairly frank, maybe too sinplistic, | don't know,
but we'll find out, I"msure, but it states, "During
the nonth of August through Novenber, the Producer
Recei pts delivered to a handler described in 7(a), (b)
or (c¢) would be divided by .25 and that anmount woul d
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equal the producer mlk that may be pool ed by that
handl er”, and then, simlarly, using .20, we would use
t he cal cul ations for the nonths of Decenber through
July.

Movi ng on, then, to English Nunber 2, he
requested in his Question Nunber 2, a list of the -- a
list of all the pooled handlers, their |ocation
adj ustmrent, and what provisions of the Order were used
to qualify each of these handlers. That is the colum
on the far right, and it's referenced as 1032.7(a) and
so forth.

The sane is listed for Supply Plants. The
asterisks would indicate that a supply plant is | ocated
outside of the Marketing Area, and this is all
handl ers, as near as we could cal cul ate and shoul d
relate back to Table 8 for the nonths January 2000
t hrough the present.

Tabl e Nunber 5 or English Nunmber 5, as
referenced here, relates to his Question Nunmber 5. The
first colum has to do with the anount of supply plant
mlk, both in and outside of the Marketing Area.

The first colum is the Supply Plant or the
Producer M|k Received at Supply Plants. The second
colum is the Amount of MIk Diverted to Non-Pool ed
Pl ants, which again includes O her Federal Oder, and
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if you subtract the two, you have the anpunt that is
physically received at the supply plant, and this is
the sane format as set up for the supply plants in the
Mar keting Area and outside of the Marketing Area.

Conti nuation of Table Nunber 5 on the next
page is the sane information on the first three col ums
as contained on the top section, and the percents are
provi ded then on the inside and outside Marketing Area
supply plants as they relate to the first columm or the
first three col ums.

Engl i sh Nunber 6 consists of a map, and this
is in regards to his question of plants |ocated nore
than 500 mles fromthe nearest distributing pooled
plant. In doing so, as you can see, the only plants
listed in our Tabl e Nunber 9 and 10 would be located in
the states of California, Oegon, Washington -- well,
actually we don't have any states or plants located in
Oregon, Washington that are receiving mlk fromthe
Central Order, but -- or pooling fromthe Centra
Order, but in California and Montana are the only two
states listed here or shown here that would qualify as
t hese 500-m | e radius.

And English Nunber 10 was a last-m nute
request, and it consists -- it consists of Uniform
Prices for the Periods 1998 through Present, and in
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sinmpl e average, then it was cal cul ated for each of
t hese years for these selected cities, and these
sel ected cities were designated by M. English, and
this was requested via tel ephone, by the way.
That concl udes ny expl anati on of Exhi bit
Nunber 6.

Q Returning to M. English's Question Nunber 9,
if you would, on Page -- | guess it's the fourth piece
of paper in this exhibit, including the cover.

A Ckay.

Q It's the last itemon that page.

A Yes, sir.

Q When you have that citation there, it says,
"1032.7(a), (b) and (c)". Is (c) correct or should
that be (e)?

A Vll, ny copy says (e).

JUDGE BAKER: So does m ne.

MR. COOPER  Sone of themsay (c).

THE W TNESS: Sone of themsay (c)?

BY MR COOPER

I"msorry. You said (c) in your testinony.
Ch, okay. |'msorry.

It should be (e), is that correct?

Shoul d be (e).

O » O » O

kay. Did you also bring with you anot her
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docunent today, entitled "Informati on Requested by

El vin Holl on"?

A Yes, sir, | have.
Q Do you have three copies of that?
A Yes, sir.
MR COOPER: 1'd like to have that marked as
Exhibit 7.

JUDGE BAKER So mar ked, M. Cooper.
(The docunent referred to was
marked for identification as
Exhi bi t Number 7.)

BY MR COOPER

Q Was this prepared fromofficial records of
the M1k Market Adm nistrator's Ofice?

A Yes, sir, it is.

Q Coul d you go through this docunent and
explain what it was?

A Sure. The first page was the Request of Data
fromM. Hollon, and again sone of it was statistica
data that we were going to put into the record anyhow.

Poi nt Nunmber 2 is the one that I'll address
primarily with the data that follows. The first page
of DFA Nunber 2, as is titled up in the right-hand --
upper right-hand corner, is a map, and it conpares
Decenber 1998 wi th Decenber 2000, and what's |isted
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here are seven states, going around the horn, that we
provi ded data for.

Certain states, you know, he kind of wanted,
as | recall fromreading the question, the origin or
mlk that did not originate fromcounties that were
| ocated in the Marketing Area of the Predecessor O der
32 or Federal Orders -- let nme start over again.

Mar keti ng Area of Predecessor Orders to
Federal Order 32 for those that were not -- well, and
he would Iike this in both the data and -- and a map, a
tabl e and a map.

So, | ooking at the nap, the seven states had
a total listing or total marketings then of 492 mllion
pounds, and from those seven states, |let ne nmake sure |
get this right, -- I'"'msorry. The seven -- of the dark
line on the map is the Marketing Area. |Included in
that Marketing Area of the seven states, there were 492
mllion pounds.

The other states outside that dark |ine, also
seven states, had 262 mllion pounds, or a seven-state
total then of 754 mllion pounds pooled on the Oder.
Conparing this then to Decenber 2000, the seven states
inside the dark line Marketing Area had 569 mllion
pounds. The others outside the Marketing Area had 748
mllion pounds, for a conbined total then of
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1, 318, 000, 000 pounds.

The table that follows is a breakdown by each
of the seven states. For instance, for the state of
Wsconsin -- we, also in this table, went back to
Decenber 1966 -- 1996, and there are two counties in
the state of Wsconsin which are included in Oder 32,
and then in 1996, there were 17 other counties that had
mar ketings in -- on each of the Predecessor, as he
calls it, Counties or Predecessor Orders in the
Mar keti ng Area.

In other words, if you | ook down at the

bottom vyou'll see what the Predecessor Orders were.
These were Orders 32, which was a Southern Illinois
Order, Order 50, Central Illinois, 64, Kansas City, 65

was the Nebraska/Western |owa, 76, Eastern South
Dakota, 79, lowa, 134 was \Western Col orado, and 137,
East ern Col or ado.

So, like | said, listed then are Decenbers
1996, '98 and the Year 2000, with the final colum on
the right being the Percent Change from Decenber 2000
conpared to Decenber 1998.

Following that is a listing of each of the
counties that had marketings during any of these three
Decenbers listed. Just the Total Pounds of Mk
Mar ket ed, and that concludes the information contained
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on Table -- Exhibit 7.

Q Were Proposed Exhibits 5, 6 and 7 prepared by
you or under your supervision?

A Yes, sir, they were.

Q Are they being offered in support of any
particul ar proposal by you or for informationa
pur poses only?

A These were prepared for informational
pur poses only.

Q Before | offer you for cross exam nation, M.
Vetne raised the point alittle earlier about the
Notice to Interested Persons, which | believe has been
received as Exhibit 4 in here and which was sent out by
the Market Adm nistrator's Ofice.

Are you famliar to who the interested
persons that are notified about the hearing are?

A Yes, sir.

Q Coul d you expl ai n?

A W have -- naintain a mailing |list that
consists of -- well, quite a few nanes, addresses and
so forth, and this particular Notice included a Notice
of Hearing as contained -- the sane | anguage as
contained in the Federal Register and also the news
release, and this is a list that is nmaintained by us
from peopl e requesting overti e.
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This goes back to the Predecessor -- each of
t he Predecessor Orders listed here, where the
respective market adm nistrators at that tinme, before
t he Federal Order Reform consolidated -- this is a
consolidated list of all known interested parties.

This list is updated regularly. Anybody requesting it
is made -- requesting either market statistics, the
news rel ease, whatever they want, we gladly provide
that to them and as | recall, this was sent out to
approxi mately 630 interested parties.

Q Ckay. Do you notify all the handl ers?

A The handl ers are -- the handlers, we
especially make sure they are on the list, and then
they for the nost part are included in the Interested
Parties List. |If not, we nmake sure that they receive a
copy of it.

MR, COOPER Ckay. | have no further
guestions, and |I'd offer M. Stukenberg over for cross
exam nation before seeking 5 through 7 be received.

JUDGE BAKER: Very well. Thank you, M.
Cooper.

Are there any questions or cross exam nation?

Yes, M. Beshore.
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CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BESHCRE:

Q M. Stukenberg, on -- | want to | ook at what
you' ve identified as DFA Nunmber 2, part of Exhibit 7,
first.

The footnote to this exhibit identifies O der
32, 50, 64, 65, 76, 79, 134 and 137 as Predecessor
Orders to Existing Order 32, is that correct?

A That's correct. There was al so portions of
Order 106, the Sout hwest Plains Marketing Area.

Q Ckay. Now, so, Order 32, as we know it,
since January 1, 2000, regulates -- tell nme if thisis
correct -- regulates all of the Class 1 sales, fluid
m |l k handlers, distributing plants that were previously
regul at ed under those Orders?

A Under the Orders listed here with portions of
t he Sout hwest Pl ains Order 106.

Q And are there any additional Cass 1 plants
whi ch are regul ated now that were not regul ated under

t hese Predecessor Orders?

A No, sir.
Q In fact, Federal Order Reformwas -- was
drawn so as not to include other -- Cass 1 handlers

who were not regul ated previously --
A That's correct.
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Q -- in the Federal Order Reformregul ation?

A That's correct.

kay. So, the universe of Class 1 sales,
Class 1 plants that are presently part of the Order and
served by mlk pooled on the Order, is the sane as it
was pre-reformw th those Orders?

A For the nost part. There were a few handlers
who becane exenpt because of the quality -- the
quantity of the mlk that was required, and these were
small to begin wth.

Q Very small handl ers?

A Yes, sir.

Q So, you've actually got a fewless -- a few

| ess handl ers because of the small handl ers, and |

assune - -

A That's correct.

Q -- there's been sone consolidation probably
over the --

A Vell, like any other industry, yes, there has

been. Yes, sir.

Q Ckay. And would it be fair then to concl ude,
and | think sone of your other data basically shows it,
that, you know, the Cass 1 needs of this market have
remai ned essentially the sane as they have been
previ ously?
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A I would think that's true

Q Okay. Now, in Decenber 1996, your Exhibit 7,
DFA Number 2, shows that the needs of these Predecessor
Orders were being supplied by producers, as you' ve
i ndicated, in these seven states, both within -- inside
and outside the designated areas, correct?

A That's true. There probably was sone in the
states not outlined in the map here, but that went to
some of the distributing pooled plants, but for the
nmost part, this was prepared to indicate just for the
seven states, the shift in producer mlk pooled on the
O der.

Q And in Decenber '98, basically the sanme --
roughly the sanme volune of mlk in the sane areas were
supplying this -- the market at that tinme?

A That's correct.

Q Now, you were involved in the adm nistration
of sonme of those Orders at the tinme?

A Yes, sir.

Q To your know edge, were the fluid needs of
t hose markets being served by the -- by the producers
serving the markets in 1996 and 1998 and 19997

A Yes, sir.

Q Now, let's -- let's go to Decenber 2000.
Looking at the first state at the top of DFA Exhibit 2,
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A Hm hmm

Q -- the change from Decenber 1998 to Decenber
2000 in the state of Wsconsin is that rather than
having the supply comng from 14 counties in Wsconsin
outside the counties that are part of the Marketing
Area, you had mlk pooled from-- from®66 counties in
the state of Wsconsin, is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q And rather than 38 mllion, alnost 39 mllion
pounds of mlk in Decenber '98, you had 395 mllion
pounds in Decenber 2000, correct?

A Correct, correct.

Q Do you know whet her any of that additiona
360 mllion pounds of mlk was needed to serve the
C ass 1 needs of the 32 Order?

MR. VETNE: QObjection.

JUDGE BAKER: On what basis, M. Vetne?

MR. VETNE: The word "need" inplies an
opinion fromthis wtness who is not a distributing
pl ant operator about the requirenents of persons who
are distributing plant operators, and he's not
qualified to testify as to what's in the mnd of people
operating plants that are not his plants.

JUDGE BAKER: Well, the objection has been
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noted. It's overruled, and you may exam ne the w tness
al ong those lines as soon as M. Beshore is through,

M. Vet ne.

M. Beshore?

BY MR BESHORE

Q Do you recall the question, M. Stukenberg?

A I think so, but what the Cl ass 1 needs not
really increasing, and if the mlk is to supply or to
be utilized in Cass 1, there is, like you had stated
before, not really a change in the total Cass 1 needs
for the distributing pool plants.

Q Okay. Now, let nme -- | want to explore just
alittle bit what -- what has been occurring with those
addi tional volumes of mlk that have cone on to the
O der.

If you look at Exhibit 5 would it be -- and
probably Table 2. Is it correct to note that the
change in utilization under the Order in January 2000
t hrough the nonths later in 2000 and 2001, that the
addi tional volunes of mlk pooled on the Order have
primarily been used in O ass 3?

A If you look at strictly the percentages, yes.
If you flip back to the other tables, the pounds of
m |k would indicate the sane.

Q Okay. Now, when Class 3 mlk is brought on
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to the Order, is it correct to say that the val ue that
that brings to the Order is whatever the Cass 3 val ue
is for the mlk?

A M ni rum val ues, right.

Q And that's what you pool ed, the m ni num
val ues?

A Yes, sir.

Q Ckay. Now, assune that C ass 3 production is
in the state of, you know, |[daho. Wuld that m |k be

on the Order?

A A small anmobunt. Yes, sir.
Q Ckay. Well, let's just talk about I|daho
t hen. Does it tell -- tell us in Exhibit 5, one of

t hese tables, how nmuch in the way of pool ed draw the
mlk in ldaho would -- would draw out of the pool?

A No, it does not.

Q Wul dn't the location differential applicable
ina plant in lowa be sonething of a proxy for that
nunber ?

A It would be close, yes.

Q And for I|daho, what -- that nunber shows up
on what exhibit?

A Tabl e 11.

Q Tabl e 11

A The first page of Table 11.
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Q Al right. And what's the -- what's the

| ocation differential in |daho?

A Hm Well, as you know, it's broken down by
counties. So, | don't know if we have a plant |ocated
in ldaho or not. If not, I'll have to refer or defer
to the Order.

Q | thought it was -- maybe |I'm wong. |

t hought this | ocation was shown on --

A Ch, okay.

Q The Location Val ues were shown on one of
these tables. Mybe it's Exhibit 10.

A Vll, that's what | was | ooking at, but

apparently none of the plants in Idaho received --

Q Ckay.
A -- any -- any mlKk.
Q Well, let's look at California then. The

calculation that you made for M. English showed the
average value of the mlk in the state of California
for the tinme period that he inquired about, is that
correct? The average |ocation differential?

A That's correct.

Q So, it was what? A dollar?

A A $1. 60 sonet hing.

Q $1. 60 sonething. So, assuming that the mlk
in California that went to Leprino Foods was C ass 3
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made into cheese --

A Hm hmm

Q -- out there and contributed to the Cass 3
value of the Order. The hundredwei ght of that m |k was
entitled to a differential dollar setting for Leprino.
I"m | ooking at Page 1.

A Right. That's correct.

Q And -- and all the mlk in California had an
average of a $1.62 or 3?

A $1. 63, rounded, yes.

Q Ckay. How about mlk in Wsconsin, outside
the -- outside the Marketing Area? Wuld that be in
the $1.70-1.75 range, nost of that milk, according to
the --

A Ri ght. According to Table 10, Pages 5 and 6,
yes. It appears to be sonmewhere -- 5, 6 and 7. It
appears to be in that area, yes.

Q Now, | want to explore with you just a little
bit the tables where you have -- which are Tables 15
and 16 in Exhibit 5 where -- and one -- one of the
tables in -- in Exhibit 6, which details to a degree
supply plant mlk novenents.

First of all, Table 16 of Exhibit 5 shows
that mlk that's pooled at supply plants, if |
understand the table correctly, has been between --
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it's been averagi ng around 200 mllion pounds a nonth,
roughl y?

A Roughl y, yes.

Q Wth |l ow nonths a 170 and hi gh nont hs over,
you know, what, up to 251 million in Septenber of 20007?

A Yes, sSir.

Q Ckay. Now, that -- we've already noted that
there's nmuch nore mlk than that outside the Market
Area that has to be added to the pool since January 1,
2000, correct?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. So, can you explainto ne, if mlk in,
you know, let's say, Northern Wsconsin, North and
Central Wsconsin, is not pooled in the supply plant
because nost of it's not, and let's assune it's not
delivered to a distributing plant in St. Louis or
anywhere else in Order 32, because it's nostly made
into cheese, as the utilization indicates, how would
that m |k be pooled on the Order?

A It would be pool ed by the cooperatives acting
as handler on that mlKk.

Q Ckay. And is that what we usually refer to
as 9(c)?

A That's correct.

Q kay. Now, what -- the present Order
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regulation, is it correct to say, allows 9(c) mlk to
be pool ed under the -- on what -- what -- how nuch 9(c)
mlk has to be delivered to the market or cooperative
to be pooled mlk if it's 9(c) mlk?

A Vell, first off, it has to be received at a
pool ed plant, and after --

Q Each producer's?

A Each producer's or each -- one day's delivery
has to be received at a pooled plant, and then after
that, it varies, depending on the cooperative
oper ati ons.

Q What's the m ninmum -- on that cooperative's
9(c) report, what's the m ni mrum vol une, the m ni nmum
proportion, if -- if there is on -- mninmm proportion
that nust -- of -- of mlk in that 9(c) report nust be

delivered to a fluid mlk distributing plant in Oder

327

A There is none.

Q None?

A Ri ght .

Q Ckay. So, a cooperative could poo
theoretically a hundred mllion pounds of mlk on a

9(c) report in Order 32 today w thout maneuvering any
of that mlk to a pooled distributing plant?
A That's correct.
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Q Does it have to deliver -- deliver sone
portion of that mlk to a pooled plant, including
pool ed supply plants?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And what -- what proportion is that?

A Hmm

Q Does it vary by nonth?

A It varies by nonth, right. Wuat, 30 -- 35
percent? 35 percent in the nonths of Septenber through
Novenber and January, and 25 percent in February
t hrough April and Decenber.

Q Is -- is there any requirenent in the O der
that -- that those deliveries to -- strike that. Let
me back up

So, a portion of the mlk, the stipulated
portion, has to be delivered to pool ed supply plants.
How much m Ik do the pool ed supply plants have to
deliver to fluid distributing plants under O der 32?
Let's -- let's take the nonth -- well, the nonth of
June 2001.

A In June, 25 percent has to be delivered to
the distributing pool ed plants.

Q From pool ed supply plants?

A From pool ed supply pl ants.

Q kay. So, if a cooperative -- presently, if
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the required proportion of the 9(c) handler's mlk is
delivered to the pool ed supply plant, the supply plant
has to deliver 25 percent of its physical receipts to
pool ed distributing plants to qualify, is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q kay. The diversions -- the 9(c) diversions
off that supply plant do not need to be accounted for
in any way in the supply plant's deliveries to

distributing plants to qualify, is that correct?

A Define "accounted for". What -- what --

Q vell, --

A You nmean by individual --

Q -- the supply plant -- if the supply plant
receives four mllion pounds of mlk, physically
receives four mllion pounds of mlk in the nonth of
June, --

A Hm hmm

Q -- but the diverted -- there's mlk diverted

fromthat plant on a 9(c) report, how much m |k does
that supply plant have to deliver to a distributing
plant to remain part of the pool ?

A Wul d you repeat that question?

Q Let nme nove on. Let's look at -- let's |ook
at Table 16-A, Table 16-A 16 and 16-A of Exhibit 5.

A Hm hnm
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Q The supply plant dispositions to other
Federal Order Plants shown on Table 16 are item zed to
the extent -- or broken down to the extent that you
coul d break them down in Table 16-A, is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q kay. So, 16-A's a breakdown of the
Di sposition colum of O her Federal Orders on 16?

A That's correct.

Q Now, taking -- let's take the nonth of
Decenber 2000. Does this indicate that essentially 99
percent plus of the deliveries to O her Federal O der
Plants from supply plants under -- under O der 32 went
to the Upper Mdwest Order 30 Distributing Plants?

A That's correct.

Q Ckay. And when it goes to O her Federal
Order Plants, are those distributing plants?

A Probably in nost cases, yes.

Q So, that Order 32 pooled mlk is serving the
needs of those Order 30 Distributing Plants?

A | think that's a fair statenent.

Q Ckay. And in other nonths here, in August
and Sept enber of 2001, the Order 32 Pooled MIk at
those five plants was shipped to distributing plants in
t he Sout heast Order, correct?

A Correct.
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Q And the sanme indication would apply there,
that it was serving the needs of those distributing
plants in the Southeast Order, correct?

A Correct.

Q Okay. But all the -- all the manufacturing
vol une at those supply plants was pool ed under O der
327

A |'"d say that's probably true.

Q Vll, all the -- all those supply plants were
pooled in Order 32, correct?

A Ri ght .

Q And a pool ed supply plant is under Order 327

A Well, your "manufacturing"” threw ne there,
when you put that word in there.

Q VWl |, sone pool ed supply plants are not
manuf acturing plants, --

A Correct.

Q -- they're just reloading facilities or
recei ving stations?

A That's correct. Right.

Q Ckay. Wiatever utilization those plants had
is pooled in Order 32?

A Ri ght .

MR. BESHORE: Those are all the questions I
have at the nmonent. Thank you.
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THE W TNESS: You're wel cone.
JUDGE BAKER: Thank you, M. Beshore.
Are there other questions? Yes, M. English.
CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MR ENGLI SH:

Q | guess, first, | should thank you for your
qui ck turnaround.

A You're certainly wel cone.

Q Let ne begin in Exhibit 5 with a couple of
sort of information definitional questions. In your
Tabl e 8, the List of Pooled Handlers, turning to --
excuse ne -- supply plants, for infornmation purposes,
you' ve listed Beatrice Cheese in Fredericksburg, |owa,
t hrough April of this year, and then beginning in My
of this year, ConAgra Dairy Foods.

Wuld it be fair to say that those are the
sane operation, just under different ownership?

A That's correct.

Q And is that operation proprietary or a
cooperative operation?

A Proprietary.

Q Looki ng down the list, there's one ot her
just don't recognize, Wapsie Valley in Independence,
lowa. |s that a proprietary or cooperative operation?

A That's proprietary.
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Q For those -- those supply plants that are in
operation today on this Order, |ooking down the |ist
for a nonent, are those the only two, the ConAgra and
the Wapsie Valley, that are proprietary operations or
supply plants that are in operation today?

A | think, yes, sir, that's correct.

Q Wth respect to the Table 12 and al so at the
sane tinme, if you could, the DFA Nunber 2, Conti nued
Sel ected Counties of MIk Marketing on the Centra
Oder. It would nmake sense to have them both out at
t he sane tine.

Turning first to the information for
[Ilinois, I would note that from Decenber '98 to
Decenber 2000, there's -- there's virtually no change
inthe in-area and in fact total has actually gone up
from Decenber '98 to Decenber 2000.

But then if you look at Table 12 for
Septenber, from Septenber 2000 to Septenber 2001, you

see a rather significant drop in the anount of producer

mlk pooled on this Order fromlllinois, correct?

A That's correct.

Q To your know edge, have -- is that nuch mlk
essentially no I onger being produced in Illinois from

Sept enber of 2000 to Septenber 20017
A That is not the total explanation for the
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drop, |'msure.
Q Wuld -- would a significant explanation for
the drop be mlk that is produced in Illinois that is

now pool ed on other Orders?

A That's correct.

Q Such as Orders 5 and Order 77

A | would assunme 5 and 7 woul d be the correct
ones.

Q Simlarly, on Table 12 of Exhibit 5, M ssour
shows a significant drop in pooled production from
Sept enber 2000 to Septenber 2001.

Wuld it also be the case that a significant
portion of that drop is reflected in mlk that is no
| onger pooled on Order 32 for Mssouri, but it is
pool ed on Orders 5 and Order 7?

A I"mnot totally sure on Mssouri. To ny
know edge, we have not | ost any plants to Order 7.
Again, | -- | can't say for sure on Mssouri.

Q Ckay. Wuld it be fair to say, though, that
whet her you |l ost plants, that mlIk -- the producers
there could be now being associated with Orders south
and east of M ssouri?

A Now, that's correct, yes.

Q And sort of piecing together for a nonent
your Table 16 and 16-A from Exhibit 5, and now al so
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getting Exhibit Nunmber 6 out for a nonment and | ooking
at English Nunmber 5, | have a couple questions as to
how t hose tables may relate, and I'"msorry. | -- |
need Table 15 and Table 16 of Exhibit 5 to conpare it
to English Nunmber 5 --

A kay.

Q -- and Nunmber 6. If | read it correctly, if
| understand it correctly, the columm on Table 15 for
M| k Physically Received at Distributing Plants from
Pool ed Supply Plants, for instance, in January of 2000,
you show 24, 989, 860.

A Correct.

Q Woul d that nunber of pounds be included in
the third columm of English Nunber 5, January 2000,
physically received all Order 32 supply plants, the
141, 216, 485?

A That woul d be included as part of that, yes.

Q Essentially, that 24,989,860 pounds were
first received at a supply plant and then transferred
to a pool ed plant?

A That's correct.

Q Wul d that m 1k necessarily be received for
this purpose at a pooled distributing plant under O der
327

A Yes.
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Q kay. And so, that nunmber is different from
t he nunber that you show in Table 16-A for Supply Pl ant

Transfers and Diversions to G her Oder Plants,

correct?
A Yes.
Q Let ne ask a few questions about California

for a nonment. Any mlk pooled on this Order first has
to be delivered at the point of one day's production to
an Order 32 pooled plant, correct?

A That's correct.

Q And so, to the extent that m |k has been
pool ed that is produced in California, a volune of that
mlk is first received at a pool ed plant under O der
327

A That's right.

Q Is that volume included in the val ue
calculation that you did for ne in response to Question
Nunmber 47?

A Yes, it is.

Q So, that average nunber includes not only the
average of the plants to which diverted in California
but it includes the portion of mlk that was used to
gualify that producer on Order 32, correct?

A That is correct.

Q And | ooki ng at your Exhibit 5, and your Table
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of Producer M|k, Table 14, Page 1, |ooking at the
California mlk from say for instance, Tolare, there
are 37 producers and 42 mllion pounds of mlKk
associated with those producers, correct?

A That's what's indicated, yes.

Q And so, on average, that third col um woul d
show that there's 1,161,000 pounds of m |k associ ated
with the m |k producers, correct?

A An average per farm yes.

Q What -- do you know the range at all of those

A No, | do not.

Q Do you know how many tankers it mght take to
nmove that volunme of mlk, one day's production, to --
to this Oder?

A Vll, very sinplistically, if you divide it
by a 50,000 pounds, that would give you an indication,
yes.

Q And 50, 000 pounds woul d be what you woul d
use, based upon California tankers or --

A Well, the just general use of the -- what's
generally considered a tanker-load of mlk. Usually a
little bit less than that, but 50,000 would give you a
good i ndicati on.

Q And so, how much -- how nuch m |k, based upon
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that, would these producers have to deliver to becone
associated with this O der?

A Based on?

Q Based on that 1,161, 000 average narketi ngs.

A Well, it would, on average then, have to
deliver one day's production out of that. So, divide
that by the nunber of days you have, in Septenber, it
woul d be 30, and that producer then on average woul d
have to deliver that anount of m |k, whatever that
cal cul ates out to. Roughly a fair anount.

Q About a tanker-|oad per producer?

A That'd be close to it, yes.

Q And once that one day's production was
delivered to this Order, is there really enough freight
in that to make those deliveries on a regular basis, to
your know edge?

A I would doubt it. I'"mnot a freight expert,
but | doubt it.

Q By the tine you get to Septenber of this year
and about 72 mllion pounds of California mlk pool ed,
and then a one-tine touch-base requirenent, and those
nunbers are now staying pretty constant, may | assune
t hat by Septenber, since that vol une has renai ned
constant, that alnost all that mlIk now listed as being
pool ed on Order 32 as California source mlk is being

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
(301) 565- 0064



© 00 N o g A~ w N P

N NN N NN P P R R R R R R R
g DN W N P O © 0O N o o M W N kP O

65
diverted to California plants?

A That is a safe assunption, yes.

Q Wth respect to sonme of the statistics for
the nonth of Septenber and Class 1 Utilization for this
mar ket and maybe sonme Class 2 Utilization for this
market, | note that fluid creamsales on this market
year conparison, Septenber of 2000 to Septenber of
2001, dropped about 1.2 mllion pounds.

Wuld it be fair to say that that was a
speci al inpact of the Septenber 11th events and that
some of the Septenber statistics may have sonme skew ng

interns of Class 1 Uilization as a result of that?

A It would be speculation on ny part. | have
no i dea.
Q Do you know if fluid cream sal es were down

significantly in Septenber, as a result of the
processors not being able to make sales of fluid creanf

A I woul d assune between that and price.

Again, it's an assunption.

Q Ckay. Let ne turn now to our -- maybe ny
confusion only, but who knows, with respect to Proposa
Nunmber 5, and the question | asked in Nunber 9, and
maybe the way to get at it is to ask sonme questions
wWth some exanples, to see if | understand it
correctly, and I'Il try not to trip nyself up.
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But assume for a nonent that you have a
pool ed distributing plant on Order 32, doesn't matter
whi ch one, and assune for a nonent that you have a
supply plant, and at least initially, 1'd like to
assunme that we're tal king about Proposal 5 and naybe
t he vol une of shipping, which is Proposal 1, but
wi t hout consi dering whether or not the supply plant is
i nside or outside the Marketing Area.
A Ckay.
Q Let's assune that you have a supply plant
that delivers through 9(c) one mllion pounds of mlk

into the pooled distributing plant that is regulated in

Order 32, --
A Ckay.
Q -- and that it also delivers three mllion

pounds of mlk into its supply plants.
Am | correct that under the current Order

provi sions, that operation could also divert up to 12

mllion pounds on to a non-pool ed plant?
A Yes.
Q So, with the delivery of one mllion pounds

to the Order 32 pooled distributing plants, 60 mllion
pounds coul d be pool ed, correct?

A That's correct. Right.

Q Under Proposal 5, if adopted, under the sane
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scenario, one mllion pounds delivered to the pooled
di stributing plant, three mllion pounds delivered to
the supply plant, and 12 mIlion pounds diverted, how
many pounds of m |k could be pool ed under Proposal 5?

A OCkay. You're running how nmuch through where
agai n?

Q One mllion pounds into the pooled
di stributing plant.

A Ckay.

Q Three mllion pounds delivered to the supply
plant, and 12 mllion pounds diverted to a non-pool ed
plant. So, it's the sanme -- it's basically the sane
scenario. In other words, the facts have not changed.
The only thing that's changing is the regul ation.

A Hm hmm

Q Wuld | be right -- I nean, ny readi ng of
Proposal 5, and this is where | get tripped up
sonetines, is that --

A Hm hmm

Q -- at this point now, with one mllion pounds
delivered to the pooled distributing plant, you could
only pool up to four mllion pounds, --

A Right. That's correct.

Q -- 1s that correct?

A | agree with you there.
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Q Okay. And so, whatever the verbiage is, the
bottomline is what you' ve done is created a shi pping
percentage, assumng it's 25 percent, --

A Ri ght .

Q -- that links directly to the nunber of
pounds that are delivered to pooled distributing plants
and doesn't take into consideration the nunber of
pounds that are delivered to the supply plant?

A That's correct. Right.

MR. ENGLISH: And that neans that's all
have. Thank you.

JUDGE BAKER Very well. That brings us to a
time for our norning recess, and we'll take a 15-m nute
recess at this tine.

(Wher eupon, a recess was taken.)

JUDGE BAKER: Can we pl ease take our seats?

(Pause)

JUDGE BAKER: Wbul d you pl ease cone to order?

M. Stukenberg is still on the stand, and M.
English, | think you had conpl eted your questi oning.

Are there other questions for M. Stukenberg?
M. Vetne?

(Pause)
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CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MR VETNE:

Q M. Stukenberg, prelimmnarily, in response to
nmy query earlier and your answers to M. Cooper, you
tal ked about the mailed Notice to Interested Parties.

A Yes, sSir.

Q And you indicated there are about 600 persons
or conpanies on your mailing list?

A I"d like to revise that at the present tine.

I was infornmed by one of the fellows that hel ped mail
out this one, and he said it was nore in the vicinity
of 360.

Q Ckay. Thank you.

A And that al so includes non-nenber producers,
too, which | forgot to nention.

Q | was going to ask. The -- that's dairy
farmers whose mlk is pooled on Order 32 who are not
menbers of a cooperative association, --

A That's correct.

Q -- is that right? The mailings to non-nenber
producers, was that based on producers in a given nonth
who are not nenbers?

A At the present tinme, when the Notice of
Hearing was signed, yes.

Q When the Notice of Hearing was signed. kay.
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And non- menber producers on the market, does the
identity of those producers change from nonth-to-nonth?

A M nimally.

Q Year-to-year, maybe a little bit nore than
mni mal | y?

A Yes.

Q Am | correct that you did not solicit or
attenpt to solicit mailing lists from other market
adm ni strators, including producers that are on their
mailing lists?

A That's correct. W used strictly our own.

Q | apol ogi ze that the questions are not
necessarily in a |l ogical sequence, but I'mtrying to
cover the turf.

In Table 12 of Exhibit 5, M. Stukenberg,
showi ng counties with mlk marketings, in response to a
gquestion, | think, from M. Beshore, you stated that
t here had been sone consolidation and continuing
consolidation of the dairy industry.

Wul d you descri be what you neant by that?

A Handl ers bei ng nerged or bought out by other
handl ers. That includes fluid processors and al so the
-- sone of the cooperatives. Over tine, there's been
cooperatives nerging wth each other. That's basically
what | nmeant by that.
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Q kay. Would you agree that there's al so been
some farm consolidation, individual producers selling
out, and their farns going to a nei ghbor, and so the
surviving producer's |arger?

A | don't know about the farnms, but |I'msure
t he cows have been purchased by nei ghboring producers,
yes.

Q Do you know to what extent the marketings
shown on Exhibit 5, Table 12, reflect distributing
pl ant consolidation, and by that, | nean, whereby
consolidation results in a plant wwth nore
di stribution, serving a greater portion of this market
that didn't serve it in that quantity before?

A Based on the information that | have seen,
there doesn't appear to be any nmmjor changes in the
distribution patterns of the distributing pool ed
pl ant s.

Q Since January 1 of 2000, when consolidation
took effect, have there been any significant voluntary
depooling of producer mlk, so that it becones non-
pool ed m | k?

A Yes, there has.

Q Is this mlk that is ordinarily delivered to
a non-pool ed plant?

A I would say for the nost part, that's true,
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yes.

Q kay. And this is sonething that handl ers
can elect to do on a producer-by-producer basis or
di ver si on- by-di versi on basi s?

A Yes.

Q Is there any data here that reflects the
vol une of mlk that would be pool ed or associated with
the market if you take into account depooled m |l k?

A Not hing contained in this exhibit. No, sir.

Q O any exhibit that you prepared?

A No, sir.

Q And prior to January 1 of 2000, would it be
correct to say that the frequency with which and the
vol unme of which diversion -- depooling took place was
far greater than it has been since January 1, 2000?

A Yes.

Q Wth respect to Exhibit 7, DFA Nunber 2,
showi ng pounds of mlk fromvarious sources, prior to
January 1 of 2000, do you have know edge as to whet her
m | k was depool ed, for exanple, during Decenber of '96
or Decenber of '98, that was not depool ed i n Decenber
of 20007

A I do not have that direct know edge at this
poi nt, no, w thout going back and doi ng sone checki ng.

Q In -- in the years 1996 and 1998, woul d you
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agree with ne that the volune of mlk pooled in these
Consol i dated Orders or this Consolidated Oder or its
Predecessors varied substantially from nonth-to-nonth
because of depooling?

A That's correct, yes.

Q Did you, when you prepared this exhibit, make
any judgnent as to whether Decenber 1996 or Decenber
1998 was representative of the consolidated markets or
the -- or their predecessors for those years?

A No, we did not. It was data that we had
avai l able in our historic database, and we were able to
go back to 1996 wi t hout any problem

Q You -- does your office ordinarily publish
producer mlk by state and county for every nonth or
just certain nonths of the year?

A It's for every nonth.

Q And how | ong has your office done that?

A W' ve had it since Federal Order Reform has
taken effect, January of 2000.

Q Ckay. And prior to January of 2000, did your
office, as a matter of course, publish producer mlk by
state and county?

A W didn't exactly publish it, but we did have
it available for any inquiries, plus it was al so
publ i shed by Dairy Prograns periodically.
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Q Periodically, --

A Ri ght .

Q -- the Dairy --

A Hm hmm

Q -- Progranms Branch of AMS periodically
publ i shes a, | guess, supplenment to the Federal MIk

Order Statistics that shows producer mlk by state and
county?

A That's correct.

Q And you didn't include with any of your --
let nme ask it this way.

You publish an Annual Statistical Summary?

A Yes, we do.

Q In that Annual Statistical Summary, do you
i ncl ude producer mlk by state and county for certain
nont hs?

A No, we do not.

Q And in none of your nonthly rel eases, do you
i ncl ude producer mlk by state and county for nonths
prior to January of 2000?

A Not that | can recall, no.

Q In colloquy with M. Beshore, you answered a
nunber of questions which were put to you, and the term
"Class 1 Needs" was used, and at one point, | got up
and questioned that term
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When you used "Class 1 Needs" or responded to
guestions about Class 1 Needs in your answers, would it
be correct to say that your answer referring to needs
woul d be synonynous with volunme of Cass 1 mlk?

A Il would say it would be a very good
i ndi cation of what the Cass 1 Needs are when you | ook
at the route sales and so forth.

Q In your mnd, when you were answering those
guestions, did you have any concept or definition of
the word "needs" that was different fromddass 1
Vol une?

A No, | did not.

Q | believe it's Table 4. Table 4, Total d ass
1 on Routes. Is that -- is that total all Cass 1
sal es by regul ated handlers, including Cass 1 Sales
Qut si de of the Marketing Area?

A That's correct. It does.

Q Does Total Cass 1 Sales include Class 1
Sales wthin the Marketing Area by Non-Pool ed Pl ants?

A Not on this table, it doesn't, no.

Q Not on this table?

A No, nor -- nor in any other table in this
exhibit.

Q Ckay. And in any exhibit that we're aware of
her e?
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A No. The Cass 1 Sales in the area by non-
pool ed pl ants?

Q By non-pool ed pl ants.

A That is not included in any of this exhibit.

Q kay. And just so we understand what non-
pool ed plants would include, it would include plants
t hat have sonme sales in the nmarket but not enough to be
fully regul at ed?

A That woul d be part of it, yes.

Q Partially -- partially-regulated plants,
they're call ed?

A Correct.

Q kay. And it would include Cass 1 Sal es of
Producer - Handl ers and O her Exenpt Pl ants?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. Oher than those two categories, is
there any ot her source of --

A O her Federal Order Plants Selling into the
Mar keti ng Area.

Q O her Federal Order Plants Selling into the
Mar keti ng Area?

A That's correct.

Q Are you aware of whether there's been any
significant change in the volune of, first of all
sales in the Marketing Area by non-pool ed plants?
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A There has not been.

Q And when you use pre-January 2000 and post -
January 2000 as the reference, and when you go pre-
January 2000, say, you know, three or four years, say
1996 to 2000 versus January 2000 to the current tine,
any significant change?

A | cannot answer that question fromthe
standpoi nt of the Central Federal Order being a nerger
of, what is it, eight or eight and a half different
Orders. W were not adm nistering but three of those
Orders, and from ny standpoi nt, you know, | just don't
have those nunbers. 1'd have to go back and check

Q kay. And the sane reference point for
distribution in the Marketing Area by O her O der
Distributing Plants. That's plants regul ated under
O her Marketing Areas. Any significant change, to your
know edge, if you can answer it?

A No, | have no i dea.

Q | have observed -- |I'mdrawi ng on ny nenory
here -- sone plants fromfairly distant |location |isted
in various Market Adm nistrator Reports and partially-
regul ated plants, including Altadena Dairy near Los
Angel es, has that been a partially-regul ated plant?

A Yes, sir, it has.

Q kay. And there's a plant sone place in
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Georgia that ships mlk to a nunber of Orders. Has

there been a CGeorgia plant, | think it's Savannah,
that's --
A Yes, sSir.
Q -- distributed dass 1 MIk in this market?
A A relatively small anount, yes.

Q Ckay. Can you, you know, identify other
di stant locations fromwhich mlk was distributed by

partially-regul ated plants? Utah?

A The plant -- one plant in Utah in particular,
t he Dannon plant, | think it is, has a small anmount of
sales in the area, but it's -- as | recall, in \West

Jordan, Utah, and pooled in Order 1. The Northeast.
Q A Uah plant pooled in Order 17?
A Yes. And --

Q | love it.
A And there's a plant in California, also, a --
| always call it Chique, but I know that's not the

correct spelling or pronunciation of it, but it's
CHI-QUE or sonething |ike that, has a snmall anpunt
of sales in the Marketing Area.

There are a few others fromdistant | ocations
that do pool in -- in the area, but right now, |I can't,
you know, think of all of them

Q kay. Jus as a general matter, --
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A Hm hmm

Q -- since January of 2000, as well as prior to
January of 2000, there have been plants at distant
| ocations, such as we've tal ked about, that have had
Class 1 Distribution in the Marketing Area?

A Yes.

Q In response to a question by M. Beshore, and
at the tinme, he was referring to California mlk, he
directed your attention to the Class 1 Differential at
some California | ocation, and he asked the foll ow ng
guestion. |'m paraphrasing.

He asked you if that mlk was entitled to a
Class 1 Differential of 1.70, and you said -- $1.70,
and you said yes.

A Ri ght .

Q Do you recall that?

A Ri ght .

Q Actually, a $1.70 is the Class 1 Differentia
for that |ocation, --

A That's correct.

Q -- but would it not be correct to say that
the producer mlk that is fromthat |ocation does not
receive or have an entitlenent to a $1.70 Cass 1
Differential?

A That's correct.
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Q kay. That producer mlk has an entitl enent
to a PPD, Producer Price Differential, which is
substantially less than a $1.70, correct?

A That woul d -- yes, that would be correct.

Q kay. And it's entitled to a Producer Price
Differential, based on -- adjusted for whatever base
zone the PPD is announced in this Oder?

A That's correct.

Q In response to questions by M. English, you
i ndi cated that there had been sone shift of mlk
produced in the Mdwest, and he identified various
states, Illinois was anong them that had shifted in
its pooling to Orders 5 and 7.

A Correct.

Q Wul d you al so agree that Order 33 has been a
mar ket to which mlk produced in Illinois and probably
some from Wsconsin or |owa has shifted?

A Hmm  There's been sone m |k that has been
headed in that direction periodically. Exactly how
much or whatever, | cannot -- cannot really say.

Q Al'so in response to questions by M. English,
you described an interpretation of the pooling
requi renments for supply plants under the existing O der
and as proposed. Do you recall that?

A As proposed on Nunber 5.
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Q On Nunmber 5, yes.

A Correct.

Q Okay. The 62 mllion pooled versus four
mllion pool ed?

A Correct.

Q In review ng these proposals, let's say
Proposal Nunber 5, you have a sense of the direction,
maybe not the degree but the direction, the proposals
woul d take, if adopted, in terns of quantity of mlk
t hat can be pool ed?

A Yes, sir.

Q kay. And in ternms of the fact that if |ess
m |k were pooled, there would be a change in the
Producer Price Differential that producers would
recei ve under this Market Order?

A That woul d be true, yes.

Q And if that m |k then ships to another
mar ket, you would assune that G ade A mlk would try to
be pooled in sone nmarket, correct?

A That's generally what -- what has been the
practice in the past, yes.

Q Ckay. And you can also forman opinion as to
the direction, perhaps not the degree, that Producer
Price Differential in a market to which this m |k would
nove woul d change?
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A Right. Any tine you'd dilute the anount of
nmoni es involved in the Class I, yes, it would decrease
t he Producer Price Differential.

Q Wuld it be correct for ne to say that having
an awar eness and having an opinion on direction of
Producer Price Differential revenue, for exanple, |ower
revenue in Oder 30 if the mlk shifted, that your
of fice received no instruction from USDA i n Washi ngt on
and did not on its own nake an effort to give notice to
producers in those other markets who may be affected by
this mlk shifting to their markets?

A Well, yeah. W didn't notify them if that's

what you're getting at.

Q That -- that was ny question.
A But the information was -- has been avail abl e
on the Internet. |I'msure it's been topics of nuch

di scussi on anong the handl ers i nvol ved.

Q Ckay. If | post sonething on the Internet,
you woul dn't know to look for it, unless | told you to
go | ook, would you?

A Not unl ess you told ne where, yes.

Q Yeah. There was an exhibit -- help ne -- or
table -- help ne find it here -- that addressed supply
pl ant m | k pool ed percent received, diverted, delivered
to distributing plants.
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A Tabl e 167

Q M ght be it.

A It doesn't break down the -- anything
diverted to distributing plants as such.

Q Was there a table that showed nmarketing of
supply plant mlk to distributing plants?

A Mar keti ngs? Just -- just Table 16 that shows
the amount of mlIk that's noved to distributing plants.

Q Where is that?

A Table 16, the -- what -- under D spositions,
the first columm under D spositions.

Q Di spositions to Pooled Plants. Does pool ed
pl ants -- does that colum only nean --

A Vell, that --

Q -- distributing plants?

A Well, that's true, too. It's not just
distributing plants. Sone of that may be to ot her
supply pl ants.

Q And does it not include the supply plants in
guestion when it's a disposition?

A Right. It could be double-counted, but it is
arelatively small anount, but there is sonme of that
goi ng on.

Q Al right. Handlers -- sone handlers, in
O der 32, --
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A Hm hnm

Q -- that operate a manufacturing plant have --
a cooperative handl er have a couple of options on how
to pool mlk, if they have a Cass 1 custoner, and tel
me if I'"mcorrect or not.

One option is to pool the manufacturing plant
as either a supply plant or a cooperative bal anci ng
pl ant and qualify on the basis of shipnents, direct
shi pnments, transfers or diversions, to a distributing
plant. Am|1 correct?

A That's correct. Right.

Q Ckay. Another option that the organization
has is to sinply pool as a 9(c) handl er, make
deliveries fromthe mlk supply of the cooperation to
the distributing plant and divert the balance to the
manuf acturing plant as a non-pool ed plant?

A That's correct.

Q Ckay. GCenerally, as between those options,
the actual physical flowof mlk fromfarns to
manuf acturing would be simlar, regardl ess of which
opti on was chosen. Am| correct?

A |'"d say that's a fair assunption, yes.

(Pause)
BY MR VETNE
Q Now, with that in mnd, going to Table 15 of
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Exhi bit 5, the colum, the second columm of nunbers
under -- under Producers, for exanple, in January 2000,
showi ng 483 mllion pounds, received at distributing
pl ants from producers, those receipts may include, for
exanple, a 9(c) handler that operates a manufacturing
plant or diverts to a manufacturing plant in nuch the
same physical transportation manner as a supplier?

A That's correct.

Q kay. And in this exhibit, by the way, when
you showed pounds of supply plant mlk, do supply
pl ants here al so i nclude cooperative bal ancing pl ants?

A If it's listed under the Supply Plant Table
that we had back here that shows the -- all the supply
pl ants, yes, it is included in there.

Q In the Supply Plant Table? Are supply plants
and cooperative bal anci ng plants, which have different
performance levels or different sections of the -- of
the rules, are they separately identified in --

A No.

Q -- the plant list? Are all the cooperative
associ ation balancing plants listed in that earlier
tabl e as supply plants?

A No. | don't think there are any.

There aren't any?
A On that bal ancing plants? Define "bal ancing
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plants". That's not a termunder the Order as such.

Q Wll, it's not a termunder the Order, but
let's ook at the Order. Under Section 7(d), "a plant
| ocated in a Marketing Area and operated by a
cooperative association", that's what -- that's --
that's ny --

A Okay. Well, there aren't any.

Q There aren't any?

A Ri ght .

Q And have there been since January of 20007

A Right. There haven't been any since January
of 2000.

Q And were there any plants that qualified
under a uni que provision for cooperative associ ations
in the Predecessor Orders prior to January 20007

A |"mpretty sure there was, yes.

Q Now, going back to Table 15 for a second, if
you woul d, please, in identifying the pounds and
percent of mlk physically received at distributing
plants fromfull supply plants, did you have in mnd in
preparing the exhibit and this table in that nmanner to
provide information for the record on the I evel of
performance by supply plants conpared to what the
columm you identified as producers?

A That was not the intention, no.
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Q Was it your intention to provide information
on the level to which needs of distributing plants as
served by supply plants?

A Only to indicate the volunes in bul k.

Q kay. Keeping in mnd, as we've discussed
before, that m Ik may be pooled as 9(c) m |k associ at ed
for diversion purposes wth a manufacturing plant and
physically noved fromfarmto distributing plant or
farmto manufacturing plant in essentially the sane
manner as mlk associated with supply plants, would it
be correct to say that one cannot draw a concl usion
fromTable 15 wth respect to the -- the performance as
in nmeeting needs of distributing plants -- of supply
pl ants versus ot her market suppliers?

A You cannot conclude that fromthis table, no.

Q Thank you.

JUDGE BAKER: Very well. Thank you, M.
Vet ne.
Are there any other questions for M.
St ukenberg? Yes? Yes, sir.
MR, TONAK: My nane is Dennis Tonak.
CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MR TONAK

Q On Exhibit 5, Table 8, there's a list of

t hese pool ed handl ers, and those woul d be the people
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that submit the Report of Receipts and Utilization as
referred to in the Oder, is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q Do you receive Reports of Receipt and
Utilization fromanybody that would not be on this
[ist?

A We receive Reports of Utilizations for
partially-regul ated plants, producer-handlers, and even
the exenpt plants provide us with that infornation.

Q To the extent that these plants have
producers that they wite mlk checks for or that they
directly pay the producers for, do you also receive a
payrol|l report fromthese plants?

A Yes, we do.

Q Do you receive producer payroll reports from
anybody el se?

A I n sone cases, where another cooperative is
marketing the mlk but not acting as handler on it,

t hat cooperative will provide us with the payrol
i nformati on, yes.

Q Are there any cases where the -- the
cooperative wll provide you with the payrol
information for producers that they do not wite the
m |l k checks for? |1Is that what you' re saying?

A No.
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Q Do you receive payroll reports from anybody
that's not on this plant list?

A Yes, we do.

Q Let's run through that a little bit then, so
| can try to understand it better. How does that work?

A Well, quite frankly, when a cooperative -- |
t hi nk we have sonewhere in the vicinity of 30
cooperatives pooling mlk on the Central Order.
Qoviously if you look at the cooperatives acting as
handl ers, there were not anywhere near that nunber,
generally around 10 or 11 and sone nonths 12, but the
ot her cooperatives pool or market the mlk directly to
a, say, distributing pooled plant or a supply plant,
and they in turn file a report to us that lists the
i ndi vi dual producer marketings and the conposition of
that mlk that is marketed and the price that they pay.

Q Now, is that the plant that's not on this
list or the other cooperative that's not on this |list?

A The ot her cooperatives are not on the |ist.

Q On this list?

A Correct.

Q And there's no proprietary plants that you
recei ve producer payroll information fronf

A No, that's not true. W do receive producer
payrol|l from several of the plants |isted on here.
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Q There's no proprietary -- are there any
proprietary plants listed on -- in Table 8? Let ne
rephrase that.

Are there any proprietary plants that are not
listed on Table 8 that you' d receive producer payrol
i nformation fronf

A Not |isted on Table 8 that we receive?

Q Producer payroll information fromor if
there's a proprietary plant that's paying producers
directly, being pooled by one of the cooperatives
listed on this list, --

A Hm hmm

Q -- are you receiving the producer payrol
information fromthe producers paid by that, let's cal
it a non-pooled proprietary plant, fromthe cooperative
on -- in Table 8 or fromthe non-pooled plant itself?

A If the mlk is pooled, and it's a cooperative
menber, we receive a payroll fromthe cooperative,
regardl ess as to which plant the mlk is marketed to.

Q O who wites the mlk check?

A Right. W -- well, define on "who wites the
m | k check", whether you're tal king about the total
amount of -- for the total amount of m |k received or
for individual producers.

Q For individual producers.
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A For individual producers, whoever wites the
m | k check does provide us with the payrol
i nformati on.

Q So, there are plants in effect that are not
identified on these lists that are witing mlk checks
to producers and that mlk is pool ed under the Order,
but we don't really know who's witing the mlk checks?

A We know who's witing the m |k checks.

Q Fromthe information on this list?
A Fromthe information on this list, no,
because there's -- like | said, we have about 30

cooperatives, and they are not |isted on here.

Q Does your office conpile a list of mlk
mar ketings, total m |k marketings under all Federa
Orders by state and county for the nonths of May and
Decenber ?

A Yes, we have.

Q That's not widely distributed, but it is
avai | abl e on request, would that be correct?

A It's -- depending on your definition of
"W dely distributed", yes, it's available on request.

Q And that's basically for the entire United
States, all counties in the U S that have Federal MIKk
Mar ket i ngs?

A And California.
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MR. TONAK:  Thank you.

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you.

Are there any other questions for M.

St ukenberg? Yes, Ms. Brenner.

CROSS EXAM NATI ON

BY MS. BRENNER

Q Mostly sone clarifying questions, M.

St ukenber g.

M. Vetne's questions about who your office

notified about the hearing,

that included all handl ers

that are pooling mlk under this Oder --

A That's right.

Q -- currently, both inside and outside the

Mar keti ng Area?

A The outside, |I'm

not totally sure about. |If

they're on our Interested Parties List, yes, they

received it. Li ke | said,

if the handl ers pool on

another Order, it's -- it's -- it's questionable.

Q But if it's pooled on your Order, if --

A Vll, if it's pooled on our Order, yes.

Q -- a co-op in the Upper Mdwest that has mlk

pooled on this Order, --

A Correct. They were notified.

Q -- they were notified?
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A Hm hmm

Q Non- menber producers | ocated in other
Mar keting Areas that had m |k pooled on this O der
woul d have been notified, also?

A Yes, they woul d have.

Q kay. Going on to another area, in Exhibit 5
on Table 8, you have a colum | abel ed "Location", --

A Hm hmm

Q -- and | believe a |ot of the sane
information is also in Exhibit 6. That's English
Nunmber 2.

A Yes.

Q What do those nunbers represent?

A That is the Cass 1 Location applicable at
the respective counties. Since Federal Order Reform
all | ocations have been on a county-by-county basis.

For instance, the Kansas City is |isted as
the base point. If you were to |look at the very first
one there, Anderson Erickson at a $1.80, we would take
the -- for Cass 1 purposes, the -- what do they cal
it these days? The base price, and for Kansas Cty,
we'd add $2 to it for the Class 1 Differential. At Des
Moi nes, lowa, for instance, we would add a $1.80 to it
and that woul d becone the Cass 1 price.

When it conmes to paynents to producers, it's

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
(301) 565- 0064



© 00 N o g A~ w N P

N NN N NN P P R R R R R R R
g DN W N P O ©W 0O N o o M W N P O

94
the difference between the $2, the base point again,
m nus the $1.80, leaving -- or the other way around.
So, it'd be mnus 20 cents. So, 20 cents would be
taken off of the PPDin relation to paying producers.
Q kay. And so, where you have Cass 1 Dif on

Table 9 listed for different counties --

A Ri ght .

Q -- or a nunber of different |ocations, those
are the sane -- those are the sane nunbers?

A Right. It is the location, not necessarily
on a Class 1 basis, but it would be -- it's the sane

expl anation, right.

Q Ckay. And therefore, when mlk is pool ed,
it doesn't get that Class 1 Differential value, it gets
the PPD, and then this Class 1 Differential is used to

-- the difference in the Cass 1 Differential is used

to adjust --
A Right. To adjust --
Q -- the PPD?
A -- the PPD. Correct.
Q Ckay. And | believe the statenent was nade

that the PPD is considerably | ess than the $1.60.
Sonetines it's somewhat nore, too, isn't it?

A Ri ght .

Q It depends on the nonth?
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A It depends on the nonth.

Q kay. The other area in which I have
guestions is relative to Table 16. In this four-colum
section headed "Recei pts", are those physical receipts
at supply plants?

A Yes.

Q That's mlk that's actually received at the
supply plants?

A Just a second.

(Pause to review docunent)

THE WTNESS: For the nost part, that's true.
There is a little bit of 9(c) mlk included in that.

BY MS. BRENNER

Q And that would be included in the -- under
t he col um headed "Producers” or --

A Yes, correct.

Q Ckay. And then, under the three-colum
portion called "Dispositions", | believe you said that
the dispositions to pool plants could include sone
transfers to other supply plants, --

A That's correct.

Q -- but if you look at Table 15, the mlk
physically received at distributing plants from pool ed
supply plants, it's identical --

A Ri ght .
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Q -- to that col um.

A It includes a small anount of diversions in
that, also. Sonething |less than 15 -- 15 percent of
the total.

Q That's true in Table 15, in the pooled -- in

the mlk physically received at distributing plants
from pool ed supply plants, also includes sone --

A Yes, a small anount.

Q -- diversions to non-pooled plants or
di versions from farns?

A Which -- which colum are we tal king about
now?

Q Ckay. On Table 15, --

A 15.

Q -- mlk physically received at distributing

pl ants from pool ed supply plants, --

A Hm hmm

Q -- is the same information --

A Ri ght .

Q -- that shows up on Table 16 under

"Di spositions to Pooled Plants"?
A Right. That's correct.
Q And that includes sone --
A A very smal |l anount, yes.
Q O diversions?
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O diverted mlKk.
Diverted to?
Directly to the distributing plant.

To the distributing plant?

> O >» O »

Ri ght .
Q kay. And those O her Federal O der
Di spositions are to Other Federal Order Distributing
Plants or would there be sone supply plant mlk there?
A I would say it's alnost all distributing
plants. There mght be a supply plant listed in there,
not being, you know, that famliar with sone of the
O her Order Plants.
Q kay. And this -- on Table 15, the | ast
colum, "Percent Producer and Supply Plant on Tot al
Order 32 Producer M1 k", that's the producer and supply

plant mlk that's received at distributing plants?

A Yes.
The percent -- okay.
MS5. BRENNER: | think that's all | have.

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you, Ms. Brenner.

Are there any other questions? Yes? M.

Beshor e.
CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BESHORE
Q M. Stukenberg, just a followup with sone of
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Ms. Brenner's questions.

Wth respect -- Table 16. Can you tell us
how the -- the universe of receipts attributed to
supply plants on -- on Table 16, can you tell us which

is the first colum?

A Hm hmm

Q | take it.

Q Right. This whole table relates to supply
pl ants only.

Q Ckay. The total receipts at supply plants
woul d be the aggregate of those four col ums?

A That's correct.

Q kay. Are those just -- well, howis that
total arrived at? Does that include, for instance,
9(c) deliveries of a cooperative to that supply plant?

A Yes, it does.

Q All? So, it includes all, --

A Ri ght .

Q -- even -- all deliver -- all 9(c) deliveries
to that supply plant?

A That's correct.

Q Ckay. Does it include all diversions from
that supply plant to distributing plants --

A No.

Q -- or other --
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A No, it's not a net nunber. It's the actual.
Q Di versions are not in that nunber?
A Di versions -- diversions to pooled -- to

pool ed plants or diversions --

Q To anywhere.

A Anywhere? No, they wouldn't be. Well, wait
a mnute. To pooled plants, they would be. Non-pooled

pl ants, they woul dn't be, because there are sone

di versions involved. Wll, 9(c) diversions wuld be
included in there, but diversions to -- now, wait a
mnute. |'magetting nyself m xed up here, too.

It includes the 9(c), if it's a diversion to

a pooled plant. | can't recall. If it shows up on the
-- on the report itself that is sent in for the supply
pl ant as a producer receipt, it is included in that.
Diversions. |It's strictly the pooled plant receipts,
yes. Producer receipts at -- at the supply plant as
listed on the report.

Q Ckay. So, these totals were -- basically,

you took all your supply plant reports --

A Ri ght .

Q -- and aggregated thenf

A That's correct.

Q 9(c) report's a different report?
A That's a different report, right.
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Q kay. So, --

A If there were 9(c) receipts at that supply
plant, that would be included in there, also.
Cooperati ve handl er receipts.

Q At the supply plant?

A At the supply plant.

Q Even if the supply plant was not the sane
cooperative?

A That is correct.

Q So, the supply plant reports basically then
includes all mlk physically delivered to that supply
pl ant ?

A That's correct.

Q Any mlk diverted by the operator of that

supply plant to a pooled distributing plant is also

included, | take it?
A That woul d be included in there, also, right.
Q In that report?
A Ri ght .
Q And -- and in these vol unes?
A In those vol unes, correct.

Q But not mlk diverted by the operator of that
supply plant to a non-pool ed plant?

A Diverted by -- that's correct. R ght. It
woul d not include that.
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Q So, --

A Pardon ne. Wit a mnute. Let nme back off
on that. It would be included because it is |listed
down in the other section where it is diverted -- where

it would be diverted to the other Order.

Q kay. Let's conpare English Nunmber 5 --

A kay.

Q -- with Table 16. English 5, part of Exhibit
6.

A Hm hmm

Q Table 16. What I'minterested in -- |I'm

trying to clarify for the record --

A Ri ght .

Q -- how all of this -- this mlk is apparently
going to non-pooled plants, it shows up and doesn't
show up, and on sone of these various reports,

i ncludi ng these reports of supply plant mlKk.
Engl i sh Tabl e Nunber 5 shows milk diverted to

non- pool ed plants --

A Hm hmm

Q -- fromall Oder 32 plants, 25, --

A Ri ght .

Q -- 740,720 for January 2000.

A Ri ght .

Q Tabl e 16 of the same nonth shows di spositions
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to non-pooled plants, a 128 mllion plus.

A Hm hmm

Q Okay. Now, is the 25 mllion on English 5
included in the 128 mllion on Table 167

A In the -- which one?

Q The non-pool ed plant dispositions.

A Right. 1It's included on which colum? The
first colum? Yes.
The di spositions to non-pool ed plants, how --
Ckay. Under Dispositions?

Yes.

> O >» O

Yes, that would be included in there.

Q Ckay. So, those dispositions include
di versions as well as transfers?

A That's correct.

Q Ckay. Now, if you -- if you total the
Di sposition colums --

A Hm hmm

Q -- on Table 16 and conpare it to the Total
Recei pts colums, they -- do they aggregate? Are they
the sane total ?

A They won't be the sane total, but it wll be

Q The bal ance woul d be the anpunt retained at
t he pool ed supply plant for its use?
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A It would be that and al so sone small anounts
of shrinkage and vari ous other accounting-type things.

Q Now, let nme go to Table 15 of Exhibit 5,
which is the tabulation of the Receipts of D stributing
Plants. Because this table says m |k physically
received at distributing plants, | take it that this
does not count in the report in any way mlk that is
reported as diverted by those distributing plants?

A That's correct.

Q Do distributing plants regularly report milk
as being diverted to non-pool ed plants?

A It's a very small anount.

Q So, if -- if we know that there are |arge
volumes of mlk being delivered to distant non-pool ed
pl ants, we know there's only a small anount being
diverted there by distributing plants in the Oder?

A | would say that's correct, yes.

Q And we know how nmuch of it is going by
di version or transfer by supply plants through Table 16
or Table 5?

A Ri ght .

Q The remai nder woul d be --

A Di stributing plants.

Q -- reflected on -- distributing -- on 9(c)
reports of the cooperative handl ers?
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A Ri ght .

MR. BESHORE: Thank you.

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you, M. Beshore.

Are there any other questions? M. Vetne?

CROSS EXAM NATI ON

BY MR VETNE

Q Just a little followup on the |ast |ine of
guesti ons.

You indicated there's very little mlk
reported by distributing plants as diversions to non-
pool ed pl ants?

A That's correct.

Q And is that because m |k associated with the
distributing plant is pool ed and marketed by
cooperative associations who report the diversions as -
- as cooperative diversions under Section 9?

A That's the nmain reason, yes.

Q Ckay. | nean, it would be essentially the
sane physical novenent of mlk, if the distributing
pl ant pooled its own m | k?

A That's correct.

Q And again, the distributing plants refl ected
in Tables 16 and 15, --

A Hm hnm

Q -- to the extent that they're distributing
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plants -- plant receipts, in the case of a distributing
pl ant handl er that has a Cass 2 operation, that would
not by itself qualify as a distributing plant. Wuld
it include -- are the receipts of the distributing
plants including deliveries to those Cass 2
operations?

A unit by a distributing plant having --
having a separate ice --
A It would be included in Table 15, yes.
Q Ckay. And with respect to -- with respect to
di spositions to non-pool ed plants, would those
di spositions include dispositions to Class 2 facilities
that, for whatever reason, whether they can't or decide
not to, that are not pooled as a unit with distributing
pl ant s?
A That woul d be included as dispositions to
non- pool ed pl ants, yes.
Q Ckay. So, the distributing plant
di spositions as well as the non-pool ed pl ant
di spositions would include sonme mlk in both cases
delivered to plants whose primary function is to nake
C ass 2 products?
A That's correct.
MR. VETNE: Thank you.
JUDGE BAKER: Very well. Thank you, M.
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Vet ne.
Are there any other questions? M. English?
CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MR ENGLI SH:

Q Looki ng at English Nunmber 5, in Exhibit 6,
you provided sone percentages in the second page of
English Nunber 5 with respect to supply plants inside
the Marketing Area and supply plants outside the
Mar keting Area, and would | be correct that you are
unable to tell us a -- what percentage of those mlKks
-- of that mlk as divided up is 9(c) mlk for the
total producer mlk pool ed?

A Well, definitely at this point, I wouldn't be
abl e to.

Q Wuld it be a fair assunption that the
percentage of 9(c) mlk in total producer m |k pool ed
at supply plants inside the Marketing Area woul d be
reflective of the percentage of 9(c) mlk pooled in
supply plants outside the Marketing Area? Wuld that
be a fair assunption?

A It'd be pretty close. The outside probably
woul d be just a tad higher, but | can't say that for
sure without actually review ng the nunbers.

Q But for these purposes, you couldn't --

A They -- they are very cl ose.
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Q They're very cl ose?

A Yes.

Q And then, | think you said that with respect
to the dispositions when you were having the discussion
with M. Beshore, that that 9(c) represented sonething
under 15 percent?

A That's correct.

MR, ENGLI SH: Thank you.

JUDGE BAKER  Thank you, M. Engli sh.

Are there any other questions?

(No response)

JUDGE BAKER  Apparently there aren't. You
may be -- oh, you haven't noved those exhibits in.

MR. COOPER: Move Exhibits 5, 6 and 7 in
evi dence.

JUDGE BAKER: Are there any questions or
obj ections with respect thereto?

(No response)

JUDGE BAKER: Let the record reflect there
are none.

Exhibits 5, 6 and 7 are admtted and received

i nto evidence.

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
(301) 565- 0064



© 00 N o o A~ w N P

N NN N NN P P R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © 0O N o o M W N P O

108
(The docunents referred to,
havi ng been previously marked
for identification as Exhibit
Nunbers 5, 6 and 7, were
recei ved in evidence.)
JUDGE BAKER: Thank you, M. Stukenberg.
THE W TNESS: You're wel cone.
(Wher eupon, the wi tness was excused.)
JUDGE BAKER W th respect to two individuals
who have requested to be taken out of turn, and with
t he concurrence of M. Beshore, we w |l hear them at
this tine.
WIIl M. Bond step forward?
(Pause)
JUDGE BAKER: M. Vetne, you have sone
procedural matters you want to take up.
M. Beshore, you kindly consented to hear
these two wi tnesses out of order.
MR, BESHORE: Oh, yes. W certainly want to.
These gentlenen are dairy farnmers from Nebraska t hat
have cone, and we certainly think they should be heard
JUDGE BAKER: Very wel .
MR. BESHORE: -- at this tine.
JUDGE BAKER: Thank you very much
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M. Vetne, we'll take your matters up after
we hear this wtness.

MR. COOPER: And Your Honor, the Secretary
woul d al so invite any other dairy farmers who are here
today to be able to testify now, if they have to | eave,
because the rest of us are going to be here for two
days.

JUDGE BAKER Wl l, that m ght include the
whol e room M. Cooper

MR. COOPER: Looking around, | don't see many
dairy farmers out there, but if there are any, we
woul d, al so.

JUDGE BAKER  Very well. W'Il do the best
t hat we can.

M. Bond, would you step forward and be
sworn, please?

Wher eupon,

JERRY ONEN BOND
havi ng been first duly sworn, was called as a w tness
herein and was exam ned and testified as foll ows:

JUDGE BAKER: Wbul d you be seated, please?
You may proceed, M. Bond.

THE W TNESS: Thank you, Your Honor

DI RECT TESTI MONY
THE WTNESS: Good norning. M nane is Jerry
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Bond. [|'ma dairy producer in Southeast Nebraska, near
Avoca, Nebraska. |'ma third-generation dairy
producer, and ny grandfather in 1934, David Janmes Bond,
was contracted with the Government to supply mlk to
the nen in the quarter boats who worked on the M ssouri
Ri ver near Peru, Nebraska.

My father, Qis Bond, began producing mlk at
our present-day farmng in Avoca, Nebraska, in 1946.
was born in Decenber of 1960 and was raised on the
Bonderosa Dairy. | worked on the farm the dairy
famly farmsince | was a child. 1've been actively
i nvol ved in many aspects of the dairy industry.

My father and | currently mlk approxi mately
a hundred Hol steins three tines a day. Last year, we
sold over a 1,678,000 pounds of mlk, and | sell to
DFA.

| testify today that during the past three
years the Federal Order 32 has been in place, our O ass
1 sales of mlk have been depressed due to the | ack of
pooling provisions of that Order. This has allowed a
| arge anobunt of mlk to be pooled on our market in
Nebraska. Therefore, this has [owered our utilization.

Qur Cass 1 Uilization has dropped from 35-
t 0-40-percent to the md-to-Iow 20-percent range.
Large anmounts of milk are being pooled in the Centra

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
(301) 565- 0064



© 00 N o o A~ w N P

N NN N NN P P PR R R R R R
g N W N P O ©W 0O N o o0 M W N P O

111
Order wi thout physically being noved, which | owers the
price of the mlk for the producers.

Since Federal Order 32 has been established,
the Central Order has been a dunping ground of mlk in
the nation. The producers in Nebraska do not receive
the benefit of the protection of the Federal O der
System Instead, noney from Nebraska and dairy
producers go to other states, such as M nnesota and
W sconsin and California.

Due to the lack of restrictions on pooling,
the Nebraska dairy farnmers have been hamrered severely.
|"ve been told by dairy co-op nmanagers that we've | ost
as nmuch as 50 to 60 cents a hundredwei ght on our mlKk.
" mnot gaining the benefit fromny product nor is the
Nebraska consuner nor is the Nebraska state econony.

As a Nebraska dairy producer, | cannot afford
the very hard-earned noney to go el sewhere. | believe
that the Federal Order Systemis a good system
However, mlk that is pooled should have a service to
performin that market. This mlk should be required
to be physically noved or if the mlk is pooled, as it
is now, there needs to be transportation charges paid
to the Federal Order, in which the ml|k was pool ed.

Therefore, the transportation costs involving
the mlk -- the hauling of mlIk, if transportation
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charges was assessed, this as a sinple tool alone would
elimnate and reduce a | arge amount of mlk that does
not performa service on the market.

What we need is a Federal Order System which
nmoves mlk frommlk surplus regions to mlk deficit
regions in an orderly way to service the fluid needs of
the market. The proposal of the Central Federal O der
under the Agriculture Amendnent Act of 1937, as
anended, does do sone good, but they do not go far
enough in correcting the pooling problens.

Eli mnating distant m |k and state-ordered
pooled mlk will alleviate the surplus. Approximtely
78 mllion pounds of mlk every nonth will not be
pool ed on Order 32. There are between 1.4 to 1.6
mllion pounds of mlk pooled every nonth, and why does

the Central Federal Order need an additional 1.4 to 1.6

mllion pounds of mlk when the fluid capacity is only
about 500 mllion pounds? W do not need additiona
m | k.

Then who stands to gain fromthis pooling?
It is certainly not the dairy producers. W currently
have a system of double dipping. Qur mlk is being
pool ed, but it is not being noved. As a result, our
fluid mlk then is greatly reduced in value, when it is
processed in cheese and butter and powder. It
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depreci ates as a Cass 3 and 4 when our product is
finally noved.

Dai ry cooperatives and others create a
conpetitive gane in an attenpt to gain an advantage in
noney. | give testinony to you that the dairy farmers
in Nebraska are literally struggling financially.
Across the nation, dairy farners are rapidly becomng a
thing of the past.

| urgently request these changes to be nade
to the Federal Order to receive a fair and equa
paynent for the product of the dairy and the
mar ket pl ace and no | onger be pitting dairy producers
agai nst each ot her.

Thank you very nuch.

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you, M. Bond.

Are there any questions for M. Bond? M.

Beshore?
CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BESHORE
Q M . Bond, thank you for com ng down here to

testify today.

I want to ask you a question about Proposal 6
that relates to the so-called "advance price" that you
receive in a mlk check every nonth for a portion of
t he proceeds fromthe production.
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Have you noticed any change in that rate of
paynment that's received on the first check since
January 20007

A Seens like it takes longer to get it.

Q Have you noticed that it is a | ower
per cent age of your total paynent for the nonth?

A Yeah. | noticed that, also.

Q Wbul d you support Proposal 6, which is
intended to restore the rate of paynent on that check
to what it was before; that is, the first check would
be the sane portion of your total receipts for the
nonth that it had been before?

A | think that would be a lot hel pful. There's
| ess specul ation of what's going to be comng in for
t he next check, and you'd have a better idea of what --

about what your cash flow is.

Q So, that would assist you in --

A In paying bills and managi ng and all those
t hi ngs.

Q You nmade sone comments with respect to

transportation charges for the delivery of mlk that is
pool ed on Order 32 but not delivered.

Did | understand you to be expressing the
view that mlk which is distant fromthe market in
essence is -- unless there's a transportation charge,
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as you indicated, assessed, it's not providing value to
the market at the location that it's at, but it's
t aki ng val ue fromthe market?

A That's right. Not only is the mlk not being
transported, but since it's going into our market, it
| owers our class utilization, it |owers our price, and
then we end up paying for that transportation from our
funds, and it goes other places.

So, the producers in the state are getting
hurt mghtily two different ways. One, you're paying
for a product that's not being delivered,
transportation costs, and it's never even left really
t he paperwork, and the other thing, nmy Cass 1 sales,
whi ch is the highest paynent we can get, is your
drinking mlk. W're not getting the benefit because a
ot of the mlk has to go to |ower classes. So, it

lowers us in two different ways.

Q So, your utilization under the Order is
reduced?
A It is reduced, yes.

Q Do you know what Order you were delivering to

bef ore?
A 65.
Q Whi ch was the Nebraska, was it not?
A Ri ght .
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MR. BESHORE: Ckay. Thank you, M. Bond.

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you, M. Beshore.

Are there other questions for M. Bond?

(No response)

JUDGE BAKER: Let the record reflect that
t here are none.

Thank you very nuch, M. Bond.

THE W TNESS: Thank you

(Wher eupon, the wi tness was excused.)

JUDGE BAKER | think the other person who
approached ne with respect to testifying out of turn is
M. Rex DeFrain.

Wher eupon,

REX H DeFRAI N
havi ng been first duly sworn, was called as a w tness
herein and was exam ned and testified as foll ows:

JUDGE BAKER: Be seated, please.

DI RECT TESTI MONY

THE WTNESS: First of all, Your Honor, |'d
like to thank you for allowing us to nove early in the
agenda. Being dairy producers, it seens |like no matter
how far away we get from hone, we're always expected to
be honme at night to do the chores. So, we appreciate
t hat .

Jerry and | arrived in Kansas City this
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norning at a quarter after 3. So, if our testinony's a
little sluggish, | apologize.

My nane is Rex DeFrain. | ama dairy
producer from South Central Nebraska. M w fe Debbie
and | began our own operation in 1974, after purchasing
the farmfromny father. He had started in the
production of Gade A mlk in 1954,

When ny wife and | purchased the dairy in
1974, we started with a herd of 14 m | king cows and
repl acenents. Today, our herd consists of a 140
regi stered Holstein cows and a 120 repl acenent Heifers.

W have been a nenber of the Dairy Co-Qp
System for 27 years, beginning wwth Md-Anerica
Dai rynmen, and in the past few years nmarketing our mlk
t hrough Dairy Farners of Anerica, DFA

| currently serve on the Central Area Counci
Board of Directors of DFA, but | amhere today to
represent hundreds of individual producers who have a
vested interest in the Federal M|k Market Orders and
the inpact that the pooling of mlk across Order I|ines
has made on their m |k checks.

Nebraska, the state in which | produce mlKk,
is not coomonly referred to as a dairy state. However,
the dairy industry is the sixth |argest econom c factor
we have, and dairy is the third | argest consuner of
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utilities in Nebraska.

As is the sane for other regions of the
country, we continue to | ose dairy-producing units due
to a variety of factors. One of these factors is the
negati ve inpact that pooling of mlk on our MIk Order,
Order 32, fromother Federal Orders has had.

When | first heard that there was going to be
a hearing on the possibility of amendi ng the pooling
provisions, | thought it would be interesting to set in
and hear the proposals. Then | was approached by sone
producers and asked if | would give testinony from our
perspective and that is why | am here.

| requested a copy of the proposals fromthe
Mar ket Adm nistrator's Ofice in Lenexa, Kansas, and
have spent considerable tinme going over these ideas.
Wiile | was exam ning the proposals listed in the
Federal Register, | canme across what | consider sone
very interesting facts.

One of these is listed under the Subtitle
"Suppl enentary Information", and this reads as foll ows,
and | quote, "Actions under the Federal MIk Order
Program are subject to the Regulatory Flexibility Act.
This Act seeks to ensure that within the statutory
authority of a program the regulatory and
i nformati onal requirenments are tailored to the size and
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nature of small businesses.

For the purpose of the Act, a dairy farmis a
smal | business if it has an annual gross revenue of
| ess than $750,000. Most parties subject to a MIKk
Order are considered as a small business.™

My interpretation of this statenent is that
in an age of large corporate farns, it is the desire of
our Governnent to ensure that the smaller producers
remain an active and vital part of our national
econonmny.

The proposals to the Central Federal Order
under Agricultural Marketing Agreenent Act of 1937, as
anended, do sone good, but in our opinion don't go far
enough in correcting the pooling problem

Elimnating the distant mlk and state O der
pooled mlIk wll help sone. Approxinmately 70 to 80
mllion pounds per nonth woul d not be pool ed on Federal
Order 32. However, as you look at the big picture, 1.4
to 1.6 billion pounds being pool ed each nonth now, this
woul d be a small percentage.

The Central Federal Order has approxi mately
500 mllion pounds of fluid mlk plant capacity. Wy
then do we need 1.4 to 1.6 billion pounds of ml k?

This pooling is being done as a gane between co-ops and
others to gain dollars out of a market and gain a
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conpetitive advantage over each other. They have
created a market that really doesn't exist in the rea
world. In the process, you have wi nners and | osers
with some dairy farmfamlies being negatively
af f ect ed.

M| k being pool ed needs to service and
performin the market and be delivered to that market.
Thi s paper chase of mlk being pooled with very little
cost is hurting the market.

If mlk is being pooled on the market as it
is now and not being delivered, there needs to be a
transportation charge paid to the Order in which the
mlk is being pool ed.

In the real world, there are costs involved
in transporting mlk. The average cost for noving
fluid mlk is $1.80 per loaded mle. This equates to
. 036 cents per hundred pounds of mlk per mle or, for
a typical 1,000-nile haul, would cost $3.60 per hundred
pounds of ml k.

Most handl ers figure they can only nove m |k
250 to 300 m | es before condensing the mlk becones
economcally practical. However, condensed m |k cannot
be used for fluids. MIk which is transported | ong
di stances increases in tenperature and has reduced
shelf life, also.
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These things alone would elimnate a | ot of
pool i ng because the cost of transportation would
out wei gh the advantages. This would elimnate or at
| east reduce the mlk that doesn't performor service a
market. It would create a fair and equitabl e market
for dairy farms and allow these farnms to get noney from
the market and not out of each other's pockets.

W need a Federal Order System which noves
mlk froma mlk surplus region to a mlk deficit
region in an orderly fashion to service the fluid
needs. We now have a system of double dipping, mlk
bei ng pool ed but not noving, then processed in cheese
or butter powder and then bei ng noved.

| ama strong advocate of Federal Mk
Mar keting Orders and amin favor of nmaintaining their
exi stence, but let's anend the provisions in Federal
Order 32 to have a positive inpact on dairy producers
and give ny sons the opportunity to operate our
operation for decades to cone.

Thank you.

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you, M. DeFrain.

Are there any questions? Yes, M. Beshore.

CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BESHORE
Q Thank you for com ng and presenting your
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testi mony, M. DeFrain.
"Il ask you the sane questions | asked M.
Bond with respect to the partial paynent check. Have
you noticed since January of 2000 that that rate has
declined fromwhat it was previously?

A Yes, | have.

Q And woul d you support Proposal 6 advanced by
DFA and others to attenpt to restore that rate to what
it was previously?

A Yes, | woul d.

Q And would that -- would that be hel pful in
your operation?

A It would be helpful in the fact that, as
Jerry said, | hate to be repetitive, but you know
closer to what the final pay price is going to be, how
many dollars you're going to collect for the nonth.

| think this is -- this would be nade
possi bl e very easily because actually when we get an
advance check, we've already delivered 30 days worth of
mlk. So, | think it could be done very easily. It
woul d be easier for ne to keep ny bills paid. | have a
ot of bills that come due on the 15th or on the 25th,
which is typically when the advance cones out.

So, yes, | think it would be hel pful.

MR. BESHORE: Thank you, Your Honor.
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JUDGE BAKER: Thank you, M. Beshore.

Are there any other questions for M.
DeFrai n?

(No response)

JUDGE BAKER: Let the record reflect there
are none.

Thank you very nmuch, sir, for your testinony.

(Wher eupon, the wi tness was excused.)

JUDGE BAKER M. Beshore, you are the
Proponents of the First Proposals. Do you wish to
proceed now?

| have to tell you that |I have been advised
that in order to neet the convenience of the hotel, we
shoul d have our | uncheon hour beginning at 12:15.

MR. BESHORE: M. Hollon is our first
wtness. He will address Proposals 1 through 5. At
this time, | should say he has substantial material,
exhibits and statenents which are avail able for
di stribution and making them available wll take, you
know, a few mnutes to just physically do that.

We'd like to have them nade avail abl e before
he testifies, so that everyone has themfor the
conveni ence of reference and use during his testinony.
So, we need a couple of mnutes to do that before he
testifies.
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JUDGE BAKER: kay. Fine.
MR. BESHORE: M. Vetne also was waiting in

['ine.
JUDGE BAKER: Very well. Thank you.
M. Vetne?
Coul d you be distributing themnow, M.
Beshor e?

MR. BESHORE: We'd be happy to, if it's not
going to distract everybody from whatever the business
at hand that M. Vetne has.

JUDGE BAKER  Very well. M. Vetne?

MR. VETNE: Your Honor, before we begin with
the Proponents' testinony, 1'd like to address three
procedural issues and then to ask the Adm nistrative
Law Judge and the parties to respond.

The first issue | want to address is Notice
of Hearing. By Rules of Practice as well as the
Adm ni strative Procedure Act, Notice of Hearing before
a decision can be nmade, a rule can be changed, is
required to go to the interested parties.

There has been testinony of sone notice
given, but there's al so been consi derable testinony
that, it doesn't matter whether it's by design or not,
that the Departnment was and is aware that the
proposal s, if adopted, sonme of the proposals, if
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adopted, would affect the price paid to producers in
ot her markets, producers that aren't pool ed, producers
t hat received no notice, and there was no nmechanismto
get themnotice, and to plants that aren't on the 300
or so person mailing list that receive mlk fromthose
producers.

This woul d i nclude, for exanple, but not
limted to i ndependent producers |ocated in Wsconsin,
M nnesota, and ot her | ocations.

JUDGE BAKER  Excuse ne one mnute, M.

Vet ne.

Wul d you pl ease see that the distribution is
made al so to the court reporter and to nme? Thank you.

Go ahead, M. Vetne.

MR, VETNE: It would include, also, producers
and handlers -- let ne try to explain what -- the
proposal s here, as described and as have been descri bed
at two prior hearings on simlar issues, are proposals
that woul d have an effect both in the market subject to
the hearing as well as other narkets.

Once changes are made in one place, changes
correspondingly are made in other places. You can
i mgi ne the persons affected as a row of dom nos and
the notice the first domno. Notice was given to the
first domno that there was going to be a change, but
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notice was not given to succeedi ng dom nos that will be
af f ect ed.

I think the Notice of Hearing, based on the
testimony of M. Stukenberg, and the description of the
direction, if not the quantity, of change that wl|
occur to producers and handl ers in other markets was
fully inadequate to continue this hearing, and | would
like to request, therefore, that the hearing be
di scontinued for |ack of adequate notice on that basis.

Secondly, the -- again because of the dom no
ef fect and because this -- this hearing addresses
guestions of policy that are national in scope, there
have been -- this is the third of a series of hearings,
and in the first hearing in Mnneapolis early this
sunmer, the Proponent, DFA, expressed a desire to nake
a change in national policy and do it Order-by-Order.

The effect of that is to, whether by design,
stealth or inadvertence, is to give notice and provide
notice to a limted group of people and exclude notice
to a large group of people who will be affected not
only directly in the incone |evel they receive but also
in the policy that may be set as precedent governing
ot her markets.

JUDGE BAKER: (Go ahead.

MR. VETNE: kay. For those two reasons, |
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woul d request a ruling or at least -- and if the ruling
-- well, first of all, 1'd like to request the
Government to respond and then request the Court to
rul e, based on unrebutted and unrebuttabl e evidence
that the Notice has been inadequate, that this hearing
shoul d not proceed until notice can be given not only
to those who will be directly affected by pricing
changes but al so those who will be directly affected by
pol i cy changes who have not yet been given notice in
any of the three proceedings.

I do have two additional points of procedure
to raise, but we'll do themone at a tine.

JUDGE BAKER: Well, why don't you go ahead
and raise themright now, M. Vetne? Al the
procedural ones, please.

MR. VETNE: That was Nunber 1.

Nunber 2 is, there are proposals nade at this
hearing, and the Departnent has said that they take no
position on -- on the proposals. However, it doesn't
make nmuch sense to go to hearing on a proposal that is
not authorized by the Agricul tural Marketing Agreenent
Act .

There are several proposals here that woul d
discrimnate and differentiate on -- between producers,
di stant and nearby producers, in either the anount of

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
(301) 565- 0064



© 00 N o g A~ w N P

N NN N NN P P R R R R R Rp R p
g N W N P O © 0O N O o M W N P O

128
revenue they receive or the anmount of costs that they
must incur to be associated with this market.

That was addressed in a series of cases,

Blair v. Freeman and Zuber v. Allen. I don't know if

t he Departnent has taken a -- has nmade a prelimnary
opi ni on concerning the | awful ness of these proposals.
It certainly did not appear in the hearing notice, and
if it did, perhaps we could address the reasoning.

But based on the decisions in Zuber and
Blair, it does not appear that proposals that would
di scrim nate between producers, based on nearby or
di stant |ocations to the market, are [awful, and
t herefore evidence concerni ng such proposals woul d not
be rel evant.

So, | would ask the Departnent, if it has
made a determ nation as to | awful ness, to share that
wth the record, so that we may tailor our testinony to
address that |egal opinion; in the absence of which, |
woul d ask and naeke a notion orally in Iimne to exclude
testinony relating to those proposals that would
di scrim nate between producers on the basis of nearby
or distant |location fromthe market.

And the third aspect of ny procedura
presentation has to do with a specific provision in the
Agricul tural Marketing Agreenent Act, in Section
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8(c)(5)(b), called the "Trade Barrier Provision", which

was addressed in the Suprene Court case of Lehigh
Val |l ey.

Lehigh Valley dealt with partially-regul ated
pl ants and conpensatory paynents. However, the Trade
Barrier Provision is not limted to Class 1 use or
conpensatory paynents. |It's addressed to any provision
whi ch prohibits or, in the case of ml|k used for
manufacturing, tends to limt in any manner mlk from
anot her production area in the subject Marketing Area.
It would include manufacturing mlk. It would include
-- well, it would include Gade A m |k used for
manuf act uri ng.

Agai n, the proposals specifically are
directed at and would result in, if adopted, the type
of barrier prohibited expressly by Section 8(c)(5)(b).
Agai n, the hearing should not be held on proposal s that
are not authorized by the Agricultural Marketing
Agreenent Act, and this hearing should not receive
evi dence concerni ng such proposal s under 8(c)(5)(b),
and | also ask for a ruling of the Court in response to
a Motion In Limne to include proposals that are
directed at such -- to include evidence supporting
proposal s that are directed at such unl awful proposals.

Those are the three issues. Thank you.
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JUDGE BAKER: Very well. Thank you, M.

Vet ne.

M. Cooper, do you have any response that you
wi sh to make?

MR. COOPER  Yes, Your Honor.

Wth regard to the first issue about notice,
the only unrebutted evidence |I've heard that anybody
hasn't been notified is M. Vetne, you showed up here
saying that he hasn't been notified or sonebody he
knows who's unknown hasn't been notified.

The point in fact is that the Notice was
given in court with the procedures included in the Code
of Federal Regulations and in accord with the Notice
provi sions required by statute.

Most hearings -- nost rul emaking actions in
t he Governnent, unlike these formal rul emaki ng actions
that we take, are just done by Notice and conmment with
just the Notice being published in the Federa
Regi ster, w thout even Notices to Governors, Interested
Parties and all this. That has | ong been held to be
sufficient and legal, and the procedures we use in this
proceedi ng go far beyond that.

Furthernore, there's been no evidence that
anybody who's interested hasn't received Notice. The
Federal Regi ster has | ong been held to be adequate
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notice without the rest of these type notifications
that we do here.

The fact that sonmebody nay be affected, well,
' m sure sonebody is always affected or could be
affected or specul ates they mght be affected if
somet hi ng changes in any particular Oder. |If there's
a change sonmewhere in California, sonebody in M chigan
sits there and says is there a way | can take advant age
of that and maybe no. Mybe sonebody in Texas can. |
mean, the whole country is sonewhat inter-related.

So, | nmean, to say that it could possibly
i npact sonebody sonewhere, you know, is the sane as
it's always been for the |ast 50 years.

Wth regard to his other two issues here,

di scrim nation between producers in 8(c)(5)(b), I nean,
the cases he's tal king about dealt with a nearby
differential and dealt wi th conpensatory paynents,

nei ther of which are in issue here.

If he thinks any of the proposals here are in
viol ation of those sections, he certainly has the right
toraise it on brief. He has the right to -- if any of
the provisions are adopted that he thinks are illegal,
he has the right to sue about them There's no court
case hol ding any of these provisions are illegal.

Whet her they are or whether they're not is sonething
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t hat woul d be determ ned down the road.

Certainly we don't necessarily see that
there's any discrimnation anong producers by the fact
that all mlk under an Order is not subject to exactly
t he sane requirenents.

The purpose of having Ml k Oders in the
first place is to supply an adequate supply of mlk to
a market. Now, certain mlk that services the market
obviously is included in the pool of that market.
Sonetinmes mlk that doesn't service the market is not.
It has nothing to do with the particul ar producer
i nvol ved. The producer may have m |k here, he may have
cows there, you know.

The Orders don't deal with producers in that
sense, they deal with an adequate supply of mlk
servicing the market, and so, | really don't see that
there is any discrimnation against particul ar
producers involved in this thing, and secondly, | don't
see that the cases and sections he cited have anything
to do with the issues raised here.

There has al ways been performance standards
under various MIk Marketing Orders that had to be net.
So, | would urge that the notions that M. Vetne has
advanced be deni ed.

JUDGE BAKER: M. Cooper, anpong his requests
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and his notions is that the Departnent nmake a statenent
as to whether or not it has taken into consideration an
al | eged di scrimnation anong producers, based upon
di stance, nearby and distant distances.

MR. COOPER: | think I just answered that,
Your Honor. We don't see any discrimnation between
producers.

JUDGE BAKER:  Yes.

MR. COOPER So, there's nothing to take into
account .

JUDGE BAKER  Yes. In other words, you have
taken it into account? That's what |'mtrying to get
at .

MR. COOPER: Well, since there is no
discrimnation, there was nothing to take into account.

JUDGE BAKER: Very well. M. -- yes, M.
Engl i sh?

MR ENG.ISH If | may rise to the one
[imted i ssue that M. Vetne raised as to the Notice,
Your Honor, and nmaybe |I can sinplify this.

7 CFR Section 900.4 provides the rules for
institution of proceedings, and in particul ar,

900.4(b), the heading is "G ving Notice of Hearing and
Suppl enental Publicity".
"The Adm nistrator shall give or cause to be
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gi ven notice of hearing in the follow ng manner: (1)
by publication of the Notice of Hearing in the Federa
Regi ster; (2) by the mailing of a true copy of the
Notice of the Hearing to each of the persons known to
the Adm nistrator to be interested; (3) the press
rel ease; and (4) the governors."

So, there's a Category B-1, B-2, B-3 and B-4.
It's inportant to note the heading, "G ving Notice to
Hearing and Suppl enental Publicity", because then
there's a B-2, and B-2 says, "Legal notice of the
heari ng shall be deened to be given if notice is given
in a manner provided by Paragraph B-1.1", which is the
Federal Order Notice, and failure to give notice in the
manner provided in Paragraph B-1.2, which was the copy
of the notice by the Market Adm nistrator to persons
interested, known to be interested, or B-1.3, which is
the press release or B.1-4, which is the governors'
statenent, failure to give notice in those sections
shall not affect the legality of a notice.

Now, Your Honor, it is perfectly clear by the
provi sion that Notice of the Federal Order Provision,
the remai nder is Supplenental Publicity, and there is
-- even if the Market Admnistrator did fail, and |'m
not conceding that he did, but even if there were any
failures, you don't even need to go that far for an
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evidentiary record, the section under which this
hearing is called, 900.4, is very clear that the notice
is only the Federal Register.

It's in nmy Federal Register and that's enough
for ne.

JUDGE BAKER: Very well. Thank you very
much.

M. Vetne?

MR. VETNE: Your Honor, of course, the Notice
provisions in the Rules of Practice do not preenpt the
Adm ni strative Procedure Act and do not preenpt due
process rul es.

The fact that producers in other areas who
are not regul ated under Order 32 has been establi shed.
It is not speculation. It is -- it is fact,
directionally if not quantitatively.

The adequacy of this Notice. Now, we know
t hat producers -- those producers didn't get a physica
copy of the Notice, but even if -- evenif it is deened
to be adequate to publish in the Federal Register a
notice that affects dairy farnmers, and if you assune
that dairy farners el sewhere read the Federal Register
on a daily basis, the notice has to be informative.

I think we can take official notice of the
fact that dairy regulations are of their nature obtuse.
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One court has referred to them as of |abrythine
conplexity. Notice is given -- notice is adequate
under the APA and under the due process, if it gives
you a clue, just a clue as to howthis is going to
affect you, but there's nothing in any |anguage of any
notice that is nmade part of Exhibits 1, 2 and 3 that
woul d gi ve anyone readi ng the Federal Register or
receiving it in their mailbox living in Wsconsin, not
pooled in Order 33, a clue that this is going to
depress their blend prices, that this is going to
depress their PPD

If that kind of informative notice had been
given, it would be adequate, but nothing gives that
kind of notice. It's not just the rules, it's what's
going to happen as a result of these rules, if adopted.
That's the kind of notice that is adequate and that is
what is absent.

JUDGE BAKER: Very well. Thank you very
much, M. Vetne.

| have considered -- | have consi dered your
notions, and with respect thereto, | amruling that
there is no inadequacy as to the Notice of Hearing
relating to this hearing. Accordingly, that is denied.

| amalso ruling that with respect to the
matters raised as to any position which the Departnment
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may or may not have taken with respect to all eged
di scrim nati on between nearby and di stant markets, that
is not appropriate to bring up at this time nor do |
believe there was any unl awful ness involved init, and
accordingly, that is denied.

Wth respect to your argunment pertaining to
trade barriers and the | awful ness with respect to how
it wuld affect this hearing, that is denied.

In other words, your notions and your notions
in their entirety are denied.

That brings us to the tine for our afternoon
[ unch hour, and we'll take one hour for |unch.

(Wher eupon, at 12:15 p.m, the hearing was
recessed, to reconvene this sane day, Wdnesday,

Novenber 14th, 2001, at 1:15 p.m)
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AFTERNOON SESSI ON

1:22 p. m

JUDGE BAKER: W are now in order after our
| uncheon recess.

M. Beshore, | believe you' re going to start
presenting your evidence on behalf of your Proponents.

MR, BESHORE: Yes. Thank you, Your Honor.

At this time, we would Iike to proceed by
calling M. Elvin Hollon as a wtness.

JUDGE BAKER  Very well. M. Hollon?

Wher eupon,

ELVI N HOLLON
havi ng been first duly sworn, was called as a w tness
herein and was exam ned and testified as foll ows:

MR. BESHORE: Before M. Hollon testifies,
Your Honor, if I mght, we would like to mark as the
next two consecutive exhibit nunmbers, --

JUDGE BAKER 8 and 9.

MR, BESHORE: -- 8 and 9. Nunber 8 being a
statenent regarding Proposals 1 through 5, which is 35
pages in | ength.

M. Hollon -- we would like -- we would |ike
to make this an exhibit to the record. M. Hollon is
going to present nost of it but not read all of it
verbatim
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Then we have a set of exhibits wth respect
to Proposals 1 through 5 which is under a separate
cover, which the cover |ooks simlar to the statenent,
and we'd like to ask that that document be marked as
Exhi bit 9.
Wthin Exhibit 9, there are 19 separatel y-
i ndexed docunents which are tables and charts which M.
Hollon will refer to and review in the course of his
t esti nony.
JUDGE BAKER  Very well. They shall be so
mar ked, M. Beshore, for identification, and you'l
nove theminto evidence |ater on?
MR. BESHORE: Yes. Yes, we wll.
JUDGE BAKER: Thank you.
(The docunents referred to
were marked for identification
as Exhibit Nunbers 8 and 9.)
MR, BESHORE: Thank you.
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BESHORE
Q Ckay. M. Hollon, would you identify
yoursel f, give us your nane and address and your
enpl oynent affiliation initially, please?
A My nane is Elvin Hollon. | work for Dairy
Farmers of America, enployed here in Kansas City. |'ve
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been with Dairy Farmers of Anerica or its predecessor
since 1979.

Q M. Hollon, what is your educationa
background?
A | have a Bachel or of Science degree from
Loui siana State University in Dairy Science
Manuf acturing, a Master's degree from Loui siana State
University in Agricultural Econom cs.
Q Have you previously offered testinony as a
witness with respect to Federal MIk O der hearings?
A | have.
Q Have you testified in other governnment and
regul atory forums over the years?
A | have.
Q Ckay.
MR. BESHORE: | would Iike to offer M.
Hol |l on as an expert in agricultural economcs and mlk
mar keti ng and propose that his testinony be -- be given
as an expert.
JUDGE BAKER: Are there any questions or
obj ecti ons?
(No response)
JUDGE BAKER: Hearing none, he shall be so
recogni zed, M. Beshore.
MR. BESHORE: Thank you, Your Honor.

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
(301) 565- 0064



© 00 N o o A~ wWw N P

N NN N NN P P P R R R R R R
g N W N P O ©W 0O N o o M W N P O

141
BY MR BESHCRE:

Q Now, M. Hollon, do you have a statenment with
respect to Proposals 1 through 5 in the hearing notice,
whi ch has been marked for identification as Exhibit 8,
to present at this tine?

A | do.

Q Ckay. And | understand that you will be
delivering as your testinony verbati mnuch of what is
in Exhibit 8, but in sonme cases, you will be not
reading all the quoted materials and nmeki ng sone ot her
edits in the testinony in terns of it being presented,
and we want to have it in the record as if it had been
read in full, is that correct?

A That is correct.

Q Ckay. Thank you.

M. Hollon, you may proceed.

A St atenent of Proponents. The Proponents of
Proposal 1 through 6 are Dairy Farners of Anerica,

Inc., Prairie Farns Dairy, Inc., and Swi ss Valley Farns
Cooperative. Dairy Farner of Anerica, DFA is a
menber - owned cooperative of 16,905 farns that produce
mlk in 46 states.

DFA pools mlk by 10 of the 11 Federal MIk
Mar keting Orders, including the Central Federal O der.
Prairie Farns Dairy, Inc., is a menber-owned
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cooperative of 800 farnms that produce mlk in six
states. Prairie Farnms pools mlk on two of the 11
Federal M Ik Marketing Orders, including the Central
Federal Order.

Swi ss Valley Farns Cooperative is a nenber-
owned cooperative of 1,500 farns that produce mlk in
four states. Swiss Valley Farns Cooperative pools mlk
on three of the 11 Federal M|k Mrketing O ders,
including the Central Federal Order.

The Proponents are ardent supporters of
Federal M1k Marketing Orders, and we believe that
w thout them dairy farmers' economc livelihood would
be much worse. Federal Orders are econonically-proven
mar keting tools for dairy farners.

The central issue of this hearing is
providing for orderly marketing and econom cal ly
justifying the appropriate perfornmance qualifications
for sharing in the marketw de proceeds of the Order is
the heart of the Order system

If these issues are not addressed properly
systemn de, Orders will be jeopardized. That woul d be
detrinental to all the nenbers of our group, both in
their day-to-day farmenterprises and the mlKk
marketing -- I'msorry -- mlk processing investnents
t hat they have nade.
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Summary of Proposals for this Hearing. The
Proponents have an interest in the proposals being
heard at this hearing. These anmendnents are being
requested by producers due to the present-day dynam cs
surroundi ng the pooling of mlk on Federal Order -- on
Federal M Ik Marketing Orders.

We are the Proponents of Proposals 1 through
6 and will present testinony and evi dence to support
themat this hearing. Proposals 1 through 5 deal wth
t he open pooling of large volunes of mlk from
| ocations, nost of which are so distant to the market,
that we question if they would ever regularly serve the
mar ket in any capacity.

Ml k distant to the market needs to have
addi tional performance requirenents that are workable
and consi stent systemm de with Federal Order policy.
Proposal 7 and 8 also deal with mlk from distant
| ocations. Comments on these proposals will be nade
fromindividual nmenbers of our group and do not refl ect
any group consensus.

Proposal 6 reflects the position that the use
of the |owest prior nonth's advance class price to set
t he advance paynent to producers is no |onger a
reasonabl e mechani sm Proposal 9 deals w th producer
associ ation issues.
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Qur wi tnesses and their subm ssions are as
follows: M. Hollon, the need for the hearing, the
structure set by Federal Order Reform subm ssion of
testinmony referring to various exhibits and coment on
the Market Adm nistrator exhibits and the specifics and
i ntent of our proposal |anguage.

M. Lee, specific concerns froma cooperative
handl er wth bottling plant operations. M. Hollon
agai n, support for Proposal 6, summary of proposals and
the need for an energency decision. M. Hollon wl]l
of fer testinony on Proposal 7 and conments on Proposa
8 and a nodification to Proposal 5 separately and not
necessarily reflect all the groups' consensus.

Not just the Federal Order 32 issues, wth
regard to Proposals 1 through 3 and 5, we note -- that
should be 1 through 5. W note that the underlying
issue is not just the local Order 32 issue. W have
concerns identical to those expressed by the other
Proponents here and in the Pacific Northwest, Wstern
M deast and Upper M dwest Federal Orders, that mlk in
di stant areas is pooling on the Order and draw ng down
the blend price but not serving the market in a regul ar
form

We find this practice detrinental to our
menbers, our custoners, and the entire Federal Order
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System W plan to express that concern in other
Federal Order hearings and seek a solution that is
consistent and in line with Federal Order principles
syst emw de.

JUDGE BAKER: Excuse nme, M. Holl on.

THE W TNESS: Yes, mm' anf?

JUDGE BAKER: Have any of these other Federal
Order hearings taken this up? Do you know?

THE WTNESS: Yes, nma' am

JUDGE BAKER  They have?

THE WTNESS: Yes, ma' am

JUDGE BAKER: Ch. \When?

THE WTNESS: In Order 30 in May?

MR BESHORE: June.

THE W TNESS: June?

JUDGE BAKER  June.

THE WTNESS: And in Oder 33, about three
weeks ago.

JUDGE BAKER: Ch, all right. Thank you very
much.

THE WTNESS: The central issue in each case
is the interface between the pricing service altered by
Federal Order Reform hereafter called "refornf, and
t he pooling provisions found in each Order.

These -- those rel ati onshi ps were changed by

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
(301) 565- 0064



© 00 N o g A~ w N P

N NN N NN P P P R R R R Rp R p
g N W N P O ©W 0O N o o M W N P O

146
reform The Iink between performance and pooling was
altered and needs reviewed. Organizations, including
DFA, and many of the other proponents of these
proposal s here have noved quickly to take advantage of
t hese changes in Order rules.

I ndeed, in the conpetitive dairy econony, if
a conpetitor nmakes a pooling decision that results in
i ncreased funds, you nust attenpt to do the sane thing
or face a nore difficult conpetitive position.

I ndi vi dual organizations cannot unilaterally disarm

We think this process of extensive distant
mar ket open pooling is inconsistent with Federal Order
policy and clearly disparaged in the reformrecord.
DFA is supporting simlar proposals that have been
submtted in the Proposed Order 124 hearing to refl ect
t hi s phil osophy.

DFA and Prairie Farns have already offered
proposal s and presented testinony and evidence in the
Order 33 hearing consistent with the principles
advanced here, and DFA has done so in the Oder 30
heari ng.

Furthernore, the Proponents attenpted to gain
sone relief fromthe pressure on the blend price when
the pooling of distant mlk on Order 32 through a
request to the Market Administrator to use his

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
(301) 565- 0064



© 00 N o g A~ wWw N PP

N NN N NN P P R R R R R Rp R
g N W N P O ©W 0O N o o0 M W N kB O

147
di scretionary authority. W asked that to better align
performance standards wth market reality, he reduce
the diversion [imts.

However, our request was denied primarily
because sonme of the very liberal Oder 32 performance
provi sions which were included in the Oder as a result
of reformwere not subject to Market Adm ni strator
di scretion, thus would circunvent our request. Severa
of our proposals here today seek to renedy this issue.

Federal Order Reform The final rule,
publ i shed on Septenber 1, 1999, in the Federal Register
cul mnated the Federal Reform-- Federal Order Reform
process. It was a | engthy process but produced needed
beneficial results for the industry which could not
have been acconplished wi thout the informal rul enaking
process.

Through it, the nunber of Federal Orders were
reduced from 31 Orders in Marketing Areas down to 11.

It provided clear rule for what constitutes a market.
The pricing provisions were inproved, nodernized and
made nore uniform and transparent across the O der
system

A nore common cl assification and
standardi zati on of the provisions common to all Oders
was instituted. The Option 1-A Differential Service
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that was the result of extreme conputer nodeling and
was extensively evaluated by university, governnent and
i ndustry persons, a superior Class 1 price -- Cass 1
advance price nmechani sm the higher-up pricing
mechani smfor Cass 1 and common nul ti pl e conponent
pricing provisions across all Orders, using conmponent
pricing, were all valuable inprovenents to the Federa
Order Program

Even though the process was | engthy and
t horough, the dairy industry is dynam c and changi ng,
and we currently find that provisions of the Order need
review and alteration. Areas that need review include
the pricing provisions that were addressed in the d ass
3 and 4 hearings held last Spring.

The conbi nation of the absolute versus a
relative price service that we now have and this
interface with the prevailing pooling provisions is an
i ssue that is now plaguing the industry and is being
addressed in this and other hearings.

Federal Order Benefits and Principles.

Federal Orders offer both benefits -- offer benefits to
bot h producers and handl ers and have al ways operated in
a del i berate and organi zed manner, gui ded by basic
econom ¢ principles.

Two primary benefits of Orders are to all ow
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producers to gain fromthe orderly marketing of mlk
and to share in the proceeds through marketw de
pooling. Oderly marketing enbodies principles of
common terns and pricing that attracts mlk to nove to
t he hi ghest-val ued market when needed and cl ears the
mar ket when not needed.

Mar ket w de pooling allows qualified producers
to share in the returns fromthe market equitably and
in a manner that provides incentives to supply the
market in a nost efficient manner.

The Concept of a Market. Fundanental to
Federal Order Principles are the concepts of a market,
Mar keti ng Area market and the concept of perfornmance to
the market in order to be qualified to share in the
returns fromthat market.

The Federal MIk Order Statistics Annua
Summary defines a Marketing Area as "a desi gnated
trading area within which the handling of mlk is
regul ated by the Federal Order.”

It is clearly an identified geographic area
and defined deliberately by a set of rules for a
specific purpose. In every set of Federal Order
regul ations, Section 2 defines the geographic area of
the Marketing O der.

Federal Order Reform sought out industry
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comment on Marketing Areas, established seven criteria
for their establishnent, and then used those criteria
to divide nuch of the |lower 48 States into 11 Federa
Order Markets.

The criteria and the Departnent's explanation
then taken directly fromthe Federal Rule are as
follows: "The sane seven primary criteria, known as a
set of rules, that, as were used in the two prelimnary
reports and the proposed rule, were used to determ ne
whi ch markets exhibit a sufficient degree of
association in terns of sales, procurenent and
structural relationships to warrant consolidation in
the specific purpose.” The final rule explainedthe
criteria as follows.

At this point, | would drop down to Point
Nunmber 2, Overl apping Areas of MIk Supply. "This
criteria applies principally to areas in which mjor
proportions of the mlk supply are shared between nore
than one Order. The conpetitive factors affecting
Orders” -- I'msorry -- "The conpetitive factors
affecting the cost of a handler's mlk supply are
i nfl uenced by the | ocation of the supply. The pooling
of mlk produced within the sanme procurenent area under
the same Order facilitates the uniform pricing of
producer mlk. Consideration of the criteria of
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over | appi ng procurenent areas does not nean that al
areas having overl apped areas of m |k procurenent
shoul d be consol i dat ed.

An area that supplies a m nor proportion of
an adjoining area's mlk supply with a m nor proportion
of its own total mlk production while handl ers | ocated
in the area are engaged in mnimal conpetition with
handl ers | ocated in the adjoining area |ikely does not
a strong enough association with the adjoining area to
requi re consolidation.

In a nunber of the consolidated areas, it
woul d be very difficult, if not inpossible, to find a
mar ket boundary across which significant quantities of
mlk are not procured for other Marketing Areas. In
such cases, analysis was done to determ ne where the
m ni mal anmount of route disposition overlap between
areas occurred, and the criteria of overlapping route
di sposition generally was given greater weight than
over | apping areas of mlk supply.” Enphasis added.

Looki ng down to Footnote 1, "M Ik procurenent
areas were considered as a criteria for Order 32
boundari es, and the distant areas in question here were
not found to be part of the Order's Marketing Area."

Movi ng back up to the top of the page, "Sone
anal ysis was done to determ ne whether m |k pool ed on
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adj acent markets reflects actual novenents of mlk
bet ween markets or whether the variations in mlKks
pool ed under a given Order may indicate that sonme mlk
is pooled to take advantage of price differences rather
t han because it is needed for Class 1 use in other
mar kets." Enphasi s added.

Dr oppi ng down to Footnote 2, "Open pooling
was reviewed and was not considered to be a criteria
for deciding Marketing Area, and certain areas were not
put together as markets, if their basis of commonality
was for econom c paper pooling versus neeting the
criteria established.

Addi ti onal anal ysis was done to nmake sure
whet her or not m |k supplies that were associated with
an Order, including those that were paper-pool ed,
really should be a factor in determning the Marketing
Ar ea.

In the case of Order 32, the distant mlk in
guestion here was not included in the Marketing Area."

Ski ppi ng over to the next page, Page 7,
bottomthird of the page, beginning with the paragraph
that's headed "Central", "The Consolidated Centra
Order Marketing Area nerges the current nine Federa
Order Marketing Areas of Central Illinois, nost of
Southern Illinois and Eastern M ssouri, nost of
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Sout hwest Plains, Geater Kansas City, lowa, Eastern
Sout h Dakota, Nebraska, Western |owa, Western Col orado,
and Eastern Col orado. (Federal Orders 50, 32, 106, 64,
79, 76, 65, 134 and 137, respectively.)"

Movi ng to the Consol i dated Sout heast

Mar keting Area, there are six Mssouri counties
currently in Federal Order 32, and from Order 106, 11

Nor t hwest Ar kansas counti es and 22 Southern M ssour

Count i es.

Order 106 counties in Kansas and Ckl ahoma
remain in the Central Market. In addition, sone
counties in Colorado, Illinois, lowa, Kansas, M ssour

and Nebraska that currently are not part of any Order
area included in the Consolidated Central Market.

There are 543 counties and the Cty of St.
Louis, Mssouri, in this Consolidated Area. The
Mar keting Area is changed fromthe proposed rule by the
addition of the Western Col orado Marketing Area and
seven currently unregul ated Col orado counti es.

The elimnation of six currently unregul ated
M ssouri counties and the addition of two partia
counties and the deletion of one partial county for the
pur pose of elimnating inclusion of partial counties.

Ceography. The Consolidated Centra
Mar keti ng Area would include the following territory:
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Col orado, 44 counties, including the 30 Col orado
counties currently in the Eastern Col orado Marketing
Area and the four Col orado counties in the Wstern
Col orado Marketing Area.

Ten currently unregul ated counties, three in
t he sout heast corner of the state between the Eastern
Col orado and Sout hwest Pl ains Marketing Area, and the
central part of the state between the Eastern Col orado
and Western Col orado Marketing Areas are added.

Il1linois, 87 counties, including five of the
six counties currently in the lowa Marketing Area of
the two partial Illinois counties in the Iowa Mrketing
Area, all of Wi teside and none of Jo Daviess are
included in the Central Area.

The 19 counties currently in the Centra
Il1linois Marketing Area, the 49 counties currently in
the Southern Illinois/Eastern M ssouri Mrketing Area,

and eight currently unregul ated adj acent counties in

Southern Illinois and six currently unregul ated
counties in Western Il linois, |ocated between the
current Central Illinois, Southern Illinois, Eastern

M ssouri Order Areas and the M ssissippi R ver.

lowa, 93 counties, including the 68 counties
currently in the lowa Marketing Area, the 17 counties
currently in the Nebraska/ Wstern |owa Marketing Area,
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t he one county currently in the Eastern South Dakota
Mar keting Area, six currently unregul ated counties in
the northwestern part of lowa, and one currently
unregul ated county in the southeastern corner of |owa.

Kansas, the entire state, 105 counties.
M nnesota, the four Southwestern M nnesota counties
that are currently in the Eastern South Dakota
Mar keting Area. M ssouri, 39 counties and one city,
i ncluding six of the counties and one city currently or
in the Southern Illinois/Eastern M ssouri Marketing
Area, and the 20 counties that are currently in the
Greater Kansas City Marketing Area.

The five counties that are currently in the
| owa Marketing Area and eight currently unregul at ed
counties distributed around the center area proposed to
remai n unregul at ed.

Nebraska, 66 counties in the southern and
eastern part of Nebraska, omtting the 11 counties in
t he Panhandl e that are currently part of the
Nebr aska/ Western | owa Marketing Area, and adding five
currently unregul ated counties in the southwest corner
of the state between the Nebraska/Wstern | owa and
Eastern Col orado Marketing Areas and three currently
unregul ated counties in the southwest corner of the
state, between the Nebraska, Western lowa and G eater

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
(301) 565- 0064



© 00 N o g A~ w N P

N NN N NN P P R R R R R Rp R
g N W N P O ©W 0O N o o0 M W N kB O

156
Kansas City Marketing Areas.

Gkl ahoma, the entire state, 77 counties.
Sout h Dakota, the 26 Eastern South Dakota counties,
including the portion of Union County that currently is
in the Nebraska/Wstern |Iowa Marketing Area, that
currently are in the Eastern South Dakota Marketing
Area. Wsconsin, the two Sout hwest W sconsin counties
that are currently -- that currently are in the Iowa
Mar keti ng Area.

The Consolidated Central Marketing Area is
adj acent to the Consolidated Upper Mdwest Order Area
on the North and Northeast, the Consolidated M deast
and Appal achi an Areas on the East, and the Northwest
corner of the Southeast Order Area and the Consol i dated
Sout hwest Area on the South, and the Consol i dated
Western Order Area on the West.

The area north of approximately the western
hal f of the Consolidated Area's al so unregul ated. The
north/ south di stance covered by the area is
approximately 800 mles, from Waterl oo, South Dakota,
to Ardnore, Cklahoma. The east/west extent of the
area, fromthe Indiana/lllinois border to the
Col orado/ Ut ah border, is approximtely 1,200 mles.

Ceographically, the Central Marketing Area
i ncludes a wi de range of topography and climte types,
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rangi ng fromthe Col orado Pl ateau and the Rocky
Mountains in the West to the Central Section of the
M ssissippi River toward the eastern part of the area.

Preci pitation ranges fromless than 15 inches
per year in Denver, Colorado, to nore than 30 inches in
St. Louis, Mssouri. Mst of the area experiences
fairly hot summer tenperatures while w nter
tenperatures vary sonewhat nore than sumrer with col der
W nter tenperatures occurring in the northern and
western parts of the Central Area.

The natural vegetation ranges from desert and
desert scrub in Western Col orado to coniferous forests
in the Rocky Mountains to short grass prairies in
Eastern Col orado through tall grass prairie in Eastern
Sout h Dakota, Nebraska, Kansas, Cklahoma, and nmuch of
I1linois to broad | eaf forests on both side of the
M ssi ssi ppi River.

Moving to Page 11, starting with the
paragraph entitled "M 1|k Production”, in Cctober 1997,
996 mllion pounds of mlk were associated with the
Orders Consolidated in the Central Mrket, including
all of the mlk pool ed under Orders 32 and 106.

However, because of class price relationships
in the lowa and Nebraska Markets, only 893.2 mllion
pounds of the m |k was pooled. The 996 m|lion pounds
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wer e produced by 9,900 producers located in 17 states,
fromldaho to Kentucky, and from Texas to M nnesot a.

Three-quarters of the mlk associated with
the Central Market Area was produced within the
Consol i dated Market Area. The states contributing the
nost producer m |k were, in descending order of volune,
| owa, Col orado, M ssouri, Kansas, I|llinois and
&l ahoma. However, 68 percent of the M ssouri producer
mlk canme fromfarns in counties which are included in
t he Consol i dated Sout heast Marketing Area.

These six states accounted for 71 percent of
the producer mlk associated with the nine current
Orders to be consolidated. Enphasis added, and
droppi ng down to Footnote 3, "After extensive analysis
which clearly considered sone of the mlk from distant
| ocations in question at this hearing, none were
included in the Marketing Area of Order 32."

I"l'l also note that in several cases, O der
32 boundaries include only parts of sone states. Al
of the states having substantial portions of their
areas in the Consolidated Central Mrket contribute
producer mlk to at |l east two of the nine individua
Oders with five of the states, |owa, Kansas,

M nnesota, M ssouri and Nebraska, supplying mlk to
five of the Order areas each.
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Turning to Page 12, noving to the bottom of
t he page, the paragraph marked with "Utilization",
"According to October 1997 pooled statistics for
handl ers who woul d be fully regul ated under this
Central Order, the Class 1 Utilization Percentages for
t he individual markets ranged from 38 percent for the
Sout hwest Pl ains Market to 87 percent for the Centra
I1linois Mrket.

Class 1 and Cass 2 receipts and utilization
data for lowa and the conbi nati on of G eater Kansas
Cty and Eastern South Dakota markets are restricted to
protect the confidentiality of individual handl er
i nformati on.

Data for Eastern Col orado and Western
Col orado markets are conbined in order to amass
restricted data. Conbined utilization for the nine
markets would result in a Cass 1 percentage of 50
percent."

Based on cal cul ated wei ghted average use
val ues for, Nunmber 1, the current Order with the
current use of mlk, and Nunber 2, the current Order
wth the projected use of mlk, in the Consolidated
Central Order, the potential inpact of this
consol idation on producers who supply the current
market area is estimated to be Southern Illinois,
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Eastern M ssouri, a 27-cent per hundredwei ght decrease
from13.49 to 13. 22.

Central Illinois, a 50-percent decrease from
13.56 to 13.06. Geater Kansas City, a 69-percent
decrease, a 69-cent per hundredwei ght decrease, from
13.91 to 13.22. Nebraska, Western lowa, a 10-cent
decrease from 13.23 to 13.13. Eastern South Dakota, a
32-cent decrease from 13.30 to 13.01. lowa, a five-
cent decrease from 13.08 to 13.03. Southwest Plains, a
70-cent increase from12.94 to 13.64. Western
Col orado, a 65-cent decrease from 13.88 to 13.23, and
Eastern Col orado, an 11-cent decrease from 13.70 to
13. 59.

The wei ghted average use value for the
Consol idated Central Order Market Area is estimated to
be $13.29 per hundredwei ght. Enphasis added.

Movi ng down to Footnote 4, "Neither the
utilization calculations nor the resulting blend price
calcul ations included the mlk fromdistant |ocations
in question here as a part of Order 32. Note, also,
that the projected utilization for the Central O der
was 50 percent."”

Moving to Page 14, "Criteria for
Consolidation. Mst of the criteria used in
deternmining the opti mum consolidation of Order areas
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apply to the Central Marketing Area. Federal Order
Mar kets consolidated in the Central Area are strongly
related to each other through overlapping route
di sposition. The great majority of sales by handlers
who woul d be regul ated under the Consolidated Centra
Order are distributed within the Marketing Area, and
t he consolidated markets have a greater relationship in
terms of overlapping sales area than within the other
mar ket s.

In addition, sales within the currently
unregul ated areas included in the Consolidated Centra
Area are overwhelmngly from handl ers that woul d be
pool ed under the Central Order. Inclusion of these
areas woul d reduce handl ers' burden of reporting out-
of -area sal es and taking pockets of currently
unregul ated counties that occur between the current
O der areas.

As di scussed above, the m |k procurenent
areas for the consolidated markets al so have a
significant degree of overlap." Enphasis added, and
nmovi ng down to Footnote 5.

"The source for nuch of the mlk fromdistant
| ocati ons under consideration at this hearing were
specifically excluded fromthe Central Order Mrketing
Area."
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The Western Col orado Order is included
because the nost recent data collected fromthis fina
deci sion indicates that since the proposed rule, the
Western Col orado Marketing Area has devel oped a cl oser
relationship with the Eastern Col orado Market than with
any other market area, even across the Continent al
Di vi de.

A benefit of conbining Western Col orado with
other markets is that it is a small market where data
cannot be rel eased wi thout revealing confidentia
i nformati on, unless conbined with data pertaining to
anot her Marketing Area.

Consolidation of the area wll allow
publicati on of neaningful statistics w thout disclosing
proprietary information. |In addition, several comments
supported the conbi nati on of the Western Col orado area
with the Consolidated Central Market in view of the
| arge negative effect of |ower producer pay prices on
the small nunber of producers involved, if the Western
Col orado area were consolidated wth the Sout hwestern
| daho, Eastern Oregon and Great Basin Marketing Areas.

Sone of the currently unregul ated counties in
Western Illinois and Central M ssouri have been added
to the Central Marketing Area. The omi ssion fromthe
Mar keting Area of the counties in Central M ssouri that
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are not included in the Consolidated Central Marketing
Area are based on elimnation of the Marketing Area
central dairy located in Jefferson Cty, Mssouri.

Thi s handl er has not been previously
regul ated. As discussed earlier, it is not the intent
of this decision to include currently unregul ated area
in the Consolidated Order Areas where such inclusion
woul d have the effect of regulating previously
unr egul at ed handl ers.

An additional benefit of the consolidation of
these nine Order areas is that data will be able to be
made public w thout disclosing proprietary information.
Four of the current Federal Market Orders, Centra
I1linois, Geater Kansas Cty, Eastern South Dakot a,
and Western Col orado, included in this consolidated
area have too few pooled plants to be able to publish
mar ket data w thout revealing confidential information.

In addition to these three markets, the
nunber of handl ers regul ated under the Nebraska,
Western lowa, |lowa and Eastern Colorado Orders is in
the single digits.

Page 17, "Discussion of Comments and
Alternatives. Prior to the issuance of the proposed
rule, alternatives to the consolidation of the O der
areas included in the Central Mrketing Area that were
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consi dered i ncluded conmbi ning the | owa, Nebraska,
Western lowa and Eastern South Dakota Order Areas with
t hose of the Chicago Region and Upper M dwest areas in
a Consolidated Upper M dwest O der.

The collection of nore detail ed data
concerning the overlap of route disposition and mlk
procurenent showed clearly that these Marketing Areas
are nore closely related to narkets to the south than
to the north."” Enphasis added.

Dr oppi ng down to Footnote 6, "Specific
consi deration was given for inclusion of the areas in
guestion here, and these areas were expressly excl uded
fromthe Central Order Marketing Area.

Approxi mately 85 percent of the total fluid
m | k dispositions distributed by handl ers regul at ed
under the three Order areas that were suggested to be
included in the central area in the initial prelimnary
report and in the Upper Mdwest area in the revised
prelimnary report are disposed of in the Consoli dated
Central Market.

The di sposition by other Central Marketing
Area handlers within the Consolidated Central Area is
sonewhat greater than a proportion for the three nore
northern areas. Al so considered was the exclusion of
14 Nebraska counties, in addition to the 11 al ready
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excluded fromthe Central Marketing Area to expand the
unregul ated area which Gllette Dairy could distribute
m |k wthout becom ng regulated. There was no data
indicating that Gllette distributes mlk in those
counti es.

In the early stages of the study of
appropriate Order consolidation, it was assuned that
t he Sout hern M ssouri and Northwest Arkansas
proportions of the Southwest Plains Order area would
remain with the rest of that area. This area was
included with the Consolidated Southeast area in the
proposed rule and remai ns there.

Ei ghteen comments that pertain specifically
to the proposed Central Marketing Area were filed by 17
comenters in response to the proposed rule. Four of
t hese comments advocated noving the Western Col orado
Order fromthe Consolidated Western Order to the
Consol i dated Central Order.

These conmments expressed concern about the
expected reduction in blend price to the Wstern
Col orado producers under the Western Order. An
exam nation of updated data on route dispositions and
bulk m |k novenents resulted in making this change,
which is explained in greater detail in the Description
of Comments and Alternatives under this section of this
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deci sion dealing with the Western area.

A comment filed by the Anerican Farm Bureau
Federation representing -- recomrendi ng that the
central area of Mssouri that was proposed to be
unregul ated be included in the Central Order area. A
comment filed on behalf of Central Dairy, the handler
who is located and distributes mlk in the unregul ated
M ssouri area, opposed the addition of any presently
unregul ated territory of the Federal Order Marketing
Areas and specifically opposed the addition of six
currently unregul ated Northeast M ssouri counties into
whi ch the handl er expects to expand his distribution.

There is no intention of causing the
regul ation of this handler. As discussed earlier with
regard to the Northeast and M deast Marketing Areas,
consolidation of the existing Orders does not
necessitate expansion of the Consolidated Orders into
currently unregul ated areas, especially if such
expansi on would result in the regulation of currently
unregul at ed handl ers.

At the sane tinme, mnimzing the extent of
unregul ated counties in the mddle of the Consoli dated
Mar keti ng Area woul d hel p reduce the reporting burden
on handlers in determ ning which route dispositions are
i nside and which are outside the Marketing Area. The
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adm ni strative burden of verifying such reporting would
al so be elim nated.

Six currently unregul ated Northeast M ssouri
counties which were -- that were proposed to be added
to the Central Order area have been renoved on the
basis of comments received fromthe Jefferson Gty
handl er. W indicated that the regul ati on of six
counties would result in change in the handler's
regul atory status.

No urgency on the part of the regul ated
handl ers having sales in the unregulated area to
include that area in the Consolidated O der Area was
apparent fromcomments. In fact, none of the comments
received from affected handl ers advocated that the
unregul ated area be included in the Consolidated O der
Area."

Movi ng to Page 19, starting with the second
paragraph or, | guess, "Several coments fromthe |owa
Departnent of Agriculture, Wells' Dairy and Anderson-
Eri ckson Dairy, as well as Swiss Vall ey Farns,
supported the inclusion of the lowa Order Area in the
Consolidated Central Area, stating that the attraction
of a supply of mlk for fluid needs requires such
consol i dati on.

Comments were received on dividing the
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current lowa Marketing Area by adding the eastern edge
of the lowa Marketing Area to the proposed Consoli dated
Upper M dwest Order. Such division would result in
Swiss Valley Farns' distributing plant in Dubuque
qual i fying as a pool ed plant under the Consoli dated
M dwest Order, as it now does during sone nonths under
the current Chicago Regional O der.

The Swi ss Valley plant conprises a | arge
majority of the lowa narket sales in the Chicago
Regi onal and Upper M dwest Order Areas, and the
novenment of a half a dozen counties would assure its
pool status in the Consolidated Mdwest Order and its
location in that O der area.

Comments by Lakeshore Federated Cooperative
argue that the extensive overlap of producers, Cass 1
sales, in geographic simlarities between the northwest
portion of lowa, of the Ilowa Marketing Area, and the
adj oi ni ng Consol i dated Upper M dwest Area, should be
consi dered conpel li ng reasons for nmaki ng such a change.
Lakeshore's comments were supported by Prairie Farns,
Forenost Farns and DFA.

I n addi ti on, G ande Cheese Conpany, a
W sconsi n cheese-naker, filed comments supporting
Lakeshore's position. In its comments, Sw ss Valley
argued that the two Sout hwest W sconsin counties
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proposed to be included in the Consolidated Centra
Mar keting Area were renoved fromthe Chicago Regi onal
area and added to the lowa area on the basis of a
formal rul emaki ng proceeding in the [ ate 1980s, at
which time, it was determ ned that the principa
conpetition for fluid sales of mlk supply in this area
occurred between |owa handl ers rather than those of the
Chi cago Regi onal handl ers.

It is therefore Swiss Valley's position that
the two counties should remain with the rest of |owa
and in the Consolidated Central Mrketing Area.

On the basis of data gathered for this
decision, the primary source of route disposition in
Grant and Crawford Counties, Wsconsin, Dubuque, I|owa,
is the Swiss Valley plant in Dubuque, and nost of the
rest of the mlk distributed under these counties are
from handl ers regul at ed under the Chicago Regi ona
O der.

The data al so shows that the Dubuque pl ant
gets nost of its mlk supply fromcounties that supply
mlk in the Chicago Regi onal and the Upper M dwest
Orders as well as other plants pooled in the other |Iowa
O ders. "

Movi ng to Page 21, last paragraph -- |I'm
sorry -- the first paragraph at the top, "After
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considering all comments and all other rel evant
information, it is determned that the territory
enconpassed here in the Central Marketing Area best
nmeets the criteria used.”

I would add that the citation that | forgot
to add should read "Federal Register 64, 16070 to
16074".

"The Concept of Pooling Market Proceeds. Al
Federal M1k Orders today save one provide for the
mar ket w de pooling of m |k proceeds anong all producers
supplying the market. The one exception to this form
of pooling is found in the M chigan Upper Peninsul a
Mar ket where individual handl er pooling has been used.

Mar ket w de sharing of a classified use val ue
of mlk anong all producers in a market is one of the
nost i nportant features of the Federal Order MIk
Marketing Area.” |'msorry.

"One of the nost inportant features of a
Federal M Ik Marketing Area. It ensures that al
producers supplying handlers in a Marketing Area
receive the sanme uniformprice for their mlk,
regardl ess of howthe mlk is used. This nethod of
pooling is widely supported by the dairy industry and
has been universally adopted for the 11 consol i dated
Orders. 64 Federal Register 16130, April 2nd, 1999.
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Addi tionally, each Order has precise terns
that a supplier nmust followin order to share in the
bl end proceeds. These provisions are known by the
i ndustry as performance standards. The concept is
expl ai ned, defended and endorsed in the final rule as
fol | ows.

There were a nunber of proposals and public
comments considered in determ ning how Federal M Ik
Orders shoul d pool m |k and which producers shoul d be
eligible to have their mlk pooled in the Consolidated
Orders.

Many of these comrents advocated a policy of
i beral pooling, thereby allow ng the greatest nunber
of dairy farners to share in the econom c benefits that
arise fromthe classified pricing of mlK.

A nunber of comments supported identical
pooling provisions in all Orders, but others stated
t hat pooling provisions should reflect the uni qgue and
prevailing market supply and demand conditions in each
Mar keti ng Area.

Fundanmental to nost pooling proposals in the
coments was the notion that the pooling of producer
m | k shoul d be performance-oriented in neeting the
needs of the fluid market. This, of course, is |ogica
since the purpose of the Federal MIk Order Programis
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to ensure an adequate supply of mlk for fluid use.”
Enphasi s added.

Dr oppi ng down to Footnote 7, "The concept of
a performance standard is fundanental to the Federal
Order System and was endorsed by both the industry and
the Secretary.

A suggestion for open pooling where mlk can
be pool ed anywhere has not been adopted, principally
because open pooling provides no reasonabl e assurance
that the mlk will be nmade available in satisfying the
fluid needs of a market."

Dr oppi ng down to Footnote 8, "QOpen pooling
was totally rejected in the reformdeliberations by the
Secretary. "

Movi ng to Page 23, starting with the
paragraph that reads, "W find no conpelling reason to
change this guideline. Open pooling is a cause for
concern fromour group's nenbers in Federal Order 32.
They are concerned when mlk fromdi stant areas shares
in the blend price pool but does not perform that is,
does not deliver regularly nor bal ance the narket.

The cost of providing these services to the
mar ket always falls back on the local mlk supply, and
if current practice is not anended, it wll guarantee a
continuing |lower return for the local dairy farners who
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supply the local Cass 1 market.

The resulting drop wll inpact funds to
di stant producers who do not performis not reasonable.
It was anal yzed and excl uded by Order Reform and thus
is an end run that should not be allowed now.

Addi tional ly, open pooling has an inherent
conflict with the principles underlying the nodels that
formul ated the pricing services derived in reform The
differential nodels assunme that supplies of mlk
associated wwth the demand point and aggregated into a
mar ket actually shipped fromthe counties they were
| ocated in to the population centers where the demand
poi nts were fixed.

To the best of our know edge, there were no
provisions in the mathemati cal equations for those
nodel s allowing for mlk to be associated with the
market if it did not actually ship to or supply the
mar ket .

The current practices clearly exploit the
price service, and if we are to retain it, which we
support doing, we nust structure the regulations to
paral l el the nodel

This neans that using direct deliveries from
inside the Marketing Area to qualify supply plants and
m |k supplies fromoutside the Marketing Area shoul d be
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greatly limted, if allowed at all.

The principles allowing direct ship mlk to
qual ified supply plants was instituted to all ow
achi evement of the economes of direct ship mlk,
saving the cost of reloaded punps. It is now being
used for other purposes, to substitute m |k produced in
the market for supplies |located far out of the market
in the qualification equation. This runs counter to
the initial intent of the provision and to the
principles that formthe pricing list.

It is our position that m |k supplies |ocated
in the Marketing Area should not be used to qualify
distant mlk. MIlk deliveries that are used to qualify
supply plants that are | ocated outside of the Marketing
Area shoul d al so originate outside of the Marketing
Area from | ocations equal distance fromthe nmarket as
the supply plant.

This way, the principles that underline the
pricing service could be adhered to but still allow ng
for the economes that conme fromdirect ship mlk. The
accounting for this practice would be no nore difficult
to adm nister than sim/lar provisions that govern
transportation credits in Orders 5 and 7 or the surplus
mlk pricing adjustnents that existed in the Texas
Order prior to reform
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Performance standards are universal in their
intention, to require a level of association to a
mar ket that is marked by the ability and wllingness to
supply that market. However, they are individualized
in their application. Each market requires standards
that work for the conditions that apply in that market.
The reformrecord devel ops and defends this concept.

A review of the various Federal O der
Perf ormance Standards shows the diversity of standards
but the comon requirenent of performance to the market
in order to share in the blend price pool.

During the reform process, as individua
Order performance standards were being eval uated, many
times, a particular standard was chosen for one of the
Predecessor Orders. Frequently, the nost |enient
standard was sel ected from anong a group of avail able
choices. This attenpt, however good in its intent, has
not al ways proven to be workable and is one of the
reasons for this proceeding."

Exhibit 9, Table 1, entitled "Pounds of MIk
Used in Cass 1 Products" shows a table of annual C ass
1 usage for all Federal Orders. Note that Federa
Order 32 has the third | argest volune of Cass 1 usage
in all Orders.

Clearly, Federal Order 32 represents a mmjor
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mar ket for Class 1 mlk, and the performance
requi renents associated with it should reflect that by
providing for a sufficient association and perfornmance
to the market in order to share in the blend price.

W note that several other markets wth
smal ler total Cass 1 sales volunes have nore
restricted pooling standards.

Exhibit 9, Table 2, entitled "Summary of
Producer M|k Provisions Under Federal M|k Mrketing
Orders” is a conparison of Federal Order Producer MIk
Standards. Note that while the intentions of the
various standards are the sane, to establish the
requi renents necessary to share in the Order's
proceeds, the specifics vary from Order-to-Oder.

Exhibit 9, Table 3, entitled "Summary of
M ni mum Pool i ng Standards for Supply Plants Under
Federal Ml k Orders" is a conparison of Federal O der
Pool i ng St andar ds.

Again, note that while the intentions of the
vari ous standards are the sane, to establish the
requi renents necessary to share in the Order proceeds,
the specifics vary fromOder-to-Order. Note that
several Orders call for an automatic pool qualification
period commonly referred to as "a free ride period".
This term neans that sone |evel of performance in a
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period, in a prior period grants the perfornmer a
benefit in a future period that does not require a
performance during that time frane.

Exhibit 9, Tables 5-A and B, entitled
"Conparison of Relative Return Between Markets in
Federal Order 1005 and Federal Order 1032", and Tabl es
6- A and B, "Conparison of Relative Returns Between
Markets in Federal Orders 1007 and Federal Order 1032",
denonstrate that the blend price for the St. Louis,

M ssouri, market and for the Tul sa, Cklahoma, market is
not sufficient to prevent mlk supplies from being
attracted to the adjoining Southeastern Federal Orders.

Nashville, Illinois, and Jackson, M ssouri,
represent mlk sheds that traditionally supply the St.
Louis market. Recently, producers in these mlk sheds
have requested that their mlk be marketed in Federa
Order 5 due to higher returns.

A review of the blend price in Mdisonville,
Kent ucky, Table 5-A, and nearby Federal Order 5, pooled
distributing plant that solicits frommlk supplies in
these areas clearly denonstrates why producers in the
area are seeking the adjoining nmarket.

On a Cal endar Year 2000 average annual basis
after adjusting for haul, producers from Nashville,
[Ilinois, would be $1.52 per hundredwei ght better off
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froma Federal Oder 5 return. |In the worst,
i ndi vidual nonthly conparison, January 2000, a producer
woul d be 92 cents per hundredwei ght better off, and in
t he best nonth, Novenmber 2000, $2.74 per hundredwei ght.

Sim lar conparisons for Jackson, M ssouri,
area producers show a net annual average per
hundr edwei ght gain of $1.80. The |owest i ndividua
nont hl y conpari son, January 2000, shows a gain of $1.19
per hundredwei ght, while the Novenber 2000 gain is
$3. 01 per hundredwei ght.

Tabl e 5-B details conparisons for Cal endar
Year 2001 data, year-to-date, show ng that these trends
are consistent with the Cal endar Year 2000 dat a.

Ada, Kl ahonma, represents the m |k shed that
traditionally supplies the Tul sa, Cklahoma, narket.
Recently, producers in this mlk shed have requested
that their mlk be marketed in Federal Order 7 in order
to obtain a higher return.

A review of the blend prices at Fort Smth
and Little Rock, Arkansas, Table 6-A, both nearby
| ocations for Federal Order pooled plants, pooled
distributing plants, clearly denonstrates why producers
in this area are seeking the adjoining nmarket.

On an annual average basis, after adjusting
for the haul, producers from Ada, lahoma, would be
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better -- would be 65 cents per hundredwei ght better
off fromthe Federal Order 7 return at Little Rock. In
t he worst individual nonthly conparison, January 2000,
a producer would be 11 cents per hundredwei ght better
off marketing their mlk to the Oder 32 plant.

The only nonth in Cal endar Year 2000 that the
return woul d be better in the |ocal market than in the
adj oi ning market. The best nonth, Novenber 2000, the
adj oi ni ng market would be nore -- would be $1.59 per
hundr edwei ght nore.

Simlar conparisons for a Fort Smth,
Arkansas, sale show a net annual average gain of $1.25
per hundredwei ght. The | owest individual nonthly
conparison, January 2000, shows a gain of 49 cents per
hundr edwei ght, while the Novenber 2000 gain is $2.19
per hundredwei ght.

Tabl e 6-B details conparisons for Cal endar
Year 2000, year-to-date, showi ng that these trends are
consi stent with Cal endar Year 2000 dat a.

Exhibit 9, Tables 7-A and B, entitled
"Conpari son of Relative Return Between Markets, Federa
Orders 1030 and Federal Order 1032", denonstrates that
the blend price in Order 30 is not sufficient to
attract mlk froman adjacent Federal Order to repl ace
m |k that has been attracted away to ot her Federal
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Orders.

For practical purposes, Federal Oder 30 in
Sout hwest W sconsin woul d be the nost | ogical
repl acenent |ocation for the St. Louis market.

However, Table 7-A denonstrates that in every nonth of
Cal endar Year 2000, the Federal Order 32 blend price,
| ess the haul, from Sout hwest W sconsin would be |ess
than the Federal Order 32 price in St. Louis. The
average -- the annual average loss is 55 cents per
hundr edwei ght. This ranges fromthe | east |oss of 35
cents to a maxi mum shortfall of 74 cents.

An addi tional conparison was nade for mlk
supplies in Melrose, Mnnesota, Stearns County, and Des
Moi nes, lowa, the |ocation of a major pool ed
distributing plant in Order 32, and a | ogical reserve
supply for the Des Mdines Market Area.

Al so, Stearns County is a major mlk
production area in Mnnesota. There, too, the average
annual advantage that Order 30 has over Order 32 is 82
cents a hundredwei ght, ranging from62 cents to a $1.01
per hundredwei ght.

Exhibit 9, Table 8-A and B, entitled
"Conpari son of Relative Return Between Markets, Federa
Order 126 and Federal Order 132", denonstrates that the
blend price in Order 32 is barely sufficient to attract
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-- to keep mlk fromnoving to Federal Order 126 in
spite of a 317-m |l e haul

In Cal endar Year 2000, the spread between
bl end prices got as narrow as six cents per
hundr edwei ght in Novenber and averaged 48 cents for the
year. Through August of 2001, the Cal endar Year
average was nearly the sane; thus, only a small shift
in prices could cause Federal Order 26 to becone a nore
attractive market in Order 32, even after a |ong haul

DFA m |k production in the former Western
Col orado Federal Order Marketing Area, now enconpassed
by the Central Order, has declined by 15 percent since
the inplenentation of Federal Order Reform The nunber
of farnms has dropped from 20 to 16.

Several farns in the area had been devel opi ng
expansi on plans, but they have curtail ed those plans
due to | ower blend prices. This area is very isol ated.
There is limted, if any, conpetition for mlk sales in
the area due to distance fromother fluid bottlers.

Producers have no other market outlets due to
the distance to other markets. The records avail able
in Federal Order Reform process noted that perhaps this
area coul d have stood al one, had not the mandate of 10
to 14 Orders been enforced.

There have been no changes in the handl er
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make-up in the area, no changes in the production
conditions and little change in the differential |evel,
but the new Order regul ations reduces the blend price
severely enough to curtail production.

As a result of returns that are too | ow and
alternatives that are no better, producers are and w |l
continue to | eave Federal Order 32 markets. As overal
bl end prices decline due to the effect of non-
performng mlk supplies, individual handlers will be
able to offer small groups of producers higher prices,
representing slices of the market at utilization rates
hi gher than the market average and then pit producer
versus producer in a race to sell for |ess.

Al so, procurenent schenmes will pop up to
exploit a specific blend price advantage that w ||
benefit sone producers at the expense of nobst of the

others. The end result is that after prices fall to

the I owest |evel, supplies will attenpt to rationalize
and then conditions will normalize, but over the tine
that this occurs, producers wll |ose revenues.

It would be far nore orderly and | ess costly
for all producers to correct the blend price alignnent
now rat her than over the long tinme period that it takes
to otherwi se correct these price msalignnents.

The magni tude of the difference cannot be
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corrected with over Order premiuns. |Increases of the
magni t ude needed to solve the problem over a dollar per
hundr edwei ght in the cases cited above woul d accel erate
the disorderly market conditions outlined in the above
par agraph. None of the markets can institute a charge
of that magnitude.

Exhibit 9, Tables 9-A and B, entitled
"Utilization and Statistical UniformBlend Price,
Federal Order 32", shows pounds pool ed by nonth on
Federal Order 32 from January 2000 to date, taken from
nmonthly Order statistical publications.

Exhibit 9, Chart 1, drawn fromthis data
details this information on an index basis. For each
month, Class 1 and Cass 2 usage is conbi ned, converted
to a pounds per day basis and then indexed with January
2000 as the base. Identical conputations for C ass 3
and Class 4 utilizations are nade.

Class 1 and 2 usage represents the products
fromwhi ch added value is derived for the pool. d ass
3 and 4 usage represents products that maintain the
reserve supply for the added val ue products and serves
to bal ance the fluctuating demands of the market.

Clearly, the volune of Cass 1 and 2 usage
has changed little in the 22 nonths of reform of
Federal Order 32, but the supply of reserve has grown
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steadily. It would be difficult to justify the need
for a near 187-percent increase in the reserve
associ ated wth the market.

Exhibit 9, Table 11, furnished by the Market
Adm ni strator, illustrates the source and vol une of al
mlk that is pooled under Oder 32 for each nonth that
the reformed Order has been in existence.

The maps of Exhibit 9, Table 12, |abel ed
"Counties Wth M|k Marketings on the Central Federa
Order for Periods of Septenber 2000 to Septenber 2001"
detail this exhibit graphically.

I"mnot sure of the nunmber, but Table 12
conti nued delineates the sane data fromthe standpoi nt
sourced frominside the Marketing Area versus outside
the Marketing Area for the sane period.

Several conclusions can be drawn fromthese
data. For the nonths, about 45 percent of the producer
receipts canme fromfarns |located in counties |ocated
out si de the Marketing Area.

Two. As best evidenced by the maps, mnmuch of
the mlk is fromsuch [ ong distance that it cannot
serve the market easily on a regul ar basis.

Three. There was a |learning curve to the art
of open pooling as best evidenced by the M nnesota and
W sconsin data. Cearly, poolings slowy increased as
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handl ers realized the potential incone opportunity and
the ease of obtaining it. Once the nethodol ogy becane
under stood, the volunme pool ed increased heavily.

Four. The free ride nonths of May through
July becane a tenptation that could not be ignored.
Exam nation of the data for leading states in the
source of distant mlk pooled on the Order, M nnesota
and Wsconsin, show this factor.

In both cases, Cal endar Year 2000 poolings
increased in the free ride nonths as the | earning curve
of how best to exploit open pooling advanced. Then
pool i ngs tapered sonewhat. [In Cal endar Year 2001, the
cycle repeated as the free ride nonths' pooling again
represented the | argest nonths, |argest vol une pool ed
on the Order.

Five. California, the other leading state in
t he open pooling derby, had no poolings in Cal endar
Year 2000, but the sanme pattern of noticeabl e increases
in poolings is evident in Cal endar Year 2001, perhaps
evidence that the | essons of the prior year had been
| earned wel | .

Mar ket Adm ni strator data has been published
in a mp and table formfor every Federal Order. Data
has been published simlar to Exhibit -- this should be
the Market Admi nistrator 5, and that correction should

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
(301) 565- 0064



© 00 N o g A~ w N P

N NN N NN P P R R R R R Rp R
g N W N P O © 0O N o o M W N P O

186

al so be made back on Page 28.

MR. BESHORE: Wy don't you go back and make
t hat correction?

THE W TNESS: Ckay. Page 28, mddle
par agr aph, should read, "Exhibit 5, Table 11", and the
next bl ank should read, "Exhibit 5, Table 12", and the
next bl ank should say "MA Exhibit 5, Table 12"

Movi ng back to Page 28, Point 6, "Market
Adm ni strator data has been published in nmap and table
formfor every Federal Order. Data has been published
simlar to Exhibit 5, Table 12, for My 2000.

For conpari son purposes, every other Federa
Order, except the Appal achian Order, had nore mlk
pool ed and produced fromw thin its Marketing Area
boundaries than did the Central Order reported at 43.6
percent for the May 2000 period. The next | owest
percent age was the Sout heast Order at 69.4 percent.

Clearly, Order 32 is carrying an excessive
vol unme of reserve supply. Looking at the index chart,
Exhibit 9, Chart 1, Cass 1 and 2 usage has been
relatively constant each nonth. Data from Exhibit 9,
Tables 9-A and B, would indicate that this volune is
approximately 500 mllion pounds per nonth.

Gven the reality that ml|k production is
reasonably | evel throughout the week and fluid use

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
(301) 565- 0064



© 00 N o g A~ w N PP

N NN N NN P P P R R R R R R
g N W N P O © 0O N o o M W N P O

187
demand is variable, how nmuch is a reasonable reserve?

We woul d propose that a charitable assunption
for a necessary reserve would equal a three-day supply;
that is, demand for Cass 1 and 2 is higher on four
days of the week and |l ower to non-existent on three
days. Therefore, a reasonable reserve would be three-
sevenths or 42 percent.

Put in another way, this represents weekend
bal anci ng and/ or the supply needed to serve peak weekly
demand fluctuation. Every market should be responsible
for maintaining a reserve supply.

The dairy farnmer nenber owners of our group
recogni ze that responsibility and are willing to accept
it. However, we do not accept the responsibility for
mai ntai ning a greater reserve supply than necessary.
Therefore, given the assunption of a reserve supply at
42.8 percent and a fluid use average demand of 500
mllion pounds, a reasonable calculation of a reserve
supply would be 214 mIlion pounds per nonth.

Looking again to the index chart, the
Cal endar Year 2001 data for Class 3 and 4 appears to
have stabilized at a higher level, and | ooking to the
usage tables at an average volune of 997 mllion
pounds. This week Order reserve of 4.65 tines nore
than the charitable 42.8 percent standard.
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Looki ng again to MA Exhibit 12, MA Exhibit
Table 12, we can see that m |k from other counties,
that is, those not |located within the Marketing Area as
est abl i shed by Federal Oder Reform 601 mllion pounds
in Septenber and 657 million in 2001. This would be
double to triple the amount of reserve supply needed by
the market, again using our charitable estimte.

Just to get the perspective of another nonth,
| ooking to the data requested by DFA fromthe Market
Adm ni strator, the mlk pooled on the Order for
Decenber of 2000 from counties within the seven-state
area but outside the Marketing Area show a reserve that
woul d be three and one-half tines larger than the 214
mllion pound esti nate.

Even taking into consideration the anount of
Class 3 and 4 manufacturing use that has been in the
mar ket for many years, the current volunes of producer
m | k pool ed nust be consi dered excessive and in no way
can be considered a necessary reserve to the market."

Exhibit 9, Table 4, entitled "M | eage Data
Used in Various Conputations and Conparisons", lists
the mleages fromcertain supply points | ocated outside
the Marketing Area in counties and cities within those
-- and counties and cities within those counties that
pool ed on the market listed in the Market Adm nistrator
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dat a.

The demand poi nt shows and represent mmjor
popul ation centers wwthin Order 32 for the cities for
whi ch alternative price conparisons were made. Unless
ot herwi se noted, the rate per mle used in the
cal culation is $1.90, and a reasonable proxy for one-
way transportation costs. This cost does not include
any procurenent assenbly or reload costs, just the
transportati on conponent.

Exhi bit 9, Tables 10 through 15, "Conparison
of Delivery Charges Versus Producer Price Differentia
for Several Different Markets", depict the return from
deliveries fromseveral distant supply points to
Federal Order 32.

The vol unes chosen indicate easy arithnetic
and are not intended to represent any actual receipts.
However, the per unit cal cul ati ons woul d be
representative. The conparison uses the m | eage shown
in Exhibit 9, Table 4.

Exhi bit 9, Table 10, shows a return
cal cul ation based on the California and | daho supply
point as if the mlk was delivered to market every day,
which is the nost typical practice for local mlk.

The return is shown in the colum [ abel ed
“"Monthly Return, Al Delivered to Bottler". This
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return is calculated by netting the difference in the
Producer Price Differential fromthe destination point
agai nst the transport costs.

The effect of any additional m |k procurenent
costs and market premuns are ignored. If this mlk
were delivered to the market every day, the blend price
gain woul d not even be enough to pay the transportation
costs. No rational supplier would make this business
decision to lose $1.2 mllion or approxi mately $5.72
per hundredwei ght in the case of the California
delivery or $833,526 or $3.97 per hundredweight in the
case of the Idaho delivery.

However, the easy producer associ ation
standard and the | oose diversion standard nake a one-
time delivery of 32,587 pounds able to qualify the
entire volune and turn the significant | oss into gains
of $280,582 in the case of the California delivery and
$281, 157 in the case of the Idaho delivery.

Al that is necessary is to touch base one
time and not | ose association with the Oder. Since
California has no Federal Order plant, it's easy to
remai n unassoci ated with a Federal Order plant.

Since there are currently no pool ed supply
plants in Federal Order 135, the Western Order, any
delivery to an I daho manufacturing plant will not cause
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| oss of association with Central Oder.

Al so, the pooling handl er nust have
sufficient sales to qualify for the diversion, a
standard made easy by the Central Order provisions
which allow the ability to pyramd deliveries in order
to qualify larger volunmes of mlKk.

Tabl e 11 again uses the sane cal cul ati on
met hod but applies the delivery standards of 20 and 25
percent that we propose, and the gains are reduced
greatly. In the scenario of the California delivery,

t hey woul d remain negative, and in the case of an I|Idaho
delivery, they result in a 21-cent per hundredwei ght
return. The 21-cent per hundredwei ght return may not
be sufficient to draw m |k away fromthe manufacturing
plant, unless the intent is not to ever ship but just
to ride the pool.

Note that this exanple does not consider the
possibility that local in-area mlk could qualify the
mlk in this exanple and thus affect the return but
only considers how our proposal would work if this mlk
were forced to performon its own.

Qur proposals do address this issue, however.
Proposals 8 and 9 will speak to other requirenents for
the pooling of distant m Ik fromindividual nenbers of
our group. Cearly, however, based on econonic factors
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alone, this mlk would rarely, if ever, deliver to the
mar ket on the regul ar basis.

Exhibit 9, Table 12, shows a return
cal cul ati on based on two Wsconsin counties, Buffalo
and Manitowoc. These were chosen as two counties wth
| arge volunmes of mlk pooled on the Central Order in
Decenber of 2000 but no pounds pool ed i n Decenber of
' 98.

They al so represent counties fromdifferent
mlk sheds within the state. The towns of Cream
Buffal o, the counties which have the | argest Cal endar
Year 2000 volunme froma zero Cal endar Year 1998 base,
and Mani towoc, Manitowoc County, you know, in Manitowoc
County, are located in each county.

St. Louis was selected as a |likely delivery
-- likely demand point since it is the major
consunption point in the market and a | ocati on nost
likely to be served by these supply points.

If mlIk were delivered to the nmarket every
day fromthese two | ocations, which is the typica
practice for local mlk, it would generate a negative
return, as shown in the colum | abeled "Mnthly Return,
Al'l Delivered to Bottlers".

This return is cal culated by netting the
difference in the Producer Price Differential fromthe
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destination point against the transport costs. The
effect of any additional procurenent costs and market
premuns are ignored. |If this mlk were delivered to
t he market every day, the blend price gain would not
even be enough to pay the transportation costs.

No rational supplier would nmake a decision to
| ose a $123,000 or approximately 59 cents per
hundr edwei ght in the case of the Buffal o County
delivery, or $92,850 or 44 cents per hundredwei ght in
the case of the Manitowoc County deliveries.

Wth the easy producer association standard
and the | oose diversion standard, however, a one-tine
delivery of 32,587 pounds is able to qualify the entire
volune and turn the |losses into gains of $282,265 in
the case of the Buffalo County delivery and $282,314 in
the case of the Manitowoc County delivery. Al that is
necessary is to touch base one tine and not |ose
association wth the O der.

Since the counties are in the Marketing Area
of Federal Order 30, it is alittle nore difficult to
avoi d being associated with that Order than |osing the
association wwth Order 32. But Oder 30 and 32
recogni ze the split plant provisions making it sonewhat
easier to remain unassociated with O der 30 as a
delivery to the non-pool ed side of a split
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manuf acturi ng plant would not cause | oss of
associ ati on.

As before, the pooling handl er nust have
sufficient sales to qualify for the diversion, a
standard nmade easy by the Central Order provisions
which allow the ability to pyram d deliveries in order
to qualify larger volunmes of mlKk.

Tabl e 13 uses the sanme cal cul ati on nmet hod but
applies the delivery standards to 20 and 25 percent
that we propose and the gains are reduced. 1In a
scenario of the Buffalo County delivery, they are
reduced froma $1.34 down to 93 cents per
hundr edwei ght, and in the case of the Mnitowoc County
delivery, down to 96 cents per hundredwei ght.

Again, this return nust be conpared with the
returns generated by the manufacturing plant if the
mlk is to ship to the market every day and also with
the Order 30 return. |In our experience, producer
premuns in Order 30 are anong the | argest that we know
of. Marketing this mlk to St. Louis every day would
not generate enough dollars to attract and retain a
m |k supply.

Note again that this exanple does not
consider the possibility that local in-area mlk could
qualify the mlk shown in this exanple and thus affect
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the return, but only considers how our proposal would
work if this mlk were to be forced to performevery
day on its own. Cearly, however, based on economc
factors alone, this mlk would rarely, if ever, deliver
to the market on a regul ar basis.

Exhibit 9, Table 14, shows a return
cal cul ati on based on Stearns County, M nnesota, and the
Cty of Melrose. Stearns County had the second | argest
volunme of mlk pooled on Order 32 froma M nnesota
county overall, but it had zero pounds pooled in
Decenber of 1998. It is also a major mlk-producing
county in M nnesota.

Kansas City was selected as a |likely demand
point since it is a major consunption point in the
mar ket and a |l ocation nost likely to be served by the
supply point, and while there are cl oser demand points
avai | abl e, the volune of supply is |large and woul d need
to ship further and further south in order to get
accommodated on a daily basis; thus, the selection of
the Kansas City as a denmand point.

Maki ng the sanme type of calculations as
before on an every-day shipnent from Stearns County,
M nnesota, to a Kansas City demand point would | ose
$151, 380 or approximately 72 cents per hundredwei ght.
The af orementi oned producer association and di version

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
(301) 565- 0064



© 00 N o g A~ w N P

N NN N NN P P R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © 0O N O o M W N P O

196
standards allow a one-tinme delivery of 32,587 pounds to
be able to qualify the entire volunme and turn the
| osses into gains of $282,222 or a $1.34 a
hundr edwei ght .

Agai n, these counties are in the Federa
Order 30 -- are in the Marketing Area of Federal Order
30, and it's a little nore difficult to avoid becom ng
associated wth that Order and | osing the association
wth Order 32. But Oder 32 and 30 recogni ze the split
pl ant provisions and nmaking it sonewhat easier to
remai n unassoci ated with Order 30 as it's delivered to
t he non-pool ed side of the split manufacturing plant
woul d not cause | oss of association.

As before, a pooling handler nust have
sufficient sales to qualify for the diversion, a
standard made easy by the Central O-der provisions
which allow the ability to pyramd deliveries in order
to qualify larger volunes of mlKk.

Tabl e 15 uses the sane cal cul ati on net hod but
applies the delivery standards to 20 and 25 percent
that we proposed, and the gains are reduced froma
$1. 34 down to 90 cents per hundredwei ght. Again, this
return nust be conpared with the returns generated by
the manufacturing plant, if the mlk is to ship to the
mar ket every day and also with the Order 30 return.
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As indicated, the Wsconsin deliveries making
-- marketing this mlk to Kansas City every day woul d
not |ikely generate enough dollars to attract and
retain a mlk supplier

As before, this exanple does not consider the
possibility that local in-area mlk could qualify the
mlk in this exanple and thus affect the return but
only considers how our proposal would work if this mlk
were to be forced to performon its own.

Clearly, however, if, based on economc
factors alone, this mlk would rarely, if ever, deliver
to the market on a regul ar basis. These exanples
denonstrate why the economic incentives to exploit the
| ax pooling provisions of Order 32 and why the |arge
volunmes of mlk detailed in the Market Adm nistrator's
exhibits are being drawn to the Order.

As explained in the final rule, there can be
no rational explanation why this practice is a good
i dea for the market.

What is the effect on on the Oder 32 blend
price of the mlIk fromdistant or non-historic
| ocati ons? Data conputed in Exhibit 9, Table 16 and
17, entitled "Inpact on PPD of Distant M|k Pool ed on
the Central Order and Conputations for | npact
Anal ysi s", provide sone insight into the anmount.
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Table 17 is a reasonable attenpt to quantify
the cost to the pool of the |ocation adjustnent val ue
fromdistant mlk. Since the exact county location is
not known for every nonth, an estinmate was nade.

For the case of M nnesota and Wsconsin, a
percent age factor was devel oped using the Septenber
data. The pounds that were taken fromthe Mrket
Adm nistrator's exhibit, the | ocation adjustnent
cal cul ations were made with exact county conparisons,

i f known, or best estimates, if not known.

Extending the rates tines the pounds yi el ded
a dollar amount of the loss in pooled value and the
total pounds -- and the total of the pounds -- the
volunme of mlk attributed with the doll ars.

Tabl e 16 uses this data to conpute a pool ed
| oss. The total dollar value of the pool was taken
fromthe nonthly producer settlenent statenent. The
total val ue was reduced by the conponent values. To
the remaining dollars, the location adjustnent val ue as
conputed from Table 17 was added back into the sumto
get a proxy value as if those pounds had not been
pooled. Dviding this proxy value by the actual pounds
pool ed and by the pounds that would have been pooled if
the pool had been -- if the mlk fromnon-historic
| ocati ons were not pooled results in a proxy PPD val ue
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based on each vol une.

In each nonth, the proxy PPD fromthe entire
volume is very close to the actual PPD. Netting the
two figures yields an approximate |oss to the distant
m | k becom ng part of the pool. The per-hundredwei ght
| oss ranges froma $1.17 per hundredwei ght to 64 cents
per hundredwei ght for the four nonths selected to test.
The total dollar value of the loss to the remaining
producers ranged from$3.7 mllion to $9.5 mllion per
nont h.

Supplies of mlk becom ng associated with the
mar ket pooling requirenents for Order 32, which work
well for mlk produced in the Marketing Area, do not
work wel |l when applied to m |k produced out of the
Mar keti ng Area.

This, coupled with the change in pricing
servi ce, makes open pooling very lucrative. The O der
32 standards have touched base -- are easy to neet and
even nore so when coupled with the ability to pyramd
deliveries for additional qualifications.

Exhibit 9, Table 18, entitled "Exanpl e of
Pyram d Qualification", denonstrates how the pyram ding
of qualification works. In essence, existing Oder
provi sions in the nost generous case allow for one | oad
to qualify 15 additional |oads. The handl er on these
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| oads nmust be both a 132.9(c) handler and a pool plant
operator at the sanme tine.

As denonstrated in the MA exhibits, the
steadi |l y-i ncreasi ng pounds bei ng pool ed on the O der
and further anplified in the English Exhibits which are
6, Table 2, entitled "Plants Included in the Centra
Federal Order, Pool Conputation, January 2000 to Date"
with reference to qualifying Order provisions, there
were 14 cooperatives using this designation, and eight
of the 14 were represented on the supply plant or plant
operator |ist.

BY MR BESHORE

Q M. Hollon, I'd like to take you -- just ask
you a coupl e of questions about your statenent thus
far.

If you go to Page 30 of Exhibit -- Exhibit 8,
the second full paragraph at the top, you conpared --
the second and third lines fromthe end of the
paragraph. You conpared 601 mllion pounds in
Sept enber 2000 and 657 mllion pounds, is that in
Sept enber 20017

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Now, on Page 23 of your statenent and
per haps el sewhere, you referred -- you nade sone
comments about the -- the price surplus nodel which
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underlie or was utilized in developing the price
surplus out of Federal Order Reform

A Correct.
Q Is that the nodel that was done at Cornel

Uni versity --

A Yes.
Q -- that you're referring to?
A Yes.

Q kay. D d you have the opportunity to
confirmw th persons at Cornell whether your
interpretation of the nodel as stated in your testinony
was correct?

A | did. | spoke with Dr. Novockock for about
30 m nutes and went through the assunptions and bounced
t hem back and forth with himand di scussed them and he
asserted that ny -- ny comments were correct, and they
reflect how it works.

Q Ckay. Now, I'd like to go to Exhibits 9 --
Exhibit 9 and just -- just walk through -- you've
comented on these tables and charts, but | just want
to go through themin your testinony, just want to go
through themindividually and see if there's any -- any
additional information that we should bring to light or
focus on with respect to each exhibit.

A kay.
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Q Table 1 is a rather sinple one. It just
shows the relative total annual volunes of Class 1
utilization of the 11 Orders presently, is that
correct?

A That is correct. Taken fromthe annual
summary of that Order's distance.

Q Ckay. And the Central Order stands in what
rank anmong the Orders?

A Third largest in terns of overall Class 1
use.

Q Ckay. Exhibit 9, Table 2, did you prepare
t hat i nformation?

A | did. This is information that is taken
froma summary table obtained fromthe Dairy Program
staff conparing certain provisions Order-by-Order, and
|'"ve taken parts of this table they provided ne and
made them avail able for this.

Q And essentially, it denonstrates that
different delivery requirenents and pooling provisions
are tailored to ostensibly to neet the needs of the
mar ket ?

A That's correct. That -- that different
Orders have different requirenents, and that in
general, those requirenents have been evaluated and fit
t hat Order.
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Q kay. Table 3, can you describe how that was
prepared, and what it --

A Tabl e 3 cane fromthe sanme summary docunent
as before that | got fromthe Dairy Program staff sone
nmont hs ago, and it sinply takes Order-by-Order, and it
summarizes in brief formthe m ni mum pooling standards
for supply plants in the various Federal Orders, and
|'ve taken sone of the colums out of that table and
dropped theminto this exhibit, again designed to show
that there are varying standards in each O der.

They're not all the sanme, but they generally have the
sane application as to say this is what you need to do
in order to qualify to be a supply pl ant.

| also wanted to point out that some Orders
have what's called a "free ride period" and sone don't.

Q Does the Central Order have a free ride
peri od?

A It does, currently, and that is the nonth of
May, June and July.

Q And what -- what does that nean for supply
plants in the Central Order during that period?

A It means that in -- in certain nonths, if --
if you perform then you have nonths that you do not
have to performin, and one of the things that's
happened is in those non-perfornm ng nonths, we've seen
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| arge quantities of mlk added to the market because
the supply plant requirenent -- the supply plant
performance requirements aren't -- do not have to be
met in those nonths.

Q So, is there any limt for a supply plant on
-- presently on Order 32 that was qualified during
August through April, is there any limt to the vol une
of mlk which may be associated with it during the
nmont hs of May, June and Jul y?

A I think the answer to that question is so
|l ong as they can figure out how to do the one pound
qualifies 16, they can get up to that limt. That's
t he max.

Q Ckay. Wuld it not be the case that during
the free ride period, that supply plant has no delivery
obl i gati ons whatsoever to the fluid market?

A I"d have to go back and | ook. At the next
break, I'll have to go back and | ook at the Order
regul ations.

Q Ckay. Table 4 is just a mleage chart
showi ng the distances that you pulled off the Rand
McNal Iy information fromone point to another, is that
correct?

A That is correct.

Q Okay. Now, Tables 5-A and B and 6-A and B --
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how many sets are there? About five sets?

A | think there's four sets.

Q Four sets. 5, 6, 7 and 8-A and B, which were
commented upon in sone detail in your testinony, would
-- if we just ook at the exhibits now, just focus on -
- on 5-A and B, are the net -- the net nunbers shown on
the two bottomlines of each page?

A Yes, that is correct. That's a conparison of
bl end draws, adjusted for |ocation, and then netted
agai nst transportation dollars to see where the nost
attractive market between the two conpari sons woul d be.

Q Ckay. So, staying with 5-A then, you were
conparing the returns under Order 5 at Madisonvill e,
Kent ucky, and Order 32, for a producer who was -- has
options, for producers located in Southern Illinois or
Sout heastern M ssouri ?

A That is correct. A producer |ocated in those
areas woul d have those options to seek a market for
their mlKk.

Q Ckay. And the point of the conparison is
that with the presence of low utilization in Order 32
and unfavorabl e blend prices, producer price
differential, there's a trenendous advantage to nove to
Federal Order 57

A That's correct.
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Q kay. And has such novenents occurred, and
do they show up in sone of the statistics that M.

St ukenberg was asked about this norning?

A That is correct. Such novenents have
occurred. They do show up, and those pressures are as
great as they had been during this entire period.

Q And -- and for instance, we've seen that
there's less mlk fromlllinois pooled on Order 32 now
than there was a couple of years ago?

A That is correct.

Q And sone of that reduction is because the
m |k has been attracted to Order 57

A That is correct.

Q Ckay. And going on in Table -- Exhibit 6-A
and 6-B are conparing the returns avail able to
producers in the Ada, Cklahoma, m |k shed which you' ve
di scussed in -- in your testinony. They're options for
O der 32. Their honme Order versus Order 7, correct?

A That woul d be correct. The producers in that
area woul d have options in Order 7.

Q By the way, if, in Ada -- Ada, Cklahoma, is
inthe mlk shed. |It's right near Tulsa. It's
historically supplied fluid plants in the Tul sa area.

A That is correct.

Q If -- if mlk in Ada, Cklahoma, is going to
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start supplying plants in, you know, Little Rock or --
or elsewhere in Order 7, where's the supply for Tul sa
going to come fronf

A You' d have to bid it up or haul it in froma
further distance away at a greater -- greater freight
rate. New production would have to go into existence
there. The likely scenario would be, you know,
initially to haul it in fromgreater distances.

Q Ckay. Going on to Table 7, 7-A and B, you're
conparing here the returns avail abl e under Order 32 and
Order 30 for producers located in -- in and around

Lancaster, Wsconsin, or Southern Mnnesota, is that

correct?
A That's correct.
Q By the way, is Lancaster, Wsconsin, in

Federal Order 32 Marketing Area?

A It is.

Q Ckay. Going then to your final conparison
table, 8, 8-A and 8-B, these are conparisons of the
returns available to producers in and around Nor nan,

&l ahoma, in the Order 32 area?

A That is correct.

Q And whether it remains under present Order 32
utilization of blend price, whether it's viable for
themto continue to deliver to Oder 32 and Gkl ahoma
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Cty or Norman or --

A That is correct, and the purpose here is to
show that currently, it is, but it's getting closer and
cl oser, and despite a 300-mle haul, this mlk could be
attracted to the Dallas market w thout nuch of a change
in price.

Q kay. And if -- if it were, then it would
need to be replaced; that |ocal market in and around
Nor man, Chandl er, Cklahoma City, would have to be
replaced with mlk froma | onger distance?

A That's correct.

Q Ckay. Table 9, 9-A and B, sinply sets the
statistical information for Oder -- Oder 32 drawn
fromthe Market Adm nistrator's data?

A That is correct.

Q By the way, how does the utilization under
the Order conpare with the utilization projected under
Federal Order Reformin the decision which you
referenced in your testinony?

A Vll, it appears like there's a colum
| abel ed "Cl ass 1 Percentage", and the highest nunber on
the page is 31.8. So, -- no. 38.1. I'msorry. So,
the closest it's cone to the 50.1 percentage woul d be
12 -- 12 percentage points.

Q Projected of 50 percent, but it peaks at 38.1
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percent ?
A That's correct.
Q In February of 20007?
A If you took the -- all of the nonths that we

had and just took a quick eyeball average, you' d get
about 29 percent, maybe.

Q kay. For Septenber, the last nonth
avai |l abl e, Septenber 2001, it was 28.2 percent?

A That's correct.

Q Ckay. You described Chart 1, | think, in
your -- in your testinony.

Wul d you go to Table 10 of Exhibit 9? Now,
10 -- 10, 11, 12 and 13, 14 and 15 are all conparisons
of the economc return if distant mlk that we know has
been pooled or is being pooled on Order 32 was required
to performfor the market under sone delivery standard?

A That is correct.

Q Ckay. And where are the key nunbers on --
just |l ooking at Table 10, are the key nunbers in the
boxes at the bottonf

A The key nunbers are in the boxes at the
bottom such that if, for exanple, if California mlKk
were to performto the Kansas City nmarket, the way that
local milk does, it would | ose $5.72 for every hundred
pounds that -- that perfornmed or Idaho m |k would | ose
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$3. 97 per every hundred pounds that perforned.

Q kay. And that's -- those are Colum 2
nunber s?

A Correct. And yet, with the -- wth the
ability to only have to deliver once, then assum ng
that there's a handl er who can have enough
qualification to -- to qualify these deliveries, that
$5. 72 per hundredwei ght | oss could be converted into a
$1. 34 per hundredwei ght gain, all using a mllion
pounds as an exanpl e.

Q So, the Colum 3 is the present status quo?

A Correct.

Q kay. And the same colums -- the sane
concl usions are on each table, 11 through -- 11 through

A Table 11, --

Q -- 15.

A -- Colums 1 and 2, are identical, and Col um
3 in Table 11 says if the delivery standard that we
woul d propose would be in place, then sone of those
gains woul d be reduced, but clearly, there are stil
sone nonths that there's econom c advantage, and if --
if the handler chose to deliver on an every-day basis
under this standard, then that woul d be the gains that
t hey woul d face, and they could nake that decision to
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do it, if they chose to. Even if they were a | ong way
away, they could still choose to nmake that.

Q And the delivery requirenent you are testing
there is the 25 percent or 20 percent delivery
requi renent proposed in Proposals 1 through 5?

A That's correct. [|f we |ook down the colum,
the very first columm, you see that sonme nonths have an
italics print, and sonme nonths have a non-italics
print, and so, the non-italics nonths would be 20
percent, and the italics nonths would be 25 percent.

Q Ckay.

A And so, then, Tables 12 and 13 woul d repeat
that pattern for the two Wsconsin counties and St.
Louis, and Tables 14 and 15 woul d repeat that pattern
for the Mnnesota county and Kansas City deliveries.

Q Ckay. Table 16 then is your cal cul ation of
the inpact of -- on the Order 32 Producer Price
Differential of distant mlIk which is currently being
pool ed using the nonths of what, March, June, July and
Sept enber of --

A That's right.

Q -- 2001? How did you -- what -- what ml Kk,
just so we're clear, did you identify as, you know, not
being historically pool ed under the O der?

A That cal cul ation cones off of Table 17, and |
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went through the Market Adm nistrator exhibit, and I
pi cked out those states with -- that | designated as
di stant but nonet hel ess, Arkansas, California, |daho,
M nnesota, New Mexico, North Dakota, Texas, W sconsin,
Wom ng, and then | reduced the M nnesota and W sconsin
deliveries by a -- deliveries fromthose counties in
the Marketing Area in order to get sone type of a
percentage that | could use for future nonths when
didn't have that individual data, and so those becane
t he counti es.

The pounds canme from each nonth. | had
i ndividual -- | had -- had pound data for every nonth
and county data for only a single nonth, and so those
becane the -- the source of the county and pound dat a.
Wth respect to the distant market differential, if |
was able to, for exanple, in New Mexico, go back and
see that all the mlk canme fromthe sane county, then
-- the same two counties, | was able to establish the
differential.

In the case of Arkansas, it |ooked |ike there
were four or five counties with varying differentials.
So, | assuned what | thought was the best estinmate of
one. For the case of California, | used the nunber
that was published in -- by the Market Adm nistrator in
response to M. English's request.
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In North Dakota, | had to assunme best
estimate that | could nake that a $1.65 was the
representative nunber, and in Wsconsin, again | had to
make the best estimate of -- of a series of counties
and what was the differential nunber, and in Wom ng, |
think all the mlk came fromthe sanme counties. So,
used that as a determ nation.

Q Ckay. Now, is Exhibit 16 with 17 as its
dat abase, is this an attenpt by you to estinate, as
well as you can, but it's an estimation, what the
inpact is of the, call them non-econom c pooling that
is going on in Oder 32 now on the Producer Price
Differential in the Oder?

A That woul d be true. It would be sone way to
try to quantify the open pooling aspect, and the
met hodol ogy is that you would take the blend settl enent
page each nonth as published by the Market
Adm nistrator. For exanple, in March, if we had that
docunent, it would say that the total value of the poo
was $202, 654, 934.

Q Ckay.

A And there is conponent values fromprotein
butterfat, other solids, and a cell count value, and so
those are what | would consider as in and out itens.

So, | reduced the 202 mllion by those to get down to
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$18, 267, 220.

Then | | ooked at the distant |ocations and
said that there was an additional $1, 700,000 drawn out
of the pool to fund those |ocation adjustnents. So, if
| add that -- those dollars back, |I have $19.9 nillion.
I know how nuch the pool was to start with, and from ny
conputations of -- of the mlk involved, | have a
volume for the mlk non-historically associated. So,
that gives nme two different pool nunbers and two
different -- and a dollar value, divide one by the
other, and | get sone proxy for the Produce Price

Differential, an actual proxy, which was two or three

cents -- within two or three cents each nonth of the
actual PPD.

Dividing again, | can get a proxy as if the
| ongest -- the mlk fromnon-historic areas were not

here, and subtracting the two gives ne sone idea of how
much the -- the effect was, how nuch the per
hundr edwei ght effect was. Miltiplying that against the
pounds gives ne a total dollar, and this nethodology is
-- was devel oped by Caneron at Chio State, and he's --
he's published that in sone of their Extension work,
and it was also used in the Order 33 hearing as a
nmet hod of establishing an estinmated val ue.

Q You're not asserting its precise, but it's an
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estimate and gives us an idea of what the inpact --

A That's correct. That is right. | wouldn't
have the -- the access to all of the information, and
t he Market Adm nistrator woul d not be able to revea
all of the exact information in order to be able to do
this conmputation. So, anybody who does it has to nake
a certain set of assunptions.

Q kay. Now, M. Hollon, you also -- have you
al so prepared for -- for presentation sone conments

Wi th respect to how the particular proposals, 1 through

5, how each of themare intended to -- to work in this
Order?
A That is correct.

Q Ckay. And have those been distributed and
made avai | abl e?

A Made avail abl e, yes. Those were passed out
this norning before | unch.

Q Wbul d you proceed at this point with -- with

that portion of your -- of your testinony?
A Yes.
Q Comment on the | anguage and intent in

Proposal s 1 through 5.
A Comments on the | anguage and intent of
Proposal s 1 through 5.
The general intent of our proposal is to
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better align actual performance shipnments w th poolings
on Order 32. Qur goal, sinply stated, is if you desire
to pool 100 pounds of mlk on the Order, you should
ship 25 pounds to a distributing plant.

Thi s shipnment can deliver to the market in
what ever manner is nost efficient and yields the best
return to the supplier. W have no preference as to if
it comes directly off the farmor reloaded in a supply
pl ant .

The practice of pyram ding performance as a
met hod of attaching mlk to the market shoul d be ended.
Addi tionally, nearby m Ik should not be used to qualify
far-away supply plant mlk that would not be able to
performreadily -- I"'msorry -- would not be able to
readily performto the market.

Proposals 1 through 5 deal with our efforts
to better relate Order | anguage to the performance
standards needed to serve Federal Order 32. The
specific Order |anguage that supports Proposal 1 anends
Section 1032.7(c) as follows, and this is |anguage
that's taken directly out of the Notice of Hearing.

So, unl ess sonebody desires it to be read, | think Il
pass.

But comments on Page 2 regardi ng our intent
on this |language, our proposals seek to better
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correlate performance on the market -- I'msorry -- to
t he market shipnents to distributing plants with the
vol unme of m |k pooled on the market.

We have chosen the 20 and 25 percent |evels
as the performance standard for supply plants. W also
propose that a free -- I"'msorry -- that a shipping
standard i s needed every nonth and nmake no provisions
for a free ride nonth.

The current pyramd ability afforded by the
current standards is too |ax and |leads to too nuch
abuse, as we have docunmented in our exhibits, in every
month of the year. The net effect of our proposals
should elimnate the pyram d effect, and thus the
actual shipping standard can be reduced to a nore
realistic |evel

W have sel ected August through Novenber as
the nonth in which higher standards are needed because
we find that our custoners need additional mlKk
supplies in August. W nove January to the | ower
requi renent nonths.

We have limted qualifying shipnments to those
pool ed distributing plants physically in the Marketing
Area as we cannot find any reason to all ow
gualification for sharing in the Order 32 pool ed
proceeds by shipping to other Order plants.
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The provisions that allow for qualification
to be earned from shipnents to other Order plants are
general ly associated with reserve supply orders and are
witten to aid the suppliers fromthe reserve order to
better make the reserve shipnments. W do not consider
Order 32 to fit that description and thus woul d
elimnate shipments to other Orders fromthe definition
of what earns qualification.

Furthernore, data from Exhibit 5, Table 15,
Mar ket Adm ni strator exhibit, shows that deliveries to
ot her Federal Order plants increased markedly in the
Fal | of Cal endar Year 2000 and noticeably in the Fal
of Cal endar Year 2001 at precisely the tinme that mlk
was needed in Order 32.

Tabl e 16-A shows that the shipnents to O der
7 distributing plants in the Fall of Cal endar Year 2001
were used as the basis for qualifying mlk on Order 32
at a tinme when we were seeking mlk to supply Order 32
handl ers. Thus, mlk delivery shared in the Order 32
bl end pool but delivered to distributing plants
el sewhere at the exact tine it was needed nost in this
mar ket .

Addi tionally, sone of the other O der
shi pnments made in what is now the Marketing Area of the
Central Order, dated back to the pre-reformtine
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peri od, were made from what was a Predecessor Order to
anot her Predecessor Order. Wth the conbination of
several of the |lower Mdwest Orders into the current
Central Order, all of those shipnents are nowin the
Mar keti ng Area.

Because direct ship mlk is the nost
econom cal manner to supply the market, we want to
preserve the standards that allow for it to earn
qualification for in-area mlk supplies. However, we
cannot find a reason to support the practice that in-
area shipments can be used to qualify mlk that
originates far away fromthe market and rarely, if
ever, perforns to the market and would likely | ose
money if it had to performin a manner simlar to | oca
mlk supplies. Thus, we |limt the ability to use in-
area shipnments to qualify out-of-area supply plants.

The specific Order | anguage that supports
Proposal 2 anends Section 1032.7(d) as follows, and
this | anguage was lifted out of the Order, and this
section describes what was known as the "cooperative
supply plant" and was used to abet primarily perform
and to sonme extent touch base.

Because the perfornmance standard and net hod
we have chosen allows performance with real shipnents
and because we have not proposed to alter the touch-
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base standard of once for life, provided one does not
| ose association with the market or |ose the G ade A
permt status, we do not find a need for this
provi sion, plus English Exhibit Nunber 2 shows it
unused at the current tine.

The specific Order | anguage that supports
Proposal 3 anmends Section 1032.7(f) as follows, and
this | anguage again was lifted fromthe Notice of
Hear i ng.

Coments on Page 4, because we feel that the
supply plant units provide value to the nmarket, we
think they should remain. They allow for mlk supplies
to serve the market in a nore efficient manner. They
currently have the geographical requirenent that they
must be |l ocated inside the Marketing Area in order to
receive the benefit frombeing in the unit.

We think the Secretary -- excuse ne. W
think the Secretary correctly understood that this
benefit should exact a stricter performance standard,
and in this case geographic, and we support it.

However, there are sone benefits and
efficiencies gained by the unit nenbers that they m ght
not otherw se be able to gain. These may i ncl ude
access to the market, a greater return due to reduced
cost of transport from shipping nearby mlk in place of
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far-out mlk, greater plant efficiencies in the
manuf acturi ng operation of the supply plant due to
reduced shipping obligations, the ability of the unit
to, anong its nenbers, arrange for a standby reserve
supply agreenent that may entitle it to extract a
prem um fromthe market and perhaps even a reduction in
the neeting of sone of the Order's paperwork
requirenents.

In addition to these -- in addition to these
gains, we propose that a unit performat a slightly
hi gher performance standard than that required of a
st and- al one pl ant.

As the net result of all of our performance
standard requests will result in the elimnation of
pyram ded performance, we think that there may be a
renewed interest in supply plant units in the market.
Thus, our proposal would help the market get additiona
mlk supplies in the nost efficient manner.

This concept was a part of pre-reform Order
30, so it is not a new and uni que proposal. There, the
unit qualification was doubl e the percentage
requi renment for an individual supply plant in the
qualifying nonths; that is, stand-alone plants had to
ship five percent while unit performance was 10
percent, and in the renai ning nonths, three percent

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
(301) 565- 0064



© 00 N o g A~ w N P

N NN N NN P P P R R R R R R
g N W N P O © 0O N o o M W N P O

222

versus six percent for the unit.

The specific Order | anguage that supports
Proposal 4 and Section 1032.7(f) as follows, and again
this sinply lifts the informati on out of the Notice of
Hearing, and this provision authorizes the Market
Adm ni strator to adjust shipping percentages to renove
the reference to Paragraph (d) by revising the first
sentence of Paragraph (g). This is a conform ng-type
change only.

The specific Order | anguage that supports
Proposal 5 anmends Section 3213(d)(2) as follows.
Again, the language is lifted directly fromthe Notice
of Hearing. Comments on the bottom of Page 5.

This provision parallels our proposals in
Section 7(c). In light of proposals that limt
pyram ded performance, we propose a rel axed diversion
limt. The | anguage specifies that shipnents nust be
made each nonth in order to performand that deliveries
must be made to pool ed distributing plants or a unit of
such plants only in order to earn qualification by the
handl er .

These percentages are subject to an
adj ustnment by the Market Adm nistrator or, rather, are
subject to adjustnent by the Market Adm nistrator. Qur
overall goal is again to better correlate shipping
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Thus, if a handl er

is asked to pool 100 pounds in August, he nust ship 25

pounds to the market.

VR, BESHORE

Your Honor, | would like to

have marked as Exhibit 10 for the record, the six-page

statement that M. Hollon just read from

He didn't

read all of it, but he nmade sone allusions to the text.

JUDGE BAKER

MR. BESHORE

THE W TNESS:
think. | hope.

JUDGE BAKER
recogni ze it.

THE W TNESS:

MR. BESHORE

| don't have a copy of it.
| apol ogi ze.

There was one in your folder, I

Maybe. Maybe | didn't
Nope.
W will -- we will provide you

with a copy of the exhibit for the record.

JUDGE BAKER

MR, BESHORE
have it marked.

JUDGE BAKER

need a copy of it.

VR. BESHORE

Ckay.

I would propose to have it --

It wwll be so marked, and

(The docunent referred to was
mar ked for identification as
Exhi bit Nunber 10.)

There is some further testinony
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that 1'd like to have M. Hollon offer. However, M.
English has a witness that he would Iike -- and |
wonder if there mght be a tine when we take a short
break and proceed further.
JUDGE BAKER: Very well. We'Ill take M.
English's witness then now, and then we'll take our
m d- af t er noon br eak.
MR. BESHORE: (kay.
MR. ENGLISH | would call M. Warren
Eri ckson.
JUDGE BAKER  Very well. Thank you.
Wher eupon,
WARREN ERI CKSON
havi ng been first duly sworn, was called as a w tness
herein and was exam ned and testified as foll ows:
Dl RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR ENGLI SH:
Q M. Erickson, would you state your nane,
pl ease?
A Warren Erickson.
Q Wiy don't you go ahead and present your
st at ement ?
A Good afternoon. M nane is Warren Erickson.
I amthe Executive Vice President and CFO of Anderson
Eri ckson Dairy Conpany. W operate one pool
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distributing plant in Des Mines, lowa. The plant is
regul ated by the new Central Order and was subject to
regul ati on pursuant to the lowa Order prior to Federal
MIlk Oder Reform

Federal Order Reforminpacted our operations
in two ways that are relevant to today's proceeding.
First, as to the Class 1 Differential, we now pay nore
relative to our conpetitors to the south than we paid
prior to Federal Order Reform This is inportant
because we have historically sold a significant portion
of our bottled mlk in the Kansas Gty market.

Today, our Class 1 Differential is $1.80
conpared to $2 in Kansas City. Prior to Federal Oder
Reform this 20-cent difference was 37 cents, $1.55 in
Des Mdines and $1.92 in Kansas City.

Second, since it is blend prices that
actually nove mlk to fluid mlk plants, the increased
m |l k pooled on Order 32 during 2001 has necessarily
negatively inpacted the blend price available to
producers who ship to our plant.

Bl end prices are based upon Cass 1
Utilization. AMS in Federal O der Reform believed that
the new Central Order would have a 50 percent Class 1
Utilization. See Proposed Final Rule, 64 Federal
Regi ster, at Page 16072.
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Instead, Central Oder Class 1 Utilization of
28.6 percent for 2000 and 25.4 percent for the first
nine nonths of 2001 are far below that predicted d ass
1 Uilization |level.

Qur ability to obtain raw mlk for Cass 1
bottling and our resulting raw m |k procurenent costs
are tied directly to pooling provisions of Federal MIKk
Orders. In particular, as a Cass 1 bottler that pays
the Class 1 Differential on the vast majority of our
mlk, it is inportant to note that it is blend prices
and especially relative blend prices that nove mlk to
where it is needed.

Wth Federal Order Reform we have a higher
Class 1 Differential, but according to AVS
predictions, even with a 50 percent Class 1
Utilization, a |ower blend. W are paying nore and
have |l ess potential to attract a mlk supply. W do
not object to the present level of price, if that is
needed to encourage an adequate supply, but the
i ncreased dollars that we are now payi ng shoul d be used
to attract mlk to our plant and other distributing
pl ants that are al so paying this higher price.
Unfortunately, this does not occur.

As a Class 1 processor, we believe that sone
stricter limts on pooling are needed so as to tie the

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
(301) 565- 0064



© 00 N o g A~ w N PP

N NN N NN P P R R R R R Rp R
g N W N P O © 0O N o o M W N P O

227
benefits of pooling to the actual performance of such
mlk and to increase the Class 1 Utilization. However,
sonme proposal s under consideration today, at |east as
presently witten, could well be too tight in that we
may be econom cally foreclosed from pursuing reasonabl e
alternative mlk supplies. Sone proposals also fail to
recogni ze historic pooling arrangenents.

As to the hearing proposals under
consi deration here today, we have the foll ow ng
speci fic comments and reserve the right to support or
oppose specific proposals on brief.

M Ik should not be allowed to double dip into
pool dollars on a federal and state Order narketw de
pool. There is no need for the sane mlk to qualify
for pool benefits on two Orders, regardl ess of whether
both of these Orders are federal or one of the two

Orders is a state-operated marketw de pool .

The handl er on such mlk should -- should
choose on which order the mlk wll be pooled. Double
pooling of the same mlk is sinply -- should not be

permtted. The Market Adm nistrator chart, entitled
"English Nunber 6", which is in Exhibit Nunber 6, shows
that such mlk is outside a 500-mle radius from any
existing Central Order pooled distributing plant. Such
m |k cannot realistically be available to the Cass 1
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mar ket on a regular basis, and if diverted back to
pl ants over 500 m|es away, the diverted m |k cannot be
consi dered part of a reasonable reserve for this
mar ket .

For this reason, we support Proposal 8. MIk
from producers who happen to be | ocated outside certain
state |lines need not be treated based solely on the
| ocation of the farnms differently than producer mlk
produced inside those certain state |ines.

W note that the old lowa Order had 50+
mllion pounds of Mnnesota m |k pool ed | ong before
Federal Order Reform

Shi ppi ng percentages should be both realistic
and real. Diversion l[imtations should be both
realistic and real. W understand the present O der
provi sions permt pyramding of pooled mlk. W oppose
such pyram di ng.

We do not agree that shipnents to 7(e) plants
that are not also 7(a) plants should be qualifying
shi pnments with respect to shipping percentages. The
relatively large non-Class 1 volune of mlk associ ated
with such 7(e) plants is not the sane as the relatively
small non-Cl ass 1 volune associated with 7(a) plants.

Permtting those operations to receive
shi pnments as qualifying shipnments will reduce the
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actual need for qualifying shipments of mlk nmade to
C ass 1 pool ed distributing plants.

We al so understand from our past efforts to
i ncrease shipping percentages in the old | owa O der
t hat the Market Adm nistrator does not take C ass 2
vol unes into consideration.

There's no need for separate cooperative
supply plant definitions on this Order, especially as
no plant is presently qualifying pursuant to
Subpar agraph 7(d), and the touch-base provision is as
inmportant, if not nore inportant, than the actual |evel
of shi pping percentages. Since there is no proposal to
i ncrease the touch-base provision fromone day's
production provision, it is all the nore inportant to
elimnate the automatic supply plant definition.

The commtnent to supply the Central Order
and the decision to be pooled on the Order should be a
year-around comm tnent, requiring nonthly qualifying
shi pnments to pool ed pl ants.

Thank you for your tinme and consideration.

Q M. Erickson, a few questions, especially
since your testinony, as a favor from M. Beshore and
M. Hollon, is going relatively early.

Your testinony is given in light of the fact
that -- that maybe sone changes are comi ng, and you
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recogni ze that, correct?

A Correct.

Q But you don't necessarily know or have not
had an opportunity to understand what all those changes
m ght be, but you understand that there are those
changes?

A That's correct.

Q Wth respect to Paragraph Nunmber 1 on Page 3
and your support of Proposal 8, do you understand that
-- that there's going to be an expert w tness proposed,
M. Conover, to testify about the details of that
proposal and the detail need for Proposal 8, is that
correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q And with respect to Paragraph 2, the DFA
testinony just given for 1998, Decenber 1998, reflects
a nunber closer to 38 mllion pounds; the 50 mllion
pounds referenced in Paragraph 2, is that from an
earlier year, 19967?

A | believe that's the historical average for
' 96, yes.

Q And in addition to the statenent in Paragraph
4 with respect to 7(e) plants, do you al so support the
proposal from DFA that would elimnate qualifying
shipnments to other Order distributing plants?
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A Yes.

Q One final question, and that is, perhaps sone
in the Departnment renenber this, and certainly you and
| and others in Anderson Erickson renenber, but could
you briefly describe the reference in Paragraph 4 on
Page 4 with respect to past efforts to increase
shi ppi ng percent ages?

Have you in the past at Anderson Erickson had
difficulties attracting a mlk supply to your plant?

A W have.

Q And in those instances, have you asked the
Mar ket Admi nistrator to increase shipping percentages?

A Yes.

Q And it is in those direct instances that you
have been told by the Market Adm nistrator's office
that they do not include Cass 2 need for the purpose
of qualifying shipnents?

A Yes.

MR, ENGLI SH: Thank you. That's all | have
for this wtness. He's available for cross
exam nati on.

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you, M. English.

Are there any questions for M. Erickson?
Yes, M. Beshore.

MR. BESHORE: Thank you.
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CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BESHCRE:
Q M. Erickson, let nme pick up right where M.
English left off.
| don't think you neant to say that shipnents
to plants such as yours which have both Cass 1 and
Cass 2 utilization are not qualifying shipnments. You
didn't nmean to say that, did you?
A That's correct.
Q Your -- at your plant in Des Mines, you have
both Cass 1 and O ass 2 production, correct?
A Correct.
Q What Cl ass 2 products do you nmake there?
A We woul d make yogurt, sour cream dips,
whi pped cream hi gher-fat products.
Q Do you have any ice cream production?
A We have ice cream m x production but not ice

cream producti on per se.

Q I's that done at Des WMbi nes?

A Yes.

Q Is that also a C ass 2?

A That woul d be considered O ass 2, yes.

Q Now, so, your -- your single plant at Des

Moines is a 7(a) distributing plant, although it has
both Cass 1 and Cass 2 products in the sanme facility,
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correct?

A Yes.

Q kay. And so, any shipnents that anybody
makes under the Order to -- to that plant are -- are
qual i fying shipnments to a 7(a) plant, whether that
particular mlk is in CQass 1 or Class 2, isn't that
correct?

A Yes.

Q Now, in Comrent 4 at the bottom of Page 3,

I"'m-- I"mnot sure | understand your -- your concern
here. 7(e) plants are -- maybe -- let ne see if our
understanding -- if ny understanding and yours is the

same with respect to what 7(e) plants are.

7(e) plants, as defined in the Order, are a
distributing plant unit where you've got facilities
under two different roofs in CQass 1 and Class 2, and
if they were under one roof, such as yours, they'd
qualify as 7(a). The Order says that because they're
under two separate roofs, if they neet the sane
percentage test, they'll be considered as under one
roof, correct?

A That's correct, as | understand it.

Q Ckay. And in fact, the 7(e) plant units have
sone additional requirenents that they nust neet that
are not the sane to a 7(a) plant, such as the Cass 2

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
(301) 565- 0064



© 00 N o g A~ w N P

N NN N NN P P R R R R R Rp R
g N W N P O ©W 0O N O O M W N P O

234
facility? It has to be in a lower Cass 1 area or not
in a higher area and things of that sort? Are you
aware of that?

A I am not aware of that.

Q Okay. Well, the language is in the O der,
and it will speak for itself.

Now, assum ng that that 7(e) unit neets all
the sane requirenments as -- as -- for Cass 1
Utilization as your 7(a) plant, why do you feel that it
woul dn't be entitled to the sane treatnent as your
single 7(a) plant?

A Qur main concern was to not afford a 7(e)
pl ant an advantage over a 7(a) plant.

Q Wiy woul d that give an advantage? | nean, if
shipnments to that -- to those two plants that just
happen to be under two different roofs, naybe one's
across the street fromthe other, if they're treated
the sane as if it was to one plant under the sane roof,
if they had the sane utilization, the sane products in
t he aggregate, sane volune and everything, everything' s
the sane, except it's two different roofs, why woul d
that give them an advant age?

A |"mgoing to repeat ny last answer. Qur
concern was that the 7(e) plants wouldn't be given an
advant age that 7(a) plants would. |If everything was
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exactly the sane, then we wouldn't -- wouldn't be an
objection to that.

Q Al right. So, if the proposal -- if the
proposal really doesn't give them an advantage, you
don't have any problemwth it?

A That woul d be true.

Q Okay. Now, with respect to your concern
about producers being -- who happen to be | ocated
outside certain state lines would be treated
differently based solely on the location of the farm
is it -- you' ve also said that you don't expect to be
relying on -- need to rely on mlk from di stant

| ocations, such as California, for your mlk supply,

correct?

A That's correct.

Q Ckay. You don't expect to rely on mlk from
| daho for your mlk supply? | nean, you don't need any

suppl enmental supplies fromldaho, correct?
A At this tinme, no.
Q Ckay. Do you expect torely on mlk -- do

you expect to rely on themfor your supply?

A | can't answer that.
Q You' ve never had to do that?
A W' ve gone as far away as Texas, never gone

north to Sout h Dakot a.
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Q Because there wasn't mlk available in | owa?

A A significant portion of our mlk conmes from
out si de of | owa.

Q The Sout hern M nnesota counties, is that what
you're referring to fromoutside of lowa? Southern
M nnesot a?

A There's sonme Southern M nnesota and there's
sonme Wsconsin mlk that woul d cone from outside |owa
t hat woul d conme to our plant.

Q And those woul d be the I ocations that you
referred to as historically associating with the |owa
Order?

A These are m |k that we procured regularly in
t he past.

MR, BESHORE: Thank you.
JUDGE BAKER: Very well. Thank you.
Are there any other questions for M.
Eri ckson? Ms. Brenner, then you, M. Vetne.
CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY M5. BRENNER:

Q M. Erickson, with regard to the elimnation
of allow ng shipnents to other Order distributing
plants to qualify -- to be qualifying shipnents, don't
those count as Cass 1 use in the Central Mrketing
Area?
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A My main concern is to -- to procure mlk at
ny plant locally, that that was the -- the intent of
the testinony here, was to not encourage mlk to go out
of our Order and be used in other places because |'m
trying to fulfill nmy ass 1 and 2 needs at ny plant.

Q You were --

A I don't know the answer to your question.

Q You were noting that the blend price would be
hi gher of the Cass 1 use and that would attract nore
mlk, and --

A Correct.

Q And if the -- if the Cass 1 use on the
mar ket were enhanced, that woul d enhance the bl end
price, too, wouldn't it?

A Certainly an increase in the blend price
woul d enhance our position and the ability to procure
m K.

Q I n Paragraph 6, you refer to the "automatic
supply plant definition". Are you talking there about
the period of what we sonetines refer to as a "free
ride" or a plant -- a supply plant that's qualified for
a period of tine doesn't have to neet those perfornmance
standards for another block of nonths in order to poo
the mlk?

A Yes.
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Q Is that what you're --
A Yes.
kay.
M5. BRENNER  That was all | had.
JUDGE BAKER: Very well. That brings us to a

time for our afternoon recess, and when we cone back,
M. Vetne, you indicated you have sonme questi ons.
We'll take a 15-mnute recess at this tine.
(Wher eupon, a recess was taken.)
JUDGE BAKER W are now back on the record
after our afternoon recess.
M. Erickson is on the stand. M. Vetne, |
bel i eve you had sone questions.

MR VETNE: Yes, | do, Your Honor. John

Vet ne.
CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MR VETNE
Q | wanted to followa little bit up on your

coments on the Section 7(e) plant, distributing plant
units. First, for reference, roughly what is your
average Class 1 use to your total use?

A Roughly, 80 percent.

Q So, you're -- you're a dedicated Cass 1
facility?

A Yes, sir.
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Q Is 80 percent or thereabouts the percentage
of Cass 1 you would ordinarily find in a distributing
plant that is Class 1, that has sone Class 1 use --

G ass 2 use?

A Yes.

Q The 9(e) plants nmust -- nust neet an
aggregate for the pool ed distributing plant
qualification, and you're aware that that's 25 percent
total utilization, --

Yes, sSir.

-- not 70 or 80 percent?

> O >

Yes, sir.

Q And of that 25 percent, 25 percent has to be
distributed in the Marketing Area. So, a plant that
has -- a conpany that has nmultiple plants, including
dedicated Class 2 plants, could qualify on the basis of
alittle over six and a half percent distribution of
Class 1 products in the Marketing Area?

A Yes, sir.

Ckay. As far as being on equal footing,
woul d you agree that you' re not on equal footing if
shi pments of mlk qualify for dedicated Cass 2 use if
the purpose is to get mlk to Class 1 facilities?

A Yes.

Q You referred in your testinony to blend
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prices noving mlk twice on the bottom of Page 1 and
again on Page 2. 1In all cases, you -- once, you used
the term"relative blend prices". |s that you nean by

bl end prices novenent of mlk?

A You could -- you could refer to either.
Rel ative -- you're always relative to your conpetition
So, --

Q In all cases, --

A -- relative blend price would probably be the

nost accurat e.

Q Most accurate. Ckay. It's not the |evel of
bl end prices at your plant, it's the level of blend
prices for mlk delivered to your plant versus the

| evel of blend prices to other plants in other areas

around - -
A That is correct.
Q Ckay.
A Yes.
Q And you also referred to a lower -- a | ower

bl end even with 50 percent Class 1 utilization. Again,
are we referring to a relative bl end?

A Yes.

Q You're not referring to the -- the nover
there at that point, you're referring to the proceeds
to producers above the nover, whatever it is?
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A Yes.

Q Now, it's the |ower of Class -- higher of
Class 3 or 4, before it was the basic fornula price,
before it was the MW price?

A Correct.

Q kay. Have you | ooked at the level of the
di fference between the nover and the PPD since January
of 2000 and the difference between the basic fornula
price and the blend price prior to January 2000 to
conpare those nunbers?

A Could you restate? I|I'msorry. | nmay have to
wite it down.

Q You m ght have to wite it down. Referring

to a lower blend in your testinony, --

A Hm hmm

Q -- by blend, you're referring to the PPD, am
| correct?

A Hm hmm

Q Ckay. And would you agree with ne that the
conparative equival ent for purposes -- for this
pur pose, prior to January of 2000, is the difference
bet ween the blend price and the BFP, the nover? That's
the extra anount that the producers receive?

A Yes.

Q Have you conpared those two nunbers before
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and after January 2000 in preparation of your
t esti nony?
A Yes.
Q Do you have data, either general or specific,

relating to those differences before and after 20007

A I do not have data available to nme right
her e.
Q kay. Fine.
MR. VETNE: That's all | have. Thank you.
JUDGE BAKER Al right. Thank you, M.
Vet ne.

Are there any other questions of M.

Eri ckson? M. Beshore?
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BESHORE
Q | had just one other question, M. Erickson,

and this anticipates sone testinony which M. Holl on
has not yet presented. So, if you and everybody el se
wll bear with us a mnute, you know, you're testifying
now, and you've got to | eave.

Assume with nme M. Hollon is going to present
sone testinony that would nodify the particul ars of

Proposals 1 through 5 to add sone, what we call, "net
shi pnments" | anguage to the qualification provisions, so
that it were -- was not possible for any -- for
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producers or supply plants to qualify by punping mlk
in and -- into and back out of the distributing plant
in order to be part of the Order or ship mlk one day
and buy m |k back the next day, and so that there's no
net delivery, so to speak.

Wul d you support those sorts of protective
provisions in the Order, so that whatever qualification
of performance standard there is, it's an actual net
performance for the work?

A Yes.

Q Thank you.

JUDGE BAKER  Thank you.

Are there any other questions of M.

Eri ckson? Yes, M. English?
MR, ENGLI SH: Just one question on redirect.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR ENGLI SH:

Q Wth respect to the series of questions asked
by Ms. Brenner and qualifying shipnents to pool ed
distributing plants on other Orders, would it be fair
to say that your concern is the idea you have a
shi ppi ng percentage of 25 percent that's being net by
shi ppi ng to soneone el se?

A Yes. M primary concern is to get people
into ny plant, and by shipping outside the Order to
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anot her plant, that's not hel pi ng Anderson Erickson.
MR. ENGLISH: That's all | have.
JUDGE BAKER  Thank you.
Are there any other questions for M.
Eri ckson?
(No response)
JUDGE BAKER: There appear to be none.
Thank you very much, M. Erickson
THE WTNESS: Thank you. | thank Your Honor
for your indulgence, and | thank M. Beshore and M.
Hol | on agai n.
JUDGE BAKER  Very well. Thank you bot h.
(Wher eupon, the wi tness was excused.)
JUDGE BAKER: M. Beshore, M. Hollon is
still on the stand.
Wher eupon,
ELVI N HOLLON
havi ng been previously duly sworn, was recalled as a
wi t ness herein and was exam ned and testified as
fol | ows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON ( RESUVED)
BY MR BESHORE
Q Ckay. Continuing wth your direct testinony,
M. Hollon, you heard ne refer -- direct a question to
M. Erickson just a nonent ago with respect to proposed
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shi pment provisions which you have not -- not yet
testified to.

| -- do you have sone brief testinony with
respect to those nodifications to the proposals to
present at this tine?

And there is a two-page statenment which is
avai lable. I'mnot going to propose that this be
mar ked as an exhibit and presented for the record, but
it is avail able for everyone to follow as you present
it, M. Hollon.

Wbul d you proceed with that --

A Ckay.

Q -- statenent, please?

A The statenent is titled "Mdifications
O fered by Dairy Farners of Anerica to Proposals 1
t hrough 5".

We offer the follow ng nodification to our
proposal s to nmake sure that all performance neasures
are based on -- on net or real shipnments. This
nodi fication in no way detracts from any of our
proposal s made thus far and serves to further define
our intent.

Al of the shipnents that we propose to
nmeasure, those used to determ ne supply plant
qualifications in Section 7(c) and producer mlk
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standards in 13(d), should be subject to net
calculations; that is, any shipnments made to a pool ed
di stributing plant for the purpose of qualification
shoul d be reduced by shi pnents nmade fromthe
di stributing plant back to the pooling handl er.

Thus, we woul d propose to nodify our proposa
by addi ng a new Paragraph C-5 to read as foll ows.
1327(c)(5). "Shipnents used in determ ning qualifying
percent ages shall be transferred or diverted and
physically received by distributing pooled plants |ess
any transfers or diversions of bulk fluid mlk products
fromsuch distributing pooled plants.™

And 13(d)(3). "Receipts used in determning
gual i fyi ng percentages shall be mlk transferred to or
diverted to and physically received by plants described
in 1327(a), (b) or (e), less any transfers or
di versions of bulk fluid m Ik products from such
di stributing pooled plants.™

And we have renunbered Sections 3 through 5
to be Nunber 4 through 6.

The new Section 7(c)(5), as nodified,
proposes a net shipnent provision conmon to nmany
Orders. It prevents a supply plant from shipping mlk
into the front door of a pooled distributing plant and
t hen rel oadi ng and shi pping the m |k back out the back
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door .

Wthout this nodification, qualification
standards could be nmet and yet the manufacturing plant
can retain use of the mlk, hardly a nethod of making
m |k available for the market, and it allows for
suppliers to qualify additional m |k on the market,
even though it would not performfor the market. CQur
proposal would prevent this from occurring.

Two. The new Section 13(d)(2) and 3 as
nodi fi ed proposes a net receipts provision. It further
defines the standard of performance to nmake sure that
t he neasure of receipts is based on real shipnents and
does not allow a pooling handler to strike a deal to
cycle mlk through a distributing plant to bulk up its
qgualification vol une.

The | arge econom ¢ incentive for attaching
supply plant mlk to Order 32, coupled with our
proposals to better rationalize performance standards,
may tenpt parties to nake arrangenents to ship out the
back door, even though the haul costs may be
substantial in order to collect the pooled draw.

The Market Adm nistrator nust audit these
shi pnments as a part of his regular audit practices.
The tenptation to skip the delivery part of the
transaction and just report it as occurring al so
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beconmes great as a nethod to avoid the costs. Renoval
of the financial incentive as our proposal intends
woul d elimnate the tenptation to fake the delivery.

We realize that in sone cases, the cost of
maki ng these types of arrangenents will prohibit their
occurrence. However, we know from our own experience
that it does not always do so, thus we propose these
nodi fications.

MR. BESHORE: Now, at this tinme, Your Honor,
with -- with your -- your perm ssion and everyone's
consent, | would like M. Hollon to also present his
testimony which relates to Proposal 7, which is a DFA
proposal that involves the sane issues of pooling as
relate to Orders -- Proposals 1 through 5 and logically
shoul d be di scussed in the sane context as Proposals 1
t hr ough 5.

JUDGE BAKER: Very well, M. Beshore.

MR, BESHORE: Thank you.

BY MR BESHORE

Q M. Hollon, you have a statenent and also a
set of exhibits that relate to Proposal 77
A That is correct.

MR, BESHORE: Okay. | would like to mark
then M. Hollon's statenent on Proposal 7 as Exhibit
11, and his exhibits with respect to Proposal 7, which
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are under separate cover, as Exhibit 12.
JUDGE BAKER  They shall be so marked, M.
Beshor e.
(The docunents referred to
were marked for identification
as Exhibit Nunbers 11 and 12.)
MR. BESHORE: The statenent is 11, the
exhibits are 12.
BY MR BESHCRE:
Q You al so have two other separate -- separate
docunents, which are -- one is a map of the State of
M nnesota, the other a map of the State of W sconsin.
A Correct.
MR. BESHORE: And we'd |ike those to be
mar ked as -- which are statenents -- exhibits relating
to Proposal 7 as Exhibits 12 for Mnnesota --
JUDGE BAKER: No. 13. 13.
MR. BESHORE: 13, for Wsconsin.
JUDGE BAKER: No. His -- the last exhibit
was 12. So, it would be 13 and 14.
MR, BESHORE: |I'msorry. Yes, 13 and 14.
JUDGE BAKER: And now, which one do you want
marked first?
MR. BESHORE: M nnesota 13.
JUDGE BAKER: Al right. That's Exhibit 13.
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Then Wsconsin is Exhibit 14.
MR. BESHORE: W sconsin 14.
(The docunents referred to
were marked for identification
as Exhibit Nunbers 13 and 14.)
MR. BESHORE: We will make sure that the
reporter's provided with --
JUDGE BAKER  Thank you.
MR, BESHORE: -- three copies of those --
JUDGE BAKER  Thank you.
MR, BESHORE: Those exhibits, and they should
be available in the roomto all the -- all the
partici pants.
BY MR BESHORE:

Q Wul d you -- are you ready to proceed with --

A ' mready.

Q -- your statenent on Proposal 7 then, M.
Hol | on?

A Statenent on Proposal 7. The case for mlk

fromstates with no counties in the Marketing Area.
Exhibit 5, Table 11, entitled "Central Federal Order
Nunmber of Producers and Pounds of M|k Pool ed by State,
2000 and 2001", furnished by the Market Adm ni strator,
illustrates the volune of distant mlk that is pool ed
on Order 32.
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Table 12, a map of this data, also produced
by the Market Adm nistrator, graphically details the
information. Data provided by handlers on the sources
of pooled mlk as required by each Federal Order is the
source of data for this map. It shows the Order
Mar keting Area and the sources of mlk pooled on the
O der.

In an earlier statenent, specific mleage and
econom c return data was presented to denonstrate that
this mlk could not serve the market regularly and
generate a positive return.

W have denonstrated that the evidence
presented by Federal Order Reformclearly shows that
mlk fromthese areas was specifically excluded from
the Marketing Area and never intended to be a part of
the Order 32 pool.

Evi dence about Marketing Area and bl end price
cal cul ation and the underlying | ogic of the nodels that
generated the Order's pricing surplus support our
contention and will not be detail ed here again.

The Proponents of Proposal 8 share the sane
concern that we do, that mlk is sharing in the Federa
Order 32 Blend Price but does not performfor the
market in a reasonabl e manner.

We woul d propose that specific Order |anguage
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be adopted to define the performance requirenents for
mlk |located outside of the Marketing Area. In
general , our proposal woul d be patterned after the
| anguage that exists currently in Federal Order 1 and
exi sted in Federal Oder 2 for many years prior to
O der Reform

That | anguage states that mlk fromspecific
geogr aphi c areas be grouped together in individua
state units by individual handler, and then each
i ndi vidual unit nust neet the prevailing performance
standard exacted on in-area m|Kk.

Before we spell out the specifics of our
| anguage, however, we would like to detail why we
propose that certain M nnesota and Wsconsin counties
must al so be treated with the sane standards.

In the case of M nnesota and W sconsin
supplies to Order 32, the Market Adm ni strator Exhibit
5 requested by Holl on shows specific information about
the mlk pool on Order 32 --

Q M. Hollon?

A Yes?

Q Could I interrupt you there? It's the Market
Adm nistrator's Exhi bit which had i nformation requested
by you as Exhibit 7.

A kay. Sorry. Shows specific information
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about the mlk pool on Order 32 for M nnesota and
W sconsin in Decenber of 1996, 1998 and 2000.

These periods were requested in order to show
the extent of mlIk pooled in Order 32 as designated by
its current boundaries and as if the current boundaries
whi ch contain Predecessor Orders had been in effect
t hen and that presently associated wth the O der
t hrough the open pooling schenes that are currently in
use.

The map shows only a few blue areas in 1998;
that is, only a few M nnesota and W sconsin counties
not located in the Marketing Area with mlk pool ed on
O der 32.

In Decenber 2000, in either state, there were
only a few counties that did not pool any mlk in O der
32, a remarkabl e change. Mny of those counties with
no mlk pooled on Order 32 have no m |k production at
all. The acconpanying table provides nunerical detai
for the map

In Decenber of 1998, 14 W sconsin out-of-area
counties pool ed 38, 820, 757 pounds of m |k on Order 32.
By Decenber of 2000, the county count was 66, and the
vol unme at 394, 747,229 or up 917 percent.

For M nnesota, there were 23 counties
suppl yi ng 37, 259, 609 pounds of mlk in 1998. By
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Decenber 2000, the county count was 67, and the vol une,
146, 300, 098 or a 292-percent increase.

In sum 540, 750, 328 pounds exceeded the total
Class 1 and 2 pounds in the Order in Decenber of 2000.
The cal cul ations presented earlier noted that mlk from
these areas did not provide a positive return -- did
provide -- I"'msorry -- a positive return but not
i kely enough to pay the procurenment costs or bid it
away from a manufacturing plant.

So, why would | becone attracted to Order 327
Because it could easily associate mninmally perform and
still collect fromthe blend pool. The conbination of
easy market association and |ax pooling requirenents
made the opportunity too easy to pass up.

Furthernore, while we can easily support the
concept that in-area shipnents be used to qualify mlKk
produced in the Marketing Area, it is nore difficult to
define how in-area shipnents could -- should be used to
qual i fy out-of-area supplies.

Wt hout our proposal, it wll becone too easy
for in-area mlk production and sales to provide
qualification for mlk supplies produced out of the
Mar keting Area. Since these supplies are in such close
proximty, we think the provisions governing them need
addi tional specification. Thus, we would propose that

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
(301) 565- 0064



© 00 N o g A~ w N P

N NN N NN P P R R R R R Rp R
g N W N P O © O N o o M W N P O

255
certain counties in Mnnesota and Wsconsin al so be
subject to the sane type of qualification standard as
mlk fromnore distant areas, such as California or New
Mexi co.

I"ve lost track of which exhibit nunber it
i's, but Exhibit Nunber sonething, Tables 1-A and 1-B --
Tabl es -- oh, that's because we haven't put this
exhibit in yet.

Q That's Exhibit --

A 12.

Q -- 12.

A Exhibit 12, Table 1-A and B, entitled
"M nnesota and Wsconsin Counties that Pooled M|k on
Order 32 and Its Predecessor Orders That Are Not In the
Mar keti ng Area, Decenber 1998 and Decenber 2000",
outline our approach.

The question succinctly is, what out-of-area
counties should be afforded the qualification
privileges of being associated with in-area mlk, and
what counties should be held to a nore stringent
st andar d?

We woul d propose that mlk fromcounties
associated with the Marketing Area in 1998 and had a
supply volune in excess of one 50, 000- pound- per -1 oad-
per-day be included with the in-area standard. Al
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ot her counties would be included with the out-of-area
st andar d.

The historical link to the prior period with
t he recogni zabl e and substanti al marketabl e vol une
seens to be reasonable and a justifiable standard. For
M nnesota counties, Table 1-A shows that 37 mllion
pounds shi pped from counties that had any associ ation
in 1998. This volunme grewto 146 mllion in 2000.
Application of our standard would reduce this volune to
52 mllion.

For Wsconsin counties, Table 1-B shows that
39 mllion pounds shipped fromcounties that had any
association in 1998. This volume grew to 395 mllion
in 2000. Application of our standard would reduce this
volune to 66 mllion.

Note that any volune could still qualify to
share in the Order 32 pool but would have to neet the
out - of - area performance standar d.

Wiile we share the sanme view with the
Proponents to Proposal 8, that there is an issue of
concern due to the open pooling provisions allow ng
distant mlk from-- I"'msorry -- allowing mlk distant
fromthe market to pool w thout perform ng, we differ
on how to correct the problem

The sol utions they propose are insufficient
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in several areas. Proposal 8 does not recognize the
primacy of a Marketing Area nor does it address the
concerns of a performance standard.

We feel that any proposal nust incorporate
t hese fundanentals. The setting of an arbitrary
standard that cannot be neasured with an econom c rul er
is not the right way to go and may suffer fromfuture
| egal chal |l enge.

Proposal 8 does not address the total
uni verse of potential supply that can attach itself to
t he market but never serve the market. In this
specific case, mlk fromldaho, M nnesota, Wsconsin or
New Mexi co, for exanple, would still not be affected in
any way by the proposed relief but could likely stil
pool with m nimal perfornmance.

Proposal 8 may result in unforeseen negative
consequences between mlk pooled in Federal Orders and
mlk pooled in state Orders. There are state M|k
Marketing Orders in California and Nevada, North
Dakota, Montana, Virginia, Pennsylvania, New York and
Mai ne. There have been proposals in recent years in
Texas, Kansas, Nebraska and even occasionally Wsconsin
for state Orders to be pronul gated.

The interface between Federal Orders and
existing state Orders is difficult to determ ne and
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i npossible with potential future state Orders. In
fact, | participated in discussions |ast week with the
Trade Association of Dairy Farmers seeking input on the
establ i shnent of a new state Order.

W see no reason to seek a solution that wll
-- that may incur future trouble when better solutions
are available. Proposal 8 may result in unforeseen
negati ve conpacts between m |k pooled in Federal O ders
and m | k pooled in conpacts.

While currently the exi stence of conpacts is
t hreat ened, we suspect that they are not dead. There
is even talk of a national conpact that woul d include
the Upper Mdwest. W see no reason to seek a solution
that may incur future trouble when better solutions are
easi |y avail abl e.

Proposal 8 requires an additional audit
burden and the authority to collect that information
that may not be available. To our know edge, the
California state -- California state officials are
under no requirenent to furnish audit data or to
furnish data for audit to the Federal Order System and
enact nent of Proposal 8 would only mgrate the problem
to other Order areas.

A nore uniformapplication to all Orders that
woul d solve or alleviate greatly this concernis a
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superi or choi ce.

Wth regard to our Proposal 7, we'd note that
the concept is already in place in Federal Order 1, the
Nort heast Order, and was in place in Federal Oder 2
prior to reform so it has already stood the test of
tinme.

It recognizes the principles of both the
Mar keting Area and the performance aspect of marketw de
pooling. It has already been proposed for use in
Federal Order 30, and its continued use would be
consistent here. It carries little additiona
recordkeeping or audit burden. It has a neasurable
econom ¢ consequence that is in line with existing
Order principles, that if the economcs are positive,
regul ati on does not prohibit pooling. Yet it provides
a reasonable and justifiable hurdle for distant mlk to
over cone.

The provision that each state nust be treated
individually and performas a stand-alone entity under
the same 20 or 25 percent perfornmance standard as any
other -- as any other in-area mlk supply provides a
reasonabl e econom c test of whether or not the return
Wil justify the performance. The econom c return nust
be earned in the marketplace and not in the pooling
report.
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As shown in Exhibit 9, Tables 10 through 15,
at the 20 or 25 percent shipping | evel and the sane PPD
and delivery costs, there are nonths of negative
returns and sone nonths of positive ones, thus raising
the hurdle of economc risk.

By requiring performance -- by requiring
performance simlar to other local mlk supplies, the
i ntangi bl es of rejected | oads, bad weather and a
vari abl e demand from bottl ers causes the return to be
| ess dependable and the risk greater. This, however,
causes the decision-making process faced by the distant
supplier to be nore like that faced by local mlk
suppliers.

The individual state unit concept is an
adequat e and reasonabl e safeguard for Order 32.
Furthernore, the requiring each state unit to perform
individually prevents in-area mlk from qualifying
distant mlk. It also discourages distant mlIk from
seeking a large supply block froma nearby state,
informng a unit to ease the performance requirenents.

We find schenes simlar to this occurring in
ot her Federal Orders, and they disrupt orderly
mar keting practices there. W wish to avoid their
spr ead.

We find nmany exanpl es of geographic
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distinction in current Order provisions. Currently,
Order 32 and Order 30 supply point units nust be
conposed of plants in the Marketing Area.
Transportation credits paid in Federal Orders 5 and 7
nmust be made fromm |l k originating outside of the
Mar keti ng Area.

In the former Texas Order, balancing credits
could be paid only on mlk produced in certain
counties. In the former Mchigan O der, direct
delivery differentials were paid only on shipnments to
bottlers |ocated in specific counties.

In this proceeding, we are proposing a higher
performance standard for supply plant units, and they
must be conposed of plants |ocated in the Marketing
Area. Thus, our proposed | anguage would read -- in
each case, the proposed | anguage is identical to the
Notice of Hearing, with the exception of the paragraph
that specifies the counties.

So, I'l'l sinply read Paragraphs 1327(c) (4).
Qur proposed | anguage would read, "If mlk is delivered
to a plant physically located outside the states of
Col orado, Illinois, lowa, Kansas, M ssouri, Nebraska,
&l ahoma, South Dakota, and the M nnesota counties of
Fill nmore, Houston, Lincoln, Mwer, Mirray, Nobles,

A nst ead, Pipestone, Rock, and Wnona, and the
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Wsconsin counties of Crawmford, Gant, Geen, |owa,
Laf ayette, Richland and Vernon, by producers also
| ocated outside the areas specified in this paragraph,
producer receipts at such plants shall be organi zed by
i ndi vidual state units, and each unit shall be subject
to the follow ng requirenents.”
Turning the page and readi ng the sane
paragraph -- simlar paragraph in 3213(e), "MIKk
recei pts from producers whose farns that are physically
| ocated outside the states of Colorado, lowa, Illinois,
Kansas, M ssouri, Nebraska, Oklahoma, South Dakota, and
the M nnesota counties of Fillnore, Houston, Lincoln,
Mower, Murray, Nobles, O nstead, Pipestone, Rock and
W nona, and the Wsconsin counties of Crawford, G ant,
Green, lowa, Lafayette, R chland and Vernon, such
producers shall be organi zed by individual state units,
and each unit shall be subject to the follow ng
requi renents.”
Q Now, M. Hollon, are the maps that have been
mar ked as Proposed Exhibits --
JUDGE BAKER 13 and 14.
BY MR BESHORE
Q -- 13 and 14, are they visual depictions of
the counties for in-area and out-of-area that you have
just enunerated in the proposed | anguage in support of
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Proposal 7?

A That woul d be correct. In Exhibit 13,
reflective of the Mnnesota counties. The black |ine
on the sout heast corner, Houston, Fillnore, Mwer,

A nstead and Wnona, would be afforded the in-area
qualification, as well as Lincoln, Pipestone, Rock and
Nobl es.

Currently, some of those counties are already
in the Order boundaries, and in sone cases, they are
not. Any remaining county would then fall under the
standard of having to stand alone as a unit by each
handl er and ship the required percentage.

Looking to the Wsconsin map, in Exhibit 14,
in the southwest corner of the state, Vernon, Crawford,
Ri chl and, Grant, lowa, Lafayette, G een, those counties
woul d be afforded the in-area and qualify under that
standard. Gant and Crawford are already in the
Mar keting Area. Any renaining county in Wsconsin
woul d then have to neet the out-of-area standard that
says stand-alone as a unit and neet the shipping
requi renents.

Q Now, those counties as you've described in
your testinony were identified on the basis of the
source of mlk information reflected in the tables in
Exhi bit 127
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A That is correct.

Q kay. And that reflects production for this
mar ket or its predecessors in Decenber 1998 and
Decenber of 2000, correct?

A That is correct. Those -- those nunbers were
taken directly off of the nunbers provided by the
Mar ket Adm nistrator table in response to ny questions
to him They listed a list of counties and that's
where that equation canme from

Q Ckay. Now, sone question has been asked,
think, earlier this norning or today with respect to
whet her the Decenber 1998 data would be reflective of
depoolings of mlk, whether it would not be
representative because it was a nonth when m |k nmay not
have been pool ed but was regularly pool ed under the

Pr edecessor O der.

Do -- do you recall that inquiry?
A Yes.
Q Ckay. Now, | have a request, and | want to

note this on the record, of M. Stukenberg to check
wth their office to -- and report back tonorrow to
determ ne whether the information provided to you in
support of Exhibit 12 reflected all mlk, including
pool ed and depooled mlk, that's regularly associ at ed
with the Order or whether it reflected only pooled mlk
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for that nonth.

A Ckay.

Q So, we're going to know before we | eave the
heari ng whether that's all mlk regularly associated or
j ust pooled mlKk.

In the event that the information did not
include mlk regularly associated with the market
because it happened to be depool ed that nonth, would
you support making the sanme determ nation with respect
to counties but using data that's published and has

been published by the -- by the Dairy Prograns Branch,

Source of MIk Data, for these Orders for -- for other
years?
A That woul d be a suitable nodification or

change, to look for a nore extended period of tine, and
we did not have all of that data readily at hand. So,
the general principle is associated with the market in
the historical period and has sone substantial vol une
associated with the O der.

MR, BESHORE: Dependi ng upon the information
we get from M. Stukenberg tonorrow, we wll request
that official notice be made of those publications, to
the extent that they may be pertinent, Your Honor.

JUDGE BAKER: Very well.

MR BESHORE: Wth that, | would Iike to nove
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t he adm ssion of Exhibits 8 through 14, which M.
Hol | on has presented in his direct testinony, and he
woul d be avail able for cross exam nation.

THE WTNESS: | just would |ike to nmake one
point with regard to the -- to the -- to the actua
statements. Proposals 1 through 5 are supported by the
t hree Proponents. Proposal -- the nodification with
regard to net shipnents provisions is at this tine
supported by Prairie Farms and Dairy Farners of
Anerica, and the proposal, Proposal 7, is solely Dairy
Farmers of Anmerica.

MR. BESHORE: (kay. As -- as stated in -- in
the hearing notice, Proposal 7 is solely advanced by --
by DFA and the nodifications are advanced by DFA and by
Prairie Farns.

JUDGE BAKER: Very well. Are there any
guestions or objections wth respect to what have been
mar ked for identification as Exhibits 8 through 147

(No response)

JUDGE BAKER: Hearing none, said Exhibits 8

through 14 are admtted into evidence.
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di rect testinony?

VR, BESHORE
JUDGE BAKER
VR, BESHORE
JUDGE BAKER

Hol | on?

(No response)
JUDGE BAKER:

be no questions -- oh.

MR, VETNE
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(The docunents referred to,
havi ng been previously marked
for identification as Exhibit
Nunbers 8 through 14, were
received in evidence.)

And that concludes M. Hollon's

Yes, it does.
Thank you.
Thank you.

Are there any questions for M.

M . Beshore, there appear to

You're a little slow there. I

Wi sh you'd been a little faster.

JUDGE BAKER

M. Vetne?

CRCSS EXAM NATI ON

BY MR VETNE

Q M. Hol |l on,

A Good aft ernoon.

Q -- I"'mJohn Vetne. First, your statenent

regardi ng Proposals 1 and 5. You -- DFA previously

proposed and supported by testinony sone nodifications
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to the Upper Mdwest Order, a hearing for which was
hel d early Summer this year, correct?

A That's right. | appeared at that hearing.

Q And is the testinony that you provided in
this Exhibit 8 largely identical to the testinony
provided in M nneapolis?

A It would be simlar in philosophy but not
identical in content.

Q The content difference being nmarket-specific

A Correct, yes.

Q -- statistics?

A That's a fair characterization

Q And you neke the sanme -- you advocate the

sane policy position in this hearing that you did in
t he Upper M dwest?

A I think that's correct.

Q I had a question on Page 27 of your statenent
on 1 through 5. That was marked as Exhibit 8.

You referred to sone producers in Western

Col or ado.
A Yes.
Q There were 20 pool ed producers in Western

Col orado prior to consolidation, --
A Yes.
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Q -- is that right?

A Yes.

Q And were they all DFA nenbers?

A Yes.

Q And with respect to -- and was there any

ot her supplier, any other cooperative supplier to
Western Col orado pl ants?

A No, no.

Q What was the Class 1 Utilization of Wstern
Col orado mar ket ?

A It was the unpublished market. It was high.

Q I know. So, |I'masking you. You know, don't
you? It was two years ago. You want to share it with
us now?

A It was an unpublished market, but it was
hi gh.

Q When -- when do you think it'll be safe to
share that information?

A "' mnot sure.

Q You -- you -- okay. Wth respect to surplus
associated wth the Western Col orado Market, would it
be fair to say that surplus and reserve supplies were
carried by adjoining markets?

A Actually, in that case, there was a pretty
good bal ance, and while there was sone surplus and sone
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additional reserves, it was pretty mniml, but
certainly if you needed a load of mlk, it had to cone
from somewhere el se because it wasn't there, and
al t hough they paid for it, and if you had to haul a
| oad out of there, which occasionally happened, it had
to go to sonmewhere el se because, you know, there were
not facilities there and that market paid for it.

Q El sewhere in your testinony, you refer to a

generous reserve estimation --

A Hm hmm
Q -- for a Class 1 Market?
A Hm hmm

Q Coul d you state whether or not the Wstern
Col orado Market operated with a reserve non-Cl ass 1 use
that was greater or |esser than the generous anount you
esti mat ed?

A I don't know the specific calculations, but
again there was -- you know, in that situation, there
was a general bal ance.

Q Wth respect to your Western Col orado
producers, whatever the Cass 1 may have been, did
t hose producers receive a paycheck that was the Federa
Order Blend Price for that market?

A I"'mnot famliar with the exact details. So,
I can't answer. | just don't know. Cbviously there
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were returns earned fromthat market, but whether they
got the blend plus/mnus exactly, | can't tell you.

Q Does DFA blend m |k proceeds between Feder al
Markets in paynments nmade to producers?

A In general, we market mlk to the best of our
ability and collect those proceeds and pay producers
and those producer paynent determ nations are subject
to the oversight of each council, each area council
whi ch there are seven of them and they provide
oversi ght to managenent on how those things are done.
So, local area producers have input in how things are
done.

Q " mnot sure that answered ny question. M
guestion was, do you reblend proceeds throughout your
or gani zati on?

A | think that was the answer that you got to
your questi on.

Q Is the answer yes?

A The answer was that | ocal DFA area councils
have i nput over all of those types of decisions.

Q And -- and they -- and they nmake -- they're
the only ones naki ng those deci sions?

A They oversee the decisions that nmanagenent
makes, and fromtine to tinme, they change them

Q kay. So, locally managenent, other than the
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| ocal area councils, have no input?

A Say it again.

Q Managenent above the | ocal area councils have
no input as to what the pay-out price will be?

A There is -- there is sone input fromtine to
time, but again the bottomline resides in the |oca
area council s.

Q Ckay. And the bottomline, by that, you
mean, how the revenues in the region wll be
di stributed anong dairy farners within the regi on?

A And how, you know, the expenses are

di stributed and how the overall cooperative is operated

and run.

Q Ckay. The region that we're -- we're now
| ocated in, what -- what DFA region is that?

A The -- excuse ne -- the Central Area Counci

is the -- predomnantly in the Central Order.
Q Ckay. Does the Central Area Council include

producers outside of the Central Area, Central --

A O der?
Q -- Order Marketing Area?
A There may be sone producers in M ssouri who

are a part of the Southeast Order, but for the nost
part, the boundaries are reasonably close.
Q kay. DFA has pooled sonme nmilk in -- in this
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Order and in the Upper Mdwest fromfarns [ocated in
California, correct?

A No, that's incorrect. W -- we -- we have
pooled mlk fromCalifornia in the Upper Mdwest. W
have not pooled any California mlk in the Central
O der.

Q kay. The Upper M dwest. The organi zati onal
revenues earned on California mlk pooled in the Upper
M dwest, do those revenues --

MR BESHORE: Your Honor?

JUDGE BAKER:  Yes?

MR, BESHORE: Excuse ne for interrupting, but
I have an objection. The internal provision of
revenues within DFA of m |k pooled in the Upper M dwest
has nothing to do with this hearing at all. It was
testified to up in M nneapolis anyway, but any other
guestions about the internal operations of -- of DFA
are -- | think, are beyond any rel evance to the
hearing, and | object.

JUDGE BAKER: M. Vetne, do you want to
respond to that?

MR, VETNE: Ckay.

JUDGE BAKER: Well, it sounds like a valid
objection on its face.

MR VETNE: The -- | think we're -- we're
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clear so far in this -- in this record that what
happens here carries over into other markets, and this
wi tness has specifically referred to blend price and
PPD i npact on producers.

| think it's very pertinent to this record to
find out whether blend price and PPD inpact is a real-
life inpact or paper inpact. W've referred to paper
pooling, and in fact, the price that | believe M.
Hol I on's producers received, if his testinony here is
consistent wwth prior testinony, is -- is one that's
rebl ended between nmarkets; that is, the actual noney
flowng to a producer in one place may cone from
revenues produced here may conme fromrevenues in the
Upper Mdwest and in -- in Georgia and California, who
knows where

I"'mtrying to find out how, if he's willing
to share it for the record, how the | argest producer
organi zation in the country between the narkets that
are subject to separate hearings is distributed to
t hose nenbers.

JUDGE BAKER: Well, he -- he replied by
indicating they're a separate council with respect to
each of these Marketing Areas, and that they have a say
Wth respect to how these revenues are all ocated or
done, is that not correct?
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MR. VETNE: | heard himsay that. | have no
cl ue what that neans, however. [|I'mtrying to find out.

MR. BESHORE: Well, ny objection is that the
i ssues for the hearing are what revenues go to
producers or their designated cooperative association
whi ch, under the Act, is entitled to stand in their
shoes and receive their funds, and it is beyond any
busi ness of M. Vetne, you know, or the Secretary,
frankly, how the cooperative within its elected system
di stri butes those revenues.

JUDGE BAKER: Well, the witness can decline
to answer, M. Beshore, if that's what he wants to do.

MR. BESHORE: Well, he -- he can, and he's
certainly able to, but I'msaying the subject nmatter is
conpletely irrelevant to the issues before the
Secretary in the hearing. The subject of the question,
that is, what DFA does with the noney once it gets it,
whether it gets it fromCalifornia mlk or -- or mlk
anywhere el se, what it does with it has no bearing on
t hi s deci sion-nmaki ng process and is not pertinent to
this hearing record at all.

JUDGE BAKER. M. Vetne?

MR VETNE: | suppose -- | suppose M.
Beshore can instruct his wtness not to answer this
line of questions. He's chosen not to do it for
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what ever reason, and it's up to the Adm nistrative Law
Judge to rule on whether the |line of questioning can be
pursued as a matter of adm nistrative |aw rel evance,
and | think it has adm nistrative | aw rel evance. At
such point as it may involve evidence that the w tness
isunwilling to provide, that's a different question.

JUDGE BAKER Well, would you agree that it
goes to the internal workings of DFA?

MR. VETNE: Sure. Absolutely. Absolutely.
That's very rel evant because these proposals are
addressed at the internal workings and pooling and --
and revenue distribution of -- of this nostly outside
mlk --

MR. BESHORE: Absolutely not. These
proposal s have nothing to do with how a dairy farner or
a cooperative, what they do with the noney once they
get it. They have to do with the -- the collection and
di sbursenent of nonies in these pools, and those are
t he issues.

| nean, we could be here -- if -- if the
i nternal workings of DFA are pertinent, okay, the
i nternal workings of every other cooperative
represented here, including all of M. Vetne's clients,
are pertinent to, | suppose, and we can be here
forever. It has nothing to do with the deci sion-nmaking
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process, and it shouldn't be inquired into, and if we
need to dispose of it by ny instructing M. Hollon, you
know, not to answer the questions, I'll do that, but it
ought to be clear on this record, and I'd ask for a
ruling, that it's not relevant.

What a cooperative does with it -- it has no
pertinence under the Act or the regul ations.

JUDGE BAKER: Well, | think the ultinmte goal
that M. Vetne has in mnd relates to the extent to
which mlk is noved around, the extent to which it's
inported, the extent to which it's exported from
certain markets and that that may be tied in with the
i nternal procedures of DFA.

M. Cooper, does the Dairy Division have
anything it w shes to say?

MR. COOPER  No.

JUDGE BAKER: You are the ones who are going
to -- to make the decision here. Wat opinion do you
have with respect thereto?

M5. BRENNER: | guess ny feeling is, it's
kind of an interesting topic, but it probably doesn't
have any bearing on any decision we'd be witing.

JUDGE BAKER: Let the record reflect that
representatives of the Secretary, through the Dairy
Di vision, have indicated that they -- probably it wll
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have no bearing upon the decision which you will be
required to wite

I will -- in the absence of anything further,
| gather that you are not anxious to have this -- these
answers relative to the internal workings of DFA in the
record, is that right, Ms. Brenner?

M5. BRENNER: That's correct.

JUDGE BAKER  Very well. Thank you. That's
the ruling, M. Vetne.

MR. VETNE: Yes. M understanding of the
ruling and the basis for the ruling is that we don't
need to go further in this area because if the evidence

is developed, it wll be disregarded, and with that

understanding, | wll go on to sonething el se.
BY MR VETNE
Q I'"'mnot sure if it's Exhibit 16 or it nust be

Tabl e 16, | npacts on PPD

A Ckay.

Q Ckay? | think | understood this, but maybe
you can confirm ny understanding. The bottomline
there in the far right-hand -- is -- represents
negative inpact of mlk that you don't think should be
pooled in this market and woul d represent positive
inpact if, as you hope, the mlIk renoves itself from
t he mar ket ?
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A Yes.

Q Wth respect to location within the Marketing
Area or certain designated counties, you are aware, are
you not, that there have been instances in the past,
and | don't know about this market but there are in
ot her markets, distributing plants that are fully
pooled on a -- on an Order that are regulated at a

di stant |ocation, regulated under an Order in a distant

| ocati on?
A That's correct. I am
Q If a distributing plant |ocated outside of

the Marketing Area or the designated counties becane
fully regulated, is it your -- is it your intention to
apply these uni que pooling provisions to -- to that
distributing plant so that it really is supplied in a
manner that is different than other fully-regul ated
distributing plants who are nore favorably | ocated
geogr aphical Il y?

A I"'mnot sure if |'ve given that particul ar
i nstance any thought.

Q You woul d agree with ne, however, that the
way it's witten, the rules would differ for
distributing plants, too, based on where they're
| ocat ed?

A Way don't you wal k through a for instance and
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let's see if we can sort it out?
Q Well, for instance, let's put a distributing
pl ant just across the line in that little -- that
little dipin-- in-- in Mnnesota. Gkay. Say the

eastern part of that little dip --

A Ckay.

Q -- that's on the lowa border --

A kay.

Q -- or Nebraska border. Let's say that that
distributing plant is -- is supplied by producers

| ocat ed outside of your boundaries in both Wsconsin
and M nnesota. Each of those producer's supplies would

have to perform separately --

A Yes.

Q -- in delivering to that --

A Yes.

Q -- distributing plant which would --

A Yes.

Q -- be nore burdensone than the supply for a

distributing plant | ocated on the correct side of the
bor der ?

A That -- that -- that could be true. | would
agree. |I'mnot sure if there are any, but yes, that
coul d be true.

Q Now, whi chever way you go around the
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geogr aphy, the same thing would apply?

A Yes.

Q If your proposals are granted conpletely by
USDA, you --

A | expect that.

Q Yeah. You expect that m Ik will disassociate
fromthis pool. Can you comment on where you think, if

it's able to reassociate at all with any pool, where it

woul d go?

A Vell, I'"'mnot necessarily sure that your
first assunption, you know, | would nmake. It's just
that it would -- it would have to face a different

econom ¢ decision on what it would choose to do or not
do, and at that point, the people who make that
deci si on woul d have to -- would have to deci de.

Q Vell, let's say the m |k was depooled. This

Order has geography all around it.

A Yep.

Q It's not bordered by Canada.

A Correct.

Q The excess reserve here mght go to

W sconsin, but the Wsconsin reserve can't go to
Saskat chewan.

A Under -- under that exanple, that -- you
know, if -- if the -- if the mlk was in Wsconsin, and
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its choice would be to go to another Order or to go to
Order 30 or to not pool at all

Q To the extent that it's -- that these distant
-- these distant counties that you' ve identified would
expect that mlk to be associated, if at all, with the
regul ated market closest to the farmm |k supply?

A Yes, that would be the nost |ikeliest of
econom ¢ choi ces.

Q Ckay. Is it -- is it a part of DFA s
regul atory philosophy in this proposal that the pooling
provisions for Order 32 should be structured
essentially to provide pooling for Cass 1 use and what

you termed the "generous" reserve supply and | eave it

t her e?
A I think our general philosophy is to have al
over the country, to have, | guess, provisions that

reflect market and econom c conditions in each market,
and that there be, you know, performance decisions nmade
that are reflective of the conditions in that market.

Q |'ve referred to Order 32. Is it -- is it
the regul atory phil osophy that you're espousing that
for Order 32, the performance standards woul d be
structured so as to discourage mlk in excess of what
you ternmed the "generous" reserve supply?

A There is some -- there is -- in our view,
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there is -- there are mlk supplies attached to O der
32 that are above that standard, and that while you may
not agree with that exact standard, even -- you know,
pi ck one, and we can see if it's nore than that.

But, yes, in general, it appears |ike Order
32 is attracting nore mlk than is needed in the
mar ket, that without the -- sone of the regulations
t hat we have now probably woul d not serve the market,
and so we woul d propose standards that woul d eval uate
that performance and then let it decide if it wanted to
pool here or not.

Q Was that a yes?

A That was the answer.

Q Was that a yes to ny question? The question
bei ng, --

A I"'mnot sure if I"mable to give you a direct
yes or no to that question.

Q The question being, the regulatory policy
that should franme the decision in Order 32 is such that
it woul d be designed to pool the reserve needed but not
nore? Can you give a yes or no answer?

A In general, that would be a reasonabl e
answer, Yyes.

Q Thank you.

Is it your belief that Gade A m |k produced
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t hat exceeds the reserve should really not be
accommodated in this systenf
A That -- that question becones, you know, an
i nteresting philosophical question, and | would frane
t hat by backing up, | guess, a step and sayi ng that
first, the concept of a market gets -- gets to the
first level in that we have a market. W define a
market. We define what a market is, and then within
that market, we establish standards that woul d decide
i f somet hing woul d pool or not pool.
To bl anket say yes or no, | don't think that
that can be done, and part of the framework in
deci sions that you would decide for Florida, for a
Fl orida market, would -- would be different than what
you m ght decide for the Central Order or for the
Western Order or Pacific Northwest Order.
Q So, does your answer nean that in sone areas,
it's okay to accommpdate the pooling of mlk, Gade A
m |l k supplies that exceed the reserve? |Is that -- is
that a fair paraphrase at |east of part of your answer?
A Each market is going to have to nake sone
definition of howit's going to handle and -- and --
and -- and -- and pay for its own reserves, and no
mar ket shoul d be free of that burden, | don't think.
Q My -- ny questionis, is -- is it -- is ny
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understanding correct, if | say that ny understandi ng
is that in some markets, the regulations ought to
accommodate nore than the Cass 1 and a generous
reserve?

A That coul d happen.

Q I -- | understand it could happen. 1Is that
-- are you saying that as a natter of regulatory
policy, that's okay w th DFA?

A Qur mar ket - by- mar ket case, where you exam ne
all of the -- the requirenents and all of the needs,
and if you get to the end of that decision, and you can
-- that becones the answer, | would say yes, but you
can't -- again, you can't nmake a one definition fits
all decision. There may be sone markets where that
woul d be true. There may be sone where it wouldn't be.

Q It may be true, and if true, it's okay with
DFA to pool nore than the reserve?

A Yes. Provided the other conditions are net.

Q You referred to the Cornell Pricing Gid, --

A Yes.

Q -- and you referred to sone conversations
with M. Novockock?

A Yes.

Q The Cornell Pricing Gid did not produce the
di fferences between nmarkets that were eventual ly
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reflected in Option 1-A, is that correct?
A I think -- well, first of all, I'mnot sure
t hat anybody ever saw -- at least -- well, there's
probably a few people in this roomwho saw it, but they
aren't tal king.

The absol ute answers that came out of the
nodel s, so those were not, to ny know edge, those were
not available to the -- to the general public. Those
were available to the Dairy Prograns G oup that worked
on that and perhaps at sone point even to sone of the
pricing commttees, but the differential surface that
t hen becane public was -- was, | assune, sonething
close to that, and there were two sets of
differential s.

I n general, ny understanding, Option 1-B
close -- nore closely approxi mted the results of the
nodel , and Option 1-A were those results with sone
j udgnent added to it.

Q And i ncluding the judgnment of Congress?

A Actually, I'"mnot sure that -- did Congress
actually change any individual differential?

Q No. Congress nmandated the adoption of 1-A

A That -- that is true, but, you know, | think
your question led ne to think that they -- they said,
well, in this county, instead of $2, it ought to be
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Q
A

t hat sets

Q

don't think that happened.
kay.

I think Congress said here's a 1-A set and

okay with us.

287

kay. Let me see if | understand the nodels

that we're referring to.

A

Q
A

Q

determ nati on that approxi mates but does not exactly

reflect th

A

Ckay.
W have the Cornell nodel.
Yes.

W have Option 1-B, which is

e Cornell npdel.

That's -- that's ny view |

what it is.

Q

a USDA

think that's

Option 1-B, and then Option 1-A which even

further departs fromthe Cornell nodel?

A
think ist
Q
adopt ed - -
A

> O » O

To sone degree. Again, that's ny view that |

he answer.

And it's that 1-A that was ma

Yes.

-- and is now --
Yes.

Now -- now the rul e?
Yes.
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Q kay.
A | agree with that.
Q You have -- you have at |east read the

Cornell summaries and descriptions of the nodel and how
it produced the --

A Yes. Over tinme, | have -- | have been
t hrough t hem

Q Ckay.

A I haven't read all the appendi xes and
everything, but I understand the general way that they
wor K.

Q Ckay. And -- and in fact, the Cornell nodel
that you referred to didn't -- didn't project, dea
with or consider how m |k would nove under a pricing
grid that was eventual |y adopted and nandat ed by

Congress as 1-A, is that correct?

A No. | think that -- I'mdoing recollection
now, but | think that sone of the -- sone of the study
results did -- did evaluate nore than one end result,

and that the back and forth between the fol ks at
Cornell and the Dairy Programstaff did | ook at sone of
the other pricing nodels, and | suspect that they
| ooked at both the absolute 1-B and the absolute 1-A
and provi ded sone i nput back and forth.

Q Are you aware of any description of the node
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t hat came chronologically or -- or any tweaking of the
nodel that came chronologically after 1-A was proposed
and mandat ed?

A No.

Q So, you suspect but you're -- you're not
aware of how the nodel would nove m |k under 1-A? You
suspect that sonewhere along the line, sonething Iike

t hat was consi dered, but you're --

A Sonet hi ng was evaluated. Yes, | -- | suspect
Q But you're not --

A -- it was, but --

Q -- specifically aware --

A No, I"mnot sure if all those results, just
i ke sone of the initial results, were nade public.

MR, VETNE: Ckay. |I'mgoing to sit down and
regroup. | will probably have a little bit nore, but
"Il pass the mke on to --

JUDGE BAKER: Are there any ot her questions
for M. Hollon?

M5. BRENNER. |'ve got a couple.

JUDGE BAKER Ms. Brenner?

M5. BRENNER: | don't know where M. English
is. Onh, there he is.

JUDGE BAKER: Are there -- are there other
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guestions, M. Brenner?
M5. BRENNER. |'Ill go ahead.
CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. BRENNER
Q On your statenent regarding Proposals 1
through 5, on Page 2, | guess 1 going on to 2, you say,
"Mk distant to the market needs to have additiona
performance requirenments that are workabl e and
consi stent systemm de with Federal Order Policy."

Performance requirenents that are additional

to what?

A The current requirenents, we think, needs
sone -- | guess, sone nore definition to them and that
there seens to be a one-size-fits-all, and we think

that perhaps mlk nore distant fromthe market should
have the proposals that -- that we' ve nade.

Q But if sone of the other proposals that
you' ve made about supplies not shipping standards and
diversion [imts were adopted, that would apply to al
mlk, wouldn't it?

A Yes, it would. No doubt.

Q And wouldn't it kind of tighten up the market

for -- for everybody?
A Yes, we would agree with that. | understand,
| see where your -- where your question's com ng, and
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that is correct. The -- and so, if -- if 25 percent
were the requirenent, that would provide sone -- sone
nore definition and sone nore direction.

Wul d that be, you know, enough? Maybe, and
especially with the case of such large volunes of mlk
so close to the market, we think maybe not, and we
didn't nmake -- while we did suggest that in-area mlKk
not be able to qualify out-of-area supply plants, we
did -- we have no proposal about in-area mlk being
able to qualify distant mlk, other than, you know, the
20 and 25 percent Iimt, and we're sonmewhat concerned
that such | arge volunmes of mlk so close to the market
that there nmay be sone additional supplies that can be
qualified within area -- within area m |k sal es.

So, that's part of the reason why the distant
proposal was nade.

Q And you think there's -- you think there's an
econom c justification for setting higher standards for
sone participants, even if they're willing to neet the
-- the performance standards than other
partici pants?

A Vll, the Order system does have nore than
one performance standard. Just in O der 32 now,
there's a -- I'"'msorry. The supply plant unit has an
addi tional |evel of performance standards. For
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exanpl e, all the plants have to be in the O der.

There are sone additional specification
there, and in other places in the Order, while nmaybe
they don't all deal directly with performance, you
know, the transportation credits in the Southeast
provi de an additional standard in order to earn those
credits, and so we -- we would apply those here.

Q Ckay. On Page 30, you refer to MA Exhibit

12, and at the tinme you were testifying, there hadn't

been an MA Exhibit 12. | was wondering if you neant --
A Tabl e?
Q -- Table 12?7
A Pr obabl y.
Q In Exhibit 5, probably?
A | suspect this was witten before that was

done.
(Pause to revi ew docunent)
THE WTNESS: Yes, that's correct.
BY MS. BRENNER
Q Ckay. And the other questions |I have dea
with comments and the | anguage in Proposals 1 through
5.
A Ckay.
Q On the second page, where you're discussing
taking out the ability to qualify on the basis of
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shi pments to other Order distributing plants, 1'll ask
you the same question | asked M. Erickson.

Don't those shipnments add Class 1 use to the
Order 32 market?

A Yes, they do. The concern, though, is that
at the sane tinme that, you know, we're trying to supply
our custoners, that -- and -- and at tines, we find
that difficult to do, there are mlk supplies going to
other Orders that, if | had ny druthers, you know, I'd
rather see in this Oder since this -- since this is
where the blend price is going to be determ ned, and so
that's why we woul d propose that, and we don't -- we
don't see Order 32 as being a reserve supply order, and

we think that those provisions, you know, generally

were witten to -- to help suppliers in reserve supply
orders -- in fact, sonebody supplied ne with sone old
Order 30, | think, hearing records that seened to

indicate that in the testinony.
So, that's why we proposed to -- to not allow
4, shipnments to other Orders to help you earn --
Q Order 30? Order 30 transcripts or decisions
t hat --
That hel ped put Order --

-- indi cated what?

> O >

-- 30 together or perhaps even sone of the
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Predecessor Orders. In fact, | think that was the case
wth sone -- sonme of the Predecessor Orders to O der
30, where the Appleton Order, the M| waukee O der,
where there was sone tal k about using shipnents to
other Orders to earn a qualification.
Q Hm hmm

A And that just doesn't seemto fit the node

for -- for an Order that is not a reserve supply order,
and | think --

Q Ckay.

A -- M. Erickson's reply was that it doesn't

help me get mlk to ny plants, and we hear that from
our custoners.

Q Ckay. And on Page 3 of that sane docunent,
there's the parenthetical phrase "and would |ikely |ose
money if it had to performin any manner simlar to
| ocal mlk supplies".

Are the local mlk supplies held to a higher
standard of performance than the distant m |k supplies?

A You nean currently?

Q Ri ght .

A Not in Order standard, but if there's
addi tional costs needed to supply a market, generally
the local mlk supply bears that cost. If -- if -- if
DFA nenbers who supply handlers in St. Louis, if
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there's not enough mlk, and, you know, there's a --
there's a balancing -- a bal anci ng because getting
reserve, getting additional mlk, sonme of that cost
conmes back to the local mlk supply, and so to that
extent, where there's -- the blend price gets
deteriorated, they seemto suffer, but they al so seem
to get the extra costs associated with that.

So, to the extent that we can either, you
know, map performance standards that get nore mlk to
the |l ocal market, you know, that would be a goal.

Q Ckay. But you're -- you're not saying that
there's a higher standard in the Order for local mlk
supply?

A No, no.

M5. BRENNER That's all | have.

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you, Ms. Brenner.

Now, -- yes, M. English?

MR. ENG.ISH. Yes. Charles English for
Swi sse Foods and Anderson Erickson Dairy Conpany.

CROSS EXAM NATI ON

BY MR ENGLI SH:

Q Let nme follow up on a couple gquestions ago by
Ms. Brenner.

Wth respect to this issue concerning the
delivery of mlk to other Order distributing plants, is
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it the intent of your proposal that such novenents
cannot occur?

A No.

Q Is it the intent of your proposal only that
such novenents, if they occur, do not neet the
qual i fyi ng shi pments?

A That's correct. If -- if -- if I'"menticed
by an economc return to go and do that, then that's
okay, but | shouldn't be able to earn Order benefits
here if the plant's in another O der.

Q Ckay. In particular, when you | ook at the
Central Order, except for a nonent that |'ve done sone
m | eage cal cul ati ons and that, say, fromthe G and
Junction facility in Western Colorado to the Prairie
Farns facility in Aney, that it's approximately 1,230
mles, --

A Ckay.

Q -- and it's about 600 mles fromthe now Dean
Foods, the old Land of Lakes, facility in Sioux Falls,
Sout h Dakota, down to the Prairie Farns facility in
Chandl er, Okl ahoma, --

A Ckay.

Q -- except that, and all the Orders that
surround that nmassive area, isn't it true that
shi pnments al nost to any other Federal Order basically
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could be made fromthe Central Order and qualify as
shi pnents under the Central Order?

A Yes, that woul d be true.

Q So, maybe in particular, this is an O der
where that provision works to the detrinent?

A I had not thought of that, but yes, you're
correct. Because of its proximty to so nuch of the
U.S., yeah, there would be additional opportunities,
maybe nore so than in nost Orders.

Q Wth respect to the issues about the |oca
m |k, do you find that your custoners make demands on
you or requests upon you that they prefer |local mlk?

A That is true.

Q And have those requests or denmands becone
increasingly difficult to fulfill wth respect to
facilities that you or the other entities that you
represent have with respect to delivering mlKk,
especially in Mssouri and Southern Il1linois?

A That is correct. Those -- those supply
arrangenents are getting nore difficult.

Q Wth respect to sone of the proposals you
have made, you have not proposed increasing the touch-
base requirenent?

A That is correct.

Q Wiy is that?
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A | felt like that the adequate -- that the
current touch-base requirenents seemto neet the needs,
and that again as -- as wth nost proposals, they're
made in a group, in a consensus forum and so in order
to arrive at a proposal, that was one of the things
t hat, you know, the consensus cane to, was to not to
i ncrease the touch-base standard.

Q But nonet hel ess, you then worked within the
context of that touch-base requirenent, which you
tal ked about extensively in your testinony, you then
make ot her proposals which using that touch-base
requi renent nonet hel ess recogni zed the need to supply
this market, correct?

A That's correct.

Q So, taken as a package, your proposals are
desi gned to say, okay, we're not increasing the touch-
base requirenent, --

A But we will get nore mlk for the |ocal
Order, yes. W hope.

Q Were you aware or do you renenber back to the
time when with respect to Federal Order Reform when
USDA initially, through sonme of their prelimnary
docunents and then through the final reform were you
aware before you prepared for this hearing that the
predi ction was of a 50-percent Class 1 Uilization for
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this market?

A Yes.

Q And did that prediction, which obviously has
not turned out to be the case, but -- and that's
certainly not casting bl ane on anybody, but did that
prediction influence in any way decisions nmade with --
by DFA with respect to where it thought various
facilities should be regul ated?

A When you evaluate -- try to, as -- as the
reform process was goi ng on, everybody would try to sit
down and figure out how it would affect their business,
and, sure, that would be -- you know, you would | ook at
various regul atory possibilities and how t hey woul d

affect the end result. So, that woul d have been one.

Yes, | was aware of that.
Q So, for instance, had you and, for that
matter, |, and | take ny share of responsibility here,

thought that the Class 1 Uilization in this market was
going to be closer to 25 percent, we m ght have nade a
different recomendation with respect to the G and
Junction facility as to where it should be regul at ed?

A Yes, that would be true. | suspect many
entities in the market would have | ooked at the results
and maybe structured their coments differently.

Q And that would be particularly true around
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t he edges as you go sort of west down to south to the
east, so that the Grand Junction facility, the Farm
Fresh facility in Oklahoma, and the Prairie Farns and
Sw sse facilities in the St. Louis markets, correct?

A Al'l of those facilities are experiencing
stress in attracting and keeping a mlk supply, and so
t hat woul d have been a part of their decision-nmaking
factor and their influences on us.

Q And a primary reason for that stress is the
bl end price that has currently been returned, based
upon ml k delivered to those plants?

A That's true.

MR. ENGLISH That's all | have at this tine.
JUDGE BAKER: Thank you, M. English.
Are there any other questions for M. Hollon?
M. Beshore?
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BESHORE

Q M. Hollon, do you have Exhibit 16-A
avai | abl e?

A 16- A?

Q Mar ket Admi nistrator's Table 16-A.

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And that's the exhibit which M.

St ukenberg testified to, which details in part other
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Order shipnments from Order 32, correct?
A That's correct.
Q Al'l right. Now, in the Year 2000, those
shi pments were highly concentrated in one other Order,

is that correct?

A That is correct. They're predomnantly in
Order 30.

Q Ckay. Now, in your view, your -- your
proposal -- part of Proposals 1 through 5 would

elimnate any qualification on Order 32 for those
shi pments in Order 30, correct?

A That is correct.

Q kay. And can you -- in fact, would Oder 30
-- woul d shipnents |ike that which presently qualify
for producers -- for associations in Order 32 be a
particul ar reason why that provision ought to be
el i m nat ed?

A That would -- yes, it would, because the --
the -- it doesn't make any nore mlk avail able, and it
helps to add mlk to the pool ed and depress the price.

Q In fact, you could -- we can't know for
certain fromthe data where the mlk is comng from
but in all likelihood, mlk not historically associ ated
wth Oder 32 that's in the Marketing Area of Order 30
is supplying Oder 30 distributing plants, being pool ed
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on Order 32 and being -- in order to be qualified to be
pool ed under Order 32 is being pooled on Order 32
t hrough the requirenents that we're trying to change,
correct?

A That is correct. That would be a likely
scenari o.

Q Ckay. That's what Page 16- A shows is going
on?

A Yes, that's true. That is true.

Q Now, M. Vetne asked you, and | think that
I"I'l et you respond, put sonme words in your nouth you
m ght want to reconsider.

He asked you whether -- whether you're
proposing that if there's a distributing plant | ocated
in a southern tier of counties in Mnnesota that are
not in this Marketing Area, if | -- ny notes are
correct, M. Vetne said you're proposing to have nore
burdensone requirenents for supplying that distributing
plant than a distributing plant |ocated in the
Mar keting Area. Do you recall that?

A Hm hmm

Q And | think you answered in the affirmative,
that, you know, your Proposals 1 through 5 would neke
it nore burdensone, puts nore burdensone requirenents
on that distributing plant, is that correct?
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A Be only fromthe center where it was
geographically located would face all the sane
requi rements as everyone el se.

Q Well, if producers decided to carry a supply
in a distributing plant, regardl ess of where they're
| ocated, is there anything in Proposals 1 through 5 or
7 that does anything to it?

A No.

Q Proposals 1 through 5 and 7 address the --
don't affect in any way mlk that's -- that's delivered
or inpose any additional requirenents on mlk delivered
to a pooled distributing plant, isn't that correct?

The probably is we can't get anybody to deliver mlk to
the distributing plants, isn't that correct?

A It's nore difficult. That's correct.

Q And regardl ess of where the distributing
plant's | ocated, and there are nore than 32 pool ed
distributing plants, you're going to get credit for --
for supplying it --

A Yes, that's true.

Q -- under Proposals 1 through 5 or Proposal 7,

A That's correct.
-- isn't that correct?
A That's correct.
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Q In fact, if there would be a distributing
pl ant | ocated outside the Order area, it would -- it
woul d nake it easier because it's geographically closer
for producers outside the Order area to be part of the
Order, isn't that correct?

A If it was located in that part of M nnesota,
there would be a lot of mlk associated with that Order
in that part of Mnnesota. So, there would be a | ot of
suppl y.

Q And in fact, Proposals 1 through 5 and 7 say
not hi ng what soever about producers nmaking -- it would
do nothing to nake it nore burdensone for producers to
supply distributing plants regardl ess of where they
are?

A That's right.

Q Ckay. So, if the record reflects that you
agreed with M. Vetne that you were nmaking it nore
burdensonme to supply distributing plants in M nnesot a,
you really aren't, isn't that correct?

A That's correct.

Q Ckay. Now, M. Vetne al so asked you whet her
-- whether you were -- whether DFA was
attenpting to -- and I'mnot purporting to quote him
but attenpting to inpose requirenents on this O der
that no nore m |k be pooled than the, you know,
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conceptual reserve that you described in your
t esti nony.

A Hm hnm

Q Do you recall that?

A Yes.

Q Now, isn't it -- isn't it correct, on the
face of the proposals that you're here supporting, that
if the requirenents for delivery to pooled plants in
the Order are only 20 percent or 25 percent of the
total mlk volunme, then you're advocating performance
requi renents that acconmodate reserves far in excess of
the theoretical reserves that you --

A That woul d be true.

Q So, in fact, when M. Vetne was aski ng you
al nost hypot hetically whet her DFA woul d ever support
reserves bei ng pool ed above that anount, you're here
doing it today in these proposals, is that correct?

A That woul d be true.

Q Ckay. Now, just -- just one other question.
Wth respect to Proposal 7, isn't it correct that your
concept of Proposal 7 and the letter of Proposal 7 is
sinply to require of mlk supplies |ocated outside the
hi storical procurenent areas of this Order require them
to performon the sane basis as mlk supplied wthin
t he Marketing Area and not on any higher or nore
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burdensone | evel ?

A They woul d both have to neet the 20 or 25 or
whatever, if the market adm nistrator discretion
changed it, they would have to neet the same standard,

t he sane delivery standard presented.

Q Not a hi gher standard?

A Nope. [It's not a higher percentage nunber
st andar d.

Q Not a nore burdensone standard than -- than
mlk within the Marketing Area, correct?

A I[t's not -- it's not -- it's the sane
standard, 20 to 25 percent.

Q Sane standard --

A As it's proposed in DFA yes, it's the sane
for everybody.

Q The only thing that you would like to
elimnate is by the adoption of Proposal 7, is the
situation we have now where m | k outside the Mrketing
Area can pool distant fromthe Marketing Area, mlKk
that could never economcally be delivered on a regul ar
basis in the Marketing Area, and be pool ed and draw the
bl end price w thout doing anything nore than touch base
one day forever?

A That's correct.

Q And that's the only -- the only thing that
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woul d be nore burdensone than the present about what
Proposal 7 would do to m |k outside the Marketing Area
is that it would have to touch base or performat -- at
pool ed plants every nonth instead of once and forever?

A That woul d be true.

MR. BESHORE: Thank you.

JUDGE BAKER: Are there any other questions
for M. Hollon? M. Vetne?

| take it, M. Vetne is the last person to
have questions for M. Hollon. You -- you have sone,
M. English?

MR. ENGLI SH. Yes, very few

JUDGE BAKER All right. M. Beshore, I'm
going to try to get M. Lee tonight. 1Is he ready to --

MR, BESHORE: He's ready and waiting.

JUDGE BAKER: Very well.

RECROSS EXAM NATI ON

BY MR VETNE:

Q M. Hollon, --

A Yes, sir?

Q -- going back to the performance by | ocation
of distributing plant questions that | and M. Beshore
asked you about, it is true, is it not, that for this
hypot heti cal plant, wherever it's |ocated, across the
border of the area you designated, distributing plant
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that receives mlk fromdairy farmers whose farns are
|l ocated in two different states, that by virtue of your
proposal to anmend Section 13, that distributing plant
woul d have to organize its mlk supplies in two
different performng units and shift those farmmlk
suppl i es as though those supplies were supply plants,
separate supply plants?

A Until you got to the last point, but they
woul d have to -- if it -- do -- do you -- | think the
answer woul d be yes, but I'"'mnot sure if you gave
enough specifics in your exanple.

Q Those -- the producers delivering to that

pl ant woul d be organi zed and reported as separate

units?

A I[f the mlk cane from --

Q Fromtwo different states.

A -- which --

Q Two -- two different states, the plant and
the sources being -- both being outside of the

geogr aphy you' ve desi gnhat ed.
A Ckay. So, if this plant got mlk from | daho

and from California?

Q O M nnesota and W sconsi n.
A In certain areas?
Q Qut si de the boundaries in nost areas.
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A I n nost areas?
Q That those producers would have to be

organi zed in separate reporting units --

A Yes.

Q -- and separate performng units, --

A Yes.

Q -- and that performance woul d be the sane as

for supply plants?

A It would be whatever the m nimumwas for that
nmont h, 20 or 25 percent.

Q But they wouldn't be a supply plant; it would
be basically a farm bul k --

A It could -- it could be either in any or
both. Qur proposal doesn't specify howit gets
delivered, it just has to neet that performance
st andar d.

Q Ckay. And for that distributing plant
| ocated across the border, that form of supply would be
nore |l ogistically burdensone than for distributing
pl ants | ocated on the correct side of the border with
producers on the correct side of the border?

A If that's where it chose to get its supply
from that woul d be true.

Q Ch, okay. So, it can avoid that by, instead
of getting mlk basically where it's |ocated, by
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reaching into the -- into the --

A That -- that woul d conceivably happen.

Q The good -- the good counties, the benefitted
counties, and have a single mlk supply?

A That coul d be possi bl e.

Q Wthout -- and it would not be treated as a
unit within the Marketing Area?

A That's correct. Not just a separate unit.

Q And finally, the other thing that M. Beshore
asked you about, you referred to sonme plants having
stress in attracting m |k supplies?

A Yes.

Q Were you referring there -- you referred to
specific areas. The stress that's being created, is
that the stress created by m |k supplies exiting O der

32 and noving into Order 57

A Not in every case.

Q But in --

A In sone cases, yes, and in sone cases, ho.

Q Is that the stress you were tal ki ng about
when you tal ked about plants in Southern Illinois and -

- and Eastern M ssouri ?

A In sone cases, that stress is to mlk going
out of production, and in other cases, it's being drawn
to other markets, and in other cases, it's sinply not a
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hi gh- enough price to attract from another | ocation.
There could be a nultiple of reasons, all of which
we' ve identified.

Q Al'l of which we've identified. Now, mlk is
being attracted to Order 5 as part of the stress, --

A Hm hnm

Q -- but there's no proposal here to anend
Order 5 to take care of the stress fromthe receiving

attracti on end?

A There's no proposals here to anend Order 5.
Q kay. | understand that. Wy not? If -- if
the mlk is noving here from-- fromhere to -- from

this market to Order 5, and you want to bring it back,
how -- how does this -- how do these proposals bring it
back to where you want it?

A One -- one way could be that the result of
t hese proposals would have -- would -- would result, we
hope, in a higher blend price in Order 32 that may help
maeke it easier to retain mlk or keep mlk in
production or perhaps even attract mlk from ot her
areas, if the Order 32 blend -- if the resulting Oder
32 blend price is higher.

Q Hi gher than?

A It is now

Q Conpared to?
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A Al ternatives.

Q The al ternatives bei ng?

A You win. The alternatives being all the ones
we've identified, Federal Order 5, Federal Oder 7,
goi ng out of business, Oder 32, Oder 30. | think
t hose are the all ones, and possibly even Order 126.

Q Thanks.

JUDGE BAKER  Thank you, M. Vetne.
M. English?
MR, ENGLI SH. Just a couple questions as a
direct follow up on that.
RECROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MR ENGLI SH:

Q The problem and the stresses you' ve
identified is the reason for the proposal s?

A Yes.

Q And I'mnot going to ask you to endorse this
next one for a nonment, but |let ne just suggest to you

an alternative would be to vote out this O der

correct?
A Yes, that could be an alternative.
Q And another alternative with respect to

especially areas where there's stress is to suspend the
counties that caused the regul ation of those particul ar
plants, --
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A Yes.

Q -- correct?

A That -- that could be an alternative, neither
of which -- you know, you're right. W wouldn't -- we

don't endorse those, but, yes, those could be
alternatives. | agree with you

MR, ENGLI SH. Thank you.

JUDGE BAKER: Very well. There are no
addi tional questions then. Yes? Yes, sir? M. Tonak?

MR. TONAK: My nane is Dennis Tonak.

RECROSS EXAM NATI ON

BY MR TONAK

Q In the Market Adm nistrator's Exhibit 5,
Table 8, there's a supply plant identified at
Earlville, lowa, and for the nonths of January through
Sept enber of 2000, at |east there's a supply plant
identified as being associated with G ande Cheese, and
I note that in COctober and thereafter, there's a supply
plant at Earlville, lowa, associated with DFA. Is that
the sanme facility?

A Yes.

Q Was there a substantial change in the
producers delivering to or diverting to other |ocations
in the locations they were delivering to between
Sept enber and Cct ober of 20007
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A I -- 1 do not know.

Q There's approximately 1.1 billion to 1.5
billion pounds bei ng pool ed under the Order, according
to Exhibit 5. Keeping that in mnd, would you
characterize DFA as a fairly large participant or a
smal | participant in the volunme of mlk pool ed under
the Order?

A DFA pools mlk on the Central O der.

Q You woul dn't care to characterize themas if
they're large or small or --

A No.

Q Wul d DFA have a significant effect on O der
pricing as they made their internal decisions on what
mlk to pool or not pool under the Order?

A Certainly there would be sone effect.

MR, TONAK: Thank you.

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you.

Are there any ot her questions?

(No response)

JUDGE BAKER: There are none. Thank you very
much, M. Holl on.

THE WTNESS: Yes, ma'am

(Wher eupon, the witness was excused.)

JUDGE BAKER: M. Beshore, do you want to --
well, it's alittle after 5. W'Il|l take a 10-m nute
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recess, and then we'll hear M. Lee, and he's already
to go.

Very well. We'Il have a 10-m nute recess at
this tine.

(Wher eupon, a recess was taken.)

JUDGE BAKER: The hearing is in order after
our recess.

This nmorning, | stated that we would start at
8:30 tonorrow. | believe that by reason of
arrangenents nade by the Market Adm nistrator with
respect to coffee service, we wll start at 8:00
instead of 8:30. So, we'll commence tonorrow norni ng
at 8 a.m

M. Beshore, you're going to call your
W tness, M. Lee, is that correct?

MR. BESHORE: Yes, that is correct, Your
Honor .
Wher eupon,

GARY LEE

havi ng been first duly sworn, was called as a w tness
herein and was exam ned and testified as foll ows:

MR, BESHORE: Before M. Lee proceeds, Your
Honor, | would like to mark for purposes of
identification his statenment as Nunber 15, and the set
of exhibits relating to his statenment as Exhibit 16,
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whi ch consists of five tables. That wll be Exhibit
16, a cover page and five tables. Exhibit 15 of the
statenment is a cover page and | think it's 12 pages.
They' re not nunbered, --

THE W TNESS:  Yes.

MR. BESHORE: -- but 12 -- 12 -- a statenent
that's 12 pages, plus the cover page.

JUDGE BAKER: They will be so marked, M.

Beshor e.

(The docunents referred to
were marked for identification
as Exhibit Nunmbers 15 and 16.)

MR. BESHORE: Thank you, Your Honor.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BESHORE
Q Wul d you first tell us your nanme, your nane

and address, business address, M. Lee, for the record?
A My nane's Gary Lee. |'menployed by Prairie
Farnms Dairy. It's P.O Box 560, Carlinville, Illinois.
Q And what position do you hold, what capacity
do you have with Prairie Farns?
A I"'mthe Vice President of Marketing and
Procur enent .
Q How | ong have you been enpl oyed by Prairie
Far ns?
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A |"ve been with Prairie Farns for 28 and a
hal f years, two years in the current position

Q Okay. Wiat's your educational background,

M. Lee?
A | have a Bachelor's degree in Agricultural
Economics from Southern Illinois University, and a

Master's degree in Agricultural Economcs fromthe
University of M ssouri.

Q In your capacity with Prairie Farns as Vice
Presi dent of Marketing and Procurenent, what are your
duties and responsibilities?

A I amin charge of all of our mlk and ot her

dai ry product procurenent.

Q What operations does Prairie Farns Dairy
have?
A I wll be going over those in ny testinony.
Q Ckay. Yeah. Let's -- let -- | wthdraw that
guesti on.
MR. BESHORE: | would like to offer M. Lee,

gi ven his background and qualifications, as an expert
in agricultural economcs and mlk marketing for his
testinony to be presented in Exhibits 15 and 16.
JUDGE BAKER: Are there any questions or
obj ections with respect thereto?
(No response)
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JUDGE BAKER: I n the absence of any questions
or objections, your request will be granted, M.
Beshor e.

MR. BESHORE: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MR BESHORE

Q And now, M. Lee, please proceed with your
testinmony for this hearing.

A My nane is Gary Lee. |'menployed by Prairie
Farnms Dairy, Inc., as the Vice President of Mrketing
and Procurenent.

Prairie Farns is a dairy farnmer cooperative,
headquartered in Carlinville, Illinois. Through direct
ownership and joint ventures, we operate 14 ml Kk
processing plants that are regul ated under Order 1032.
The plants operated by Prairie Farns include a fluid
mlk plant in Carlinville, Illinois, fluid mlk plant
in Aney, Illinois, a plant in Peoria, Illinois, that
processes fluid mlk and fruit juices.

In Quincy, Illinois, we have a fluid mlKk
processing plant. In Ganite Cty, Illinois, we have a
fluid mlk processing plant, and also there, we process
extended shelf life products. |In Carbondale, Illinois,
we have a soft cultured products plant. By that, |
nmean cottage cheese, sour cream dips, and in St.

Louis, Mssouri, we have a fluid m |k processing plant,
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and al so there, we process soft cultured products, ice
creamand fruit juices.

Prairie Farns al so operates six unregul ated

plants in the area covered by Order 32. They include

another plant in Quincy, Illinois, that processes soft
cultured products. In Springfield, Illinois, a bulk
ice creammx plant. |In Decatur, Illinois, an ice
creamplant. In OFallon, Illinois, an ice cream and

bul k ice cream m x pl ant.

In St. Louis, Mssouri, a plant that
manuf actures butter and anhydrous mlk fat, and in
Brentwood, M ssouri, a plant that manufactures frozen
ice cream m | k.

O these six plants, only Quincy, Illinois,
and Decatur, Illinois, receive producer mlk on a
regul ar basis. You will note that we have two plants
in Quincy, Illinois. They are six blocks apart. You
wll also note that we have two plants in St. Louis,
and they are approximately two mles apart.

Through -- we have a joint venture with Dairy
Farmers of Anerica, called Roberts Dairy, that operates
the following plants pooled in Order 32: lowa City,
lowa, fluid mlk, Des Mines, lowa, fluid mlk, QOmha,
Nebraska, fluid mlk, sour cream and dip, bags of half-
and-hal f and fruit juices, and here in Kansas Cty, a
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pl ant that processes fluid mlk and fruit juices.

A second joint venture with Dairy Farmers of
Anerica, called H Land Dairy, operates the foll ow ng
pl ants pooled in Order 32: Wchita, Kansas, fluid
m | k, cottage cheese, yogurt, Norman, Cklahoma, fluid
m | k, sour cream and dip, Chandler, Cklahoma, fluid
m |k, cottage cheese, ice cream

Hi Land Dairy has three other fluid mlKk
processing plants |ocated in Springfield, Mssouri, and
Fayetteville and Fort Smth, Arkansas. Those plants
are regul ated by Order 7.

A third joint venture with Dairy Farnmers of
America operates the fluid mlk processing plant in
Evansville, Indiana, that's regulated by Oder 5.

The joint ventures are structured so that
Prairie Farns oversees the day-to-day operations while
DFA arranges for the m Ik supplies. Therefore, ny
testinony will not go into mlk supply issues for the
j oi nt ventures.

One point | do want to enphasize, however,
is that none of the above-listed plants are engaged in
manuf acturing of hard products, such as cheese or
powdered mlk. W are not trying to support
manufacturing plants in areas with a deficit mlk
suppl y.
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The butter plant in St. Louis, Mssouri, uses
only bulk cream nuch of it distressed, and scrap
butter to manufacture its products.

However, as you can see, we have a
consi der abl e presence on Order 32, and what happens on
Order 32 is very inportant to our nenbers. 1In Cctober
2001, Prairie Farnms had total nenbership of 797
producers with total production of 88.5 mllion pounds
of mlk. MIk from 620 of those producers was pool ed
on Order 32. This amobunted to approximately 68.9
mllion pounds of mlKk.

The producers whose mlk is pooled on O der
32 are all located in Illinois, the southeastern one-
fourth of lowa, and the eastern one-half of M ssouri.
MIlk fromall of our nenbers |ocated in these three
states is pooled on Order 32 or is not pool ed.

Qur other producer nenbers are |ocated in
I ndi ana, M chigan, and Chio. Their mlk is pooled on
Order 33 at plants that we operate in Fort \Wayne,
I ndi ana, Anderson, |ndiana, and Gal esburg, M chi gan.

We al so purchase suppl enental supplies of
mlk from other cooperatives at our Order 32 plants.
These purchases take place every week of the year and
cone from producers located in Illinois, Mssouri,
lowa, M nnesota and Wsconsin. These purchases anount
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to about 30 percent of the m Ik processed at our
pl ant s.
We do not participate in any pooling units
with another entity on Order 32. W do not engage in
any pooling of mlk fromanother entity for a fee on

Order 32. However, we do have a pooling unit nmade up

of our plants located in Carlinville, Illinois, Q ney,
Illinois, Ganite City, Illinois, Peoria, Quincy and
Car bondal e, Illinois.

The cul tured product plant in Quincy,
I[1linois, is currently not part of this unit. |If the
statistical uniformprice gets substantially bel ow the
cost of Cass 2 mlk, the Carbondale, Illinois, plant
may soon be renoved fromthis unit, also.

At this time, | would like to speak in
support of Proposals 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5. | may ask to
speak in support of Proposals 6 and 8 later in this
heari ng.

I do not want anything in this testinony to
be regarded as criticismof those involved in the Oder
Ref orm process. They were given a very difficult task
by Congress with fairly narrow paraneters, and they
carried it out -- carried out that task to the best of
their ability, based on the situation at that tine.

However, we feel dairy farners located in the
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states where we have nenbers associated with O der 32,
especially those in Illinois and M ssouri, have fared
very poorly under Order Reform

We operate in an area that is a deficit mlk
production area virtually every day of the year, yet
Order 32 has been witten as if its main purpose was to
allow for pooling mlk rather than serving Cass 1 and
Class 2 handl ers.

It is perhaps the nost |oosely witten of al
Orders. The case in point, if Oder provisions are
used to the maxi num one pound of direct ship mlk
delivered to a pooled distributing plant can pool up to
15 nore pounds of m K.

Havi ng said that, | do not want to go back to
what we had prior to January 1, 2000. The Orders that
existed in this area prior to reformwere witten so
tight, that pooling of mlk beyond basic Cass 1 needs
are difficult. This was especially true in the
previous Order 32 and in Order 50.

Al nost every year, in the |ate Summer and
Fall, we had to buy considerable quantities of other
O der mlk to cover needs after we had exhausted the
supplies available fromour regul ar suppl enental
suppl i ers.

At the same tinme, every few years, during
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periods of high production, we would have to petition
the Departnent for tenporary relief fromthose high
shi ppi ng percentages. This would often occur in
Decenber and January and was necessary to prevent
i nefficient and uneconom cal novenments of mlk to neet
pool i ng standards.

The way Order 32 is now witten, it allows
for efficient pooling of mlk, and we support that to a
point. Wile the old systemwas not perfect, it did
allow for a decent return for those supplying mlk to
the Lower M dwest on a regul ar basis.

The uni form price was usually high enough to
attract mlk fromthe Upper Mdwest and yet keep us
conpetitive with markets | ocated bel ow the Chio R ver
and east of the Wabash River. That is now not usually
t he case.

M Ik usage at the above-listed Prairie Farns'
pl ants has grown steadily in recent years. That is not
uniformy true at all of our plants but is true in
total. At the sane tinme, the available supply of mlKk
in the three states where we currently procure mlk for
our Order 32 plants has been flat or declining.

Exhi bit 16, Table 1, will show production by
quarter from 1991 to the present in Illinois, Mssour
and lowa, to illustrate this point. Qur current
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producer nenber nunbers and our nenber m |k production
are both currently | ower than | ast year

W are faced with a dilenmma of our business
growi ng but the nearby supply of mlk not necessarily
gromng. Also, all dairy farners in our procurenent
area may not want to be nmenbers of Prairie Farns. As a
result, we have becone increasingly dependent on the
Upper M dwest for supplenental supplies of mlKk.

We feel that those cooperatives serving this
mar ket deserve a better return for doing so or they
m ght seek other markets for their mlk. For many
years, m |k processing plants |located in down state
Illinois and St. Louis, Mssouri, have depended on mlk
fromdairy farns | ocated in the southern one-third of
Il'linois and the eastern one-half of Mssouri for a
| arge portion of their mlk supply. MIKk production in
t hose areas has been flat or declining, as nentioned
earlier.

Si nce January 1, 2000, the statistica
uniformprice for an Order 32 plant located in this
area has not always been hi gh enough to conpete with
pl ants pooled on Orders 5 and 7. Producers |located in
Southern Illinois and Sout heast M ssouri can switch to
markets on Order 5 or Order 7 and get a higher price
for their mlk with little or no additional hauling
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costs. This is happening regularly.

Exhi bit 16, Table 1, shows a conparison of
statistical uniformprices for the base zone of O der
32, the base zone of Order 30, Order 5 zoned back to
Evansvill e, Indiana, and Order 7 zoned back to Mirray,
Kent ucky.

Q Do you nean Exhibit 16, Table 2, M. Lee?
A Yes. \What did | say?
Q | think you said Table 1.

JUDGE BAKER  Tabl e 1.

THE W TNESS: Gkay. Sorry.

BY MR BESHORE

Q But it is Table 2?

A Yes.

Q Thank you

A I won't dwell on this table. It does

parallel a lot of what M. Hollon said in his
testinony. | will just use it to enphasize the point.
Exhi bit 16, Table 3, shows the distance from
several current actual shipping points in the Upper
M dwest to cities where we have plants |ocated. The
sanme table shows the distance fromthose |ocations
where we have plants to the cities nentioned that are
| ocated in Order 5 and Order 7.
The point of this table is to show that we
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have to rely on supplenental mlk supplies that are not
adjacent to the plants in the base zone of Order 32.

At the sane tinme, dairy farnmers in Southern Illinois or
Sout heastern M ssouri, |ocated near our plants, have
fairly easy access to those markets on Oders 5 and 7.

Exhi bit 16, Table 4, shows the approxi mate
haul i ng cost to transport mlk fromthese points in the
Upper M dwest to the base zone plants on Order 32 and
the approximately cost to transport the sane | oad from
those Order 32 plants to nearby markets on Orders 5 and
7.

The point of this is to show that the return
under the Order to ship mlk fromthe Upper Mdwest to
the Lower Mdwest will not cover the cost of hauling
that mlk. Mny of those pooling mlk on Order 32 may
be doing so because of the return gained from pooling
mlk on the Order, not from serving the market.

Was this the intent of Order Reforn? For the
first few nonths of 2000, the statistical uniformprice
on Order 32 was high enough to provide a decent return
to an Upper M dwest supply serving this market with a
portion of their mlk pooled on the Order. At the sane
time, an Order 32 plant could conpete fairly well with
a market on Oder 5 or Order 7.

As some organi zati ons becane nore adept at
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riding Order 32 with excessive supplies of mlKk,
conbined with the lowclass Cass 3 price, this is no
| onger true.

Recently, as the Class 3 price inproved, that
probl em has eased sonmewhat, but with the recent decline
in the cheese market, we will probably soon be back to
this price distortion.

Let nme provide two exanples to show why we
feel this is a problem |In August, Septenber and
Cct ober of 2001, we exhausted the suppl enental supplies
made avail able to us by our other cooperative
suppliers. W had to seek additional supplies of mlk.

In August, we purchased 7.91 mllion pounds
of milk and had to pay $225, 000 over regul ar announced
prices and over-Order premuns. | need to clarify
that. That's 7.91 mllion pounds over and above our
regul ar suppl enmental purchases from our other suppliers
and pay $225,000 over and above the Order the announced
over-Order price.

I n Septenber, that anmounted to 5.95 mllion
pounds and additional prem uns of a $152,000. Mbst of
this mlk came from supplies already pooled on Order
32. However, because of current pooling standards,
these suppliers did not have to ship the m Ik unless
they extracted a give-up charge fromus. W had to pay
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a premumto purchase mlk that should have been
avai l abl e as part of normal supplies and yet Class 1
Utilization on Oder 32 never got above 30 percent in
t hese nont hs.

Sonmething is wong with the systemthat
enabl es suppliers on low Cass 1 Uilization Oders to
extort noney from handlers for mlk already pooled on
the Order to neet basic Cass 1 needs.

Second exanple. The fluid mlk -- the fluid
processing plant in St. Louis, Mssouri, for many years
received a high percentage of its mlk supply from
Dairy Farners of Anerica or predecessor organizations.

DFA approached us in the Sumer of 2001 and
said that unless we paid a substantial prem um above
regul ar over-Order premuns to them they could not
provide that plant with its regular mlk needs
begi nni ng August 1, 2001. DFA took this step because
they said they had opportunities to ship the mlk going
to this plant to markets on Order 5 and/or Order 7 and
get a significantly-higher return.

When we approached several cooperatives with
m | k al ready pooled on Order 32 about supplying this
pl ant at Order prices, plus announced over- O der
prem uns, they all declined. These two exanples show
the point we are trying to nake.
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The return on Order 32 is currently not high
enough to attract mlk to base zone plants w thout
substantial over-Order premuns. At the sane tine, the
return in the base zone is not high enough to keep
nearby m |k supplies from seeking markets on O der 5
and Order 7.

If the Departnment feels that m |k should flow
north to south, they have created a problemin Southern
[I'linois and Eastern Mssouri. Producer mlk |ocated
inthis area is trying to go south, but northern milk
supplies do not want to flowinto the area, and let ne
add that the north to south mlk can cone in a packaged
formas well as inarawmlk bulk form Sone
M dwestern processors are well positioned to supply the
dairy product needs of consuners in the Southeast.

To those who say that we will just have to
rai se the over-Order prem um even nore, we would
respond that if over-Order prem uns are what nove mlk
then are the Orders really working, and if they are not
wor ki ng, why do we need thenf?

However, Exhibit 16, Table 5, shows that
over-Order premuns in the Order 32 area are simlar to
or higher than those in nearby markets. M source of
informati on on that was the Price Announcenent from
Dairy Farners of Anerica, dated October 16, 2001.
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W want to enphasize that we do not want
anything we propose at this hearing to harm producers
on adjacent Orders. However, an exam nation of data
provi ded by the Order 32 Market Adm nistrator shows
what we are tal king about. The |ist of cooperatives
and supply plants currently pooling mlk on Oder 32
show several entities that had no association with this
Order when it was forned on January 1, 2000.

We have no problemw th them being part of
this Oder, if they are here to serve the market. CQur
fear is that they were drawn here by the returns from

pooling mlk on Order 32, not serving Order 32

handlers. |If we are wong, hopefully those
organi zations will use this hearing as a forumto prove
t hat .

The anount of mlk -- the anount of producer

m |l k pooled on Order 32 has increased considerably
since January 2000. The anount of mlk used in Cass 1
has renmai ned relatively stable. The anmount of mlk
used in Cass 3 has increased in simlar proportion to
the increase in total producer mlk. This has resulted
in a no-wn situation for Prairie Farnms nenbers.

The increase in producer mlk in Class 3
Utilization has |lowered the statistical uniformprice
to our nmenbers. At the sanme tine, this increased
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producer mlk is not readily available to us at
announced prices to serve our plants as a suppl enent al
suppl y.

To those who oppose what we are proposing
here and say that we will nmerely transfer our problem
to anot her Order show sonme goodwiI|l. O fer sone of the
mlk that you are currently pooling on Order 32 but not
serving the market with to Cass 1 handlers at
announced | ocal prices. Oder 32 handlers in the base
-- I"'msorry -- handlers in the base zone of O der 32,
especially those in St. Louis and points south, would
especially be interested in hearing from you.

Order provisions that are nore conducive to
pooling mlk rather than serving the market should take
pl ace in areas of surplus, not deficit, production. W
urge the Departnent to grant the changes that we are
seeking with Proposals 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5. Proposals 1,
2, 3, 4 and 5 are a good start at trying to alleviate
the supply dilemma that we face.

The request in Proposal 1 to no |onger allow
shi pnments to other Order plants to help qualify a
supply plant would correct a glaring shortcomng in
O der 32.

Proposals 1, 3 and 5 would require shipping
performance in every nonth of the year. The
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performance would be at a | evel that should be
tol erable to any organi zati on concerned about the best
interests of the O der.

To summari ze what we are trying to say, it is
our feeling that producers |located in |arge areas of
Order 32 have received serious financial harmw th the
way Order 32 has worked since January 1, 2000. The
return for continuing to serve the market that they
have served for many years has been | owered w t hout
justification. They are faced with choi ces that many
find unpleasant. They can continue to ship to their
traditional market a reduced or even negative return.
They can switch to a potentially better but unfamliar
mar ket or they can discontinue dairy.

We do not want to build a wall around this
area. In fact, quite the opposite is the case. W
need adequate reserves of mlk pooled on this Order,
but those pooling this mlk should be expected to serve
t he market.

Q | have just a few additional questions for
M. Lee.

M. Lee, the supplenental -- the additiona
suppl enmental supplies that you have testified to
acquiring in August, Septenber and October of 2001,
were those -- the anopunts that you had to pay
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additional, were in addition to the |levels of over-
Order premuns simlar to those reflected on Exhibit
16, Table 5, is that correct?

A The dollars that | alluded to in ny testinony
were over and above what we woul d have paid foll ow ng
that price chart, yes.

Q kay. So, if ny quick arithnmetic on those
vol unes and anounts indicated in your testinony is
correct, you had to pay for mlk al ready pool ed on
Order 32 between $2.50 and $3 per hundredwei ght in
addition to the already-announced and prevailing over-
Order prem uns?

A Yes, and |'madmtting that in front of our
regular mlk suppliers. | wish | didn't have to, but,
yes, that is correct.

Q Ckay. And that's mlk that was al ready
pool ed on Order 32 but not --

A Yes, sir.

Q -- otherw se avail abl e?
A Yes.
Q In spite of acquiring those volunes -- those

addi tional volunes at those prices, did your plants
suffer fromnot having mlk avail able to operate when
t hey needed to be operating?

A I n August and Septenber, there were many days
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when we had to wait for several hours at a couple of
our plants for mlk to arrive, and so we had to run
wat er through the machines to keep them goi ng.

It reached a peak on Septenber 15, when at
our plant in Carlinville, we had to send all of the
pl ant workers hone at 2 in the afternoon and tell them
not to cone back till m dnight because we had no mlk
to run and wouldn't until tankers fromthe Upper
M dwest arrived on Saturday night.

So, we, in a sense, had to delay production
by nearly a full day because the mlk -- we sinply
couldn't get the mlk that we needed.

Q And at any -- at any price?
A At any price. Wen we approached people, is
there mlk avail able at any price.
Q That was during Septenber of this year, --
A Yes.
Q -- when there was what, 1.5 billion pounds or
so, pooled on Order 32?
A Yes, in Class 1 Uilization of 28 and a half
per cent .
MR, BESHORE: Thank you, M. Lee.
JUDGE BAKER: Very well. Are there any ot her

guestions or any questions for M. Lee? M. English?
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CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MR ENGLI SH:

Q Maybe you'll be a little nore anenable to the
suggestions | was nmaking to M. Holl on.

Do you think a viable alternative is to vote
this Order out?

A That's Choi ce Nunber 2.

Q And what about suspendi ng various counties
t hat woul d, by the suspension of those counties, would
t ake sone of these plants out fromunder regul ation, at
| east under Order 32 regul ation?

A That woul d be of interest to our conpany,
al so.

Q I"mnot sure | understand. Are you going to
be here tonorrow?

A Yes.

Q So, you'll nmake a deci sion tonorrow whet her
you're going to testify on Proposal 87

A Yes. In all likelihood will not, though, in
the interests of noving the hearing al ong.

Q In that case, understandi ng you' re not goi ng
to undercut Proposals 1 through 5, do you support the
concept of Proposal 8?

A As a fall-back position. | honestly think
what we're tal king about in 1 through 5 takes care of

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
(301) 565- 0064



© 00 N o g A~ w N P

N NN N NN P P P R R R R R R
g N W N P O ©W 0O N o o M W N P O

337
the distant mlk problem but as a fall-back position,
you know, if we're only going to get part of what we're
asking for, | would support 8.

Q Wt hout going through great detail, were you
in the Upper M dwest hearing?

A As an observer

Q Yeah. | think | went through an exanple
where even if adoption of proposals like 1 through 5
were adopted, there were the possibility nonethel ess of
usi ng condensed product from California and pooling.

If that were the case, would you support
adoption of Proposal 8 as well as -- as a brick to nmake
sure that that wouldn't al so happen?

A Yes.

MR, ENGLI SH. Thank you.

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you, M. English.

Are there other questions for M. Lee? M.
Vet ne?

CROSS EXAM NATI ON

BY MR VETNE

Q M. Lee, |I'm John Vetne.

| want to turn your attention first to Table

2 of Exhibit 16.
A Ckay.
Q Part of the conplaint, as | understand it, of
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Prairie Farns and co- Proponents of 1 through 5, is
changes that have taken place since Order Reform was
effective in January of 20007

A Yes.

Q Were you here when | asked a prior wtness
concerni ng equi val ent conpari son of blend price versus
basic fornula price prior to January of 20007

A | was probably here. | don't renenber the
guesti on.

Q Ckay. In Exhibit 16, Table 2, you refer to a
“di fference" between Order 32 and Order 30.

A Yes.

Q kay. And that is a -- the sanme nunber's the
di fference between PPDs, is that correct?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And if we were | ooking for an
equi val ent anmount of noney to nmake the conparison, if
we | ook prior to January of 2000, wouldn't it be
correct that that nunber would be the difference
between the blend price for a nonth and the basic

formula price novenent for the nonth?

A I think so.

Q Par don?

A I think so.

Q Have you in preparation for this hearing
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| ooked at what that difference was?

A No, | have not. | thought it was irrel evant,
trying to reassenble data, when there were so many
Orders that made up the current Order 32.

Q When you refer to being increasingly
dependent upon Upper Mdwest m Ik for supplenental mlk
supplies, would that include Upper Mdwest mlk that is
pooled in Order 30 as well as Order 327

A We did buy sonme Order 30 ml k. Actually, I
think "'mwong on that. 1|'d have to doubl e-check
that. M1k mght have been pooled on Oder 1, but we
did buy sonme mlk from soneone in August and Sept enber
t hat was not pool ed on Order 32.

Q Ckay. If Proposals 1 through 5 have the
ef fect of disassociating sone mlk from Order 32, would
-- would you still rely to the sane extent on mlk from
the Upper M dwest for your supplenental supplies of
m | k?

A In all I|ikelihood.

Q Is the Upper M dwest the place to which you

| ooked for supplenental m |k supplies before Order

Ref or nf?
A Yes.
Q That woul d i nclude Wsconsin as well as

M nnesota m | k?
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A Yes.

Q And when you received Wsconsin and M nnesota
mlk prior to Oder Reform was that mlk that was
pool ed on Order -- either Chicago Order or the Upper
M dwest Order?

A I think what | alluded to was the way O der
32 and 50 were previously witten, we quite often had
torely on mlk comng off of Order 30 -- off Order 30
or 79 as a back-up supply after we had exhausted our
regul ar Order 32 suppl enental supplies.

Q Order 79 being?

A The ol d I owa O der.

Q | owa.

A And even Order 68.

Q So | understand your prior answer, if
Proposals 1 through 5 are granted, you expect to buy
suppl emental mlk that is pooled on Order 307

A No. |'mhoping to not have to buy
suppl emental mlk that's pooled on Order 30, if
Proposals 1 through 5 are adopt ed.

Q Ckay. And is that because you do not expect
mlk that is now pooled on Order 32 to be disassoci ated
with Order 32?

A Qur hope is that the return to shipping mlk
to the base zone of Order 32 will be decent enough that
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current participants in Order 32 will be willing to
ship there.

Q kay. So, the -- the pool volunme and pool
per cent age, you hope, would renmain the sanme, only nore
mlk will be flowng fromthe market suppliers to
di stributors?

A "' mnot hoping that pool volume wll remain
the same. |'mhoping there will be less mlk on the
Order perform ng at a higher |evel.

Q Ckay. And the mlk -- if there's less mlk
on the Order, sone mlk is going to be disassoci at ed.
What m | k do you see disassociating fromthe Order, if
Proposals 1 through 5 are adopted?

A I woul d assune sone mlk | ocated outside the
Order area that's currently being pooled as part of the
for-fee unit or perhaps mlk that is |ocated outside
the Marketing Area as being qualified within-area
shipments. By mlk |ocated in the Marketing Area,
delivering to a pool ed plant and using those shipnents
to qualify outside the nmarket area supplies.

Q Ckay. Wien you have received suppl enent al
mlk during the past, say, four years, that's two years
of Order Reform two years prior to Order Reform --

A Ckay.

Q -- do you know whet her that m |k has cone at
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least in part fromfarnms |ocated outside of the
geographi c area designated by M. Hollon in support of

Proposal 77?

A Sone of it woul d have.

Q kay.

A Sone of it would have conme fromthe old O der
68 area.

Q Ckay. You -- | don't see here testinony

concerning Proposal 7. Do you expect to provide
testinmony for or against Proposal 77

A Just noral support. Elvin Hollon did an
adequate job of --

Q So, other than -- other than your statenent

just now, that's the extent of your noral support?

A Yes.

Q You refer in your testinony to -- to your
various -- various plants. You have sone stand-al one
Class -- at |least one stand-alone Class 2 plant that is

pooled in the unit with distributing plants --

A Yes.

Q -- at the nonent? And you have anot her
stand-al one Cass 2 plant that is not pooled within a
unit?

A W have several stand-alone Cass 2 plants
that are not part of the unit.
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Q That are not part of the unit, and they --
they aren't pool ed because, as non-pooled mlk, the
Class 2 return is greater than you could get fromthe
PPD, is that correct?
A I think so, if | understand your question.
Q You woul d have to pay into the pool if you

pool ed them - -

A Yes.

Q -- that not to, right?

A Yes.

Q kay. If -- if the Proposals 1 through 5 are

adopted, and the PPD, Producer Price Differential, goes
up as you hope, do you expect that these additiona

stand-al one Cass 2 plants would join the Prairie Farns

unit?

A The only one that perhaps woul d woul d be the
one in Quincy, Illinois.

Q You woul d continue to operate others as

st and- al one non-pooled C ass 2 plants?

A Yes, especially the plants that don't receive
mlk on a regular basis that is cream condensed
powder, itens like that. There would be no reason that
you' d want to bring themin as part of the unit.

Q Ckay. But the mlk or mlk products that
they receive are pooled mlk derived mlk in those
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product s?

A The creamthat they use is all derived from
Prairie Farns' facilities.

Q Pool ed facilities?

A Yes. From --

Q And condensed?

A Pl us the condensed cones fromall over the
pl ace, regul ated and unregul ated, and sone of it is
extra grade, so it wouldn't necessarily be froma
regul at ed source.

Q So, the only --

A The majority of the powder, skim powder, is
comng fromCalifornia. So, obviously it's comng from
out si de of the system

Q The only other plant then that receives mlk
t hat woul d be consi dered producer m |k and producer -

delivered mlk is Quincy?

A Quincy, and then we do use sone mlk at the
Decatur, Illinois, plant, but not enough to be of any
conseqguence.

Q Then going back to nmy -- ny question, if the
PPD -- if -- if instead of having to pay into the poo
as a result of -- of including Quincy in your unit, you
could draw fromthe pool, you would include it?

A Yes.
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Q Coul d you tell me what the Class 1
Utilization is of your conbined Cass 2 and Class 2
facilities that --

A Qur conbined Class 1 and Class 2 facilities?
Cass 1 and Class 2 facilities, yes.
Between 70 and 75 percent O ass 1.
kay. And does that include Quincy?

Yes.

O » O » O

Ckay. On the next page of your testinony, |
think it's 4 or 5, you refer to a purpose of the O der

of serving Cass 1 and Cass 2 handlers. Do you --

it'"s on the fourth -- the fourth page of text.
A Ckay.
Q Do you have a source of authority or -- or

policy for your statenent that a purpose of assist the
Order systemis to serve Class 2 handl ers?

A | think it would be simlar to the wtness
that was up here today. It's -- to ne, | don't know
how you can di stingui sh between a fluid operator who
has a Cass 2 wing on his plant and an operator who
operates both Cass 1 and Cass 2 plants in the sane
geogr aphi c area.

Q Are there stand-alone Cass 2 plants that are
operated by folks who do not have Class 1 facilities in
this market or available to this market?
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A In our area?

Q Yeah.

A Yes.

Q Is it not the case that having both kinds of

plants as a Cass 2 handler, you have an advantage over
t hose fol ks because shipnents, for exanple, to your
stand-al one Class 2 facility count and shipnents to
sonebody el se's stand-alone Cass 2 facility do not
count ?

A I don't know how you coul d categorize that as
an advant age because the unit is performng at the
standards laid out in the Order. So, you know, whether
-- whether our Cass 2 plant is in the unit or out of
the unit, | nmean, by it being in the unit, we are

perform ng at the sane | evel as a stand-al one plant.

Q Do any of the plants in your unit receive
regul ar supplies -- strike that. Let nme ask this
first.

Do you have your own farns --
A Yes.
Q -- that supply your plants and DFA supplies

your plants?

A And your clients as well.

Q And a lot of folks supply your plants. Is it
all of your -- is all of the Prairie Farmm |k
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delivered to your plants reported as 9(c)-delivered

mlk?
A In Cctober, it was.
Q In Cctober, it was. Prior nonths?
A "Il put it this way. Everything that is

pooled is reported as 9(c) mlk.
Q Ckay. So, you are not -- you do not and have
not sent reports as a distributing plant operator
recei ving producer mlk and having diversions as a
pl ant operator in your plant?
A Not since January 1 of 2000.

Q Prior to January 1, do you know?

A Prior to that, we did attach sone diversions
to pooled plants. It's just a matter of accounting.
Q In your role as a 9(c) handl er supplying

pl ants, do you divert mlk to plants |located in
W sconsin and M nnesota, outside of the Marketing Area?

A On occasion. Rarely, but on occasion.

Q Ckay. Are these -- do they tend to be plants
that supply you with supplenmental mlk when you need
it?

A No. Usually those guys won't buy ny surplus
fromnme. They -- you know, when we need mlk, their
prices are exorbitantly high, and when we have mlk to
get rid of, they don't want it. So, --
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MR. VETNE: | w thdraw the question and nove
to strike the answer.
Thank you. That's all.
JUDGE BAKER: Are there any other questions
for M. Lee? Yes?
CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MR GOLDEN
Q M. Lee, --
A Wul d you identify yourself, please?
Q Ckay. |I'msorry. Wat was the question?
Just one qui ck question.
In the Fall of --
JUDGE BAKER Woul d you? [|'msorry.
MR. GOLDEN: Neal Col den.
JUDGE BAKER: Woul d you please identify
yourself for the record?
MR, GOLDEN: Ckay. Neal Golden with
Associ ated M|k Producers.
JUDGE BAKER: Thank you.
BY MR GOLDEN
Q One quick question. In the Fall of 2000, the
bl end di fference between Order 30 and 32 per your
Exhi bits 16, Table 2, substantially higher than they
were in the Fall of -- so far under the statistics in
20017
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A That is correct.

Q And at that time, in the Fall of 2000, the
AVP as a supplier to Prairie Farnms was shi pping X
amount of mlk at Order value and regular prem um
val ues?

A Yes.

Q kay. Now, that blend price has dropped
substantially, like you' ve indicated on your table, 50
to 75 cents a hundredwei ght on average. Have we
shi pped you any less mlk -- have we shipped you | ess
mlk in the Fall of 2001 than we did in 2000 at Order
val ues at regular prem uns?

A No.

Q Have we shipped you nore ml k at regul ar
prem um Order values in the Fall of 2001 than 20007

A Slightly.

Q Yes, thank you.

So, the fact that blend prices have cone down
75 cents or so, and we've shipped you nore mlk, does

that fly in the face of your request to get blend

prices up so that people will ship you nore m |l k?

A Are you saying that the |ower the price goes,
the nore you'll sell us?

Q For sone reason, for sone reason, |'ve done

that, and now |I've got to go back and figure out why.
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Al'l right. Seriously, do the premum-- do
the -- do the blend prices have to get up -- back up to
a dollar spread between 30 and 32; if that happens, are
you going to -- are you saying that's going to attract
nore m |l k?

A I"msaying | think you deserve a better
return than you're currently getting for supplying us,
and I'd like to see that better return cone in the form
of a higher uniformprice.

Q In the Fall nonths, we ship suppl enental
m |k, as you were describing so eloquently. You're
asking to get percentages -- percentage shipping
percent ages increased so that you can get nore mlk
certain tinmes of the year for Order prices.

Wul d you take that m |k year-round? Wuld
you take that anount of m Ik year-round if this
proposal was adopted?

A Be nore specific, if you would, please.

Q Vll, if you re going to -- if the Order is
going to ask us to ship 25 percent the way these
proposals are laid out as roughly double what the
current shipping requirenent is, and if we ship, and so
| assune you're -- what you're trying to do, aml
right, that if -- you would like us to ship this
suppl enental mlk in the Fall that you need at O der
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val ue, and through these hi gher shipping requirenents,
you're attenpting to get that?

A At the Order values, plus |ocal announced
over Order prem uns.

Q Right. So, through the higher shipping
requirenents, --

A Local negoti ated over Order prem uns.

Q And you're trying -- part -- part of what
you're trying to do through the higher shipping

requirenents is to -- is to do exactly that?
A Yes.
Q Ckay. So, -- so, that would be a Fall issue

to you. Wuld you be willing to take that m |k year-
round?

A Vell, | think we've said that by saying we
woul d like to see performance required all 12 nonths of
the year.

Q But you don't need that m |k year-round
because you aren't calling for supplenental shipnents
in May and June. Were would that m |k go?

A You're judging that based on past history.
The current --

Q That's all | have.

A The current situation and the likely future
situation is that non-Prairie Farms nmenber mlk in
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Southern Illinois is not going to be available to us at
any of our plants. So, our year-round suppl enental
needs are going to increase, and as |'ve said early,
the trend is that mlk production in the areas where we
currently procure mlk is going down. Qur business is
stable or slightly growing. So, | see us needing nore
mlk, not |less mlKk.

Q I's not your problemw th the blend prices --
aml| right that your problemisn't as -- as nuch
associated wwth the Oder 30 and 32 spread as it is
with the Order 32 and Order 5 spread?

A It's a two-fold problem On the one hand,
producers |l ocated in Southern Illinois and Sout heastern
M ssouri no |onger want to ship to their | ocal narkets
because the return is so nuch greater going to Order 5
or Order 7.

At the sane tinme, the return, shipping mlk
fromthe Upper Mdwest into St. Louis, obviously isn't
hi gh enough to attract all of the mlk we currently
need wi thout give-up charges or sone other term
what ever you want to call it.

Q Doesn't raising the blend price in Order 32
transfer that problemfromthe southern part of the
Order 32 market to the northern part of the 32 market?

A So?
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Q What was -- what was -- what was the answer?
So?

A Yeah.

Q Oh, okay.

A I nmean, --

Q well, --

A -- you have -- you have -- the -- let ne

rephrase that.

A problemexists nowin the | ower end of
Oder 32. We may find this is an unsol vabl e probl em
and the only way to solve it is to not have an O der
32. | don't really want to go there, but that's --

Q But you agree that it would transfer the
problem it would transfer that exact problemthat
you' re tal ki ng about between you and the Ozarks to
bet ween | owa and M nnesot a?

A Per haps.

Q M nnesota's going to | ose producers to Order
32 and Wsconsin. Oder 30's going to | ose producers
to Order 32 conpetitively, and that's what we're
tal ki ng about here, is conpetition. AmIl right?

A The way | see it unfolding, it's actually a
better opportunity for you to get a better return on
the mlk you're currently shipping to us, and the
additional mlk you'll be shipping us in the future.

EXECUTI VE COURT REPORTERS, | NC.
(301) 565- 0064



© 00 N o g A~ w N P

N NN N NN P P R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © 0O N o o M W N P O

354

Q kay.

MR. GOLDEN:. That's all | have. Thank you.

JUDGE BAKER: Thank you very nuch.

Are there any other questions for M. Lee?

(No response)

JUDGE BAKER: Let the record reflect that
there are no such questions.

Thank you very much, M. Lee.

THE W TNESS: Thank you.

(Wher eupon, the wi tness was excused.)

JUDGE BAKER M. Beshore, do you have any
ot her witnesses to produce now?

MR, BESHORE: | do not have any ot her
W tnesses at this tine.

Your Honor, there's one other gentleman, a
dairy farnmer nenber of DFA, who we may call tonorrow
but not prepared to call himtoday.

JUDGE BAKER: Very well. M. Beshore,
Exhibits 15 and 16 --

MR. BESHORE: | would Iike to nove their
adm ssi on.

JUDGE BAKER: Are there any questions or
obj ections with respect thereto?

(No response)

JUDGE BAKER: Let the record reflect that
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there are none. Exhibits 15 and 16 are admtted into
evi dence.

(The docunents referred to,
havi ng been previously marked
for identification as Exhibit
Nunbers 15 and 16, were

recei ved in evidence.)

JUDGE BAKER Is there anyone who wants to be
heard at this time? M. Cooper?

MR, COOPER Could we get a little idea of
where we're going tonorrow ti me-w se here?

JUDGE BAKER:  Well, | -- | don't know as nuch
as you do because --

MR, COOPER  Well, 1"l just ask the
partici pants.

JUDGE BAKER: Ch, all right.

MR, COOPER.  Anybody have an idea about what
tonorrow is going to bring in ternms of --

JUDGE BAKER: M. Vetne?

MR. VETNE: | have about five w tnesses, but
they're not anything like M. Hollon, and they're not
going to read anything that's previously been published
in the Federal Register. |'mvery confident we'll be
done t onorrow.

JUDGE BAKER: Well, | don't know about that.
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How | ong do you think your five wtnesses are going to
t ake?

MR VETNE: About 10 to 15 minutes at nost on
-- on direct.

JUDGE BAKER: Very well. Thank you.

M. Beshore, how I ong do you think your
witness is going to take?

MR. BESHORE: The witness that | just alluded
to --

JUDGE BAKER Ri ght.

MR BESHORE: -- is short. M. Hollon does
have a statenment on Proposal 6 that we haven't
addressed at all yet, which is not |ong.

JUDGE BAKER: Very well. Now, who else --

M. English?

MR. ENGLISH | have two w tnesses on al
proposal s.

JUDGE BAKER: How long do you think it'll be?

MR. ENGLISH: One of themis direct will be 15
m nutes, and the other's probably 20 m nutes.

JUDGE BAKER: Very well. Thank you, M.
Engl i sh.

M. Cooper, that's about as good as we can
do.

Yes, sir?
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MR. BANDER: Duane Bander. | have a brief
statenent on Proposal 6

JUDGE BAKER: Wuld you like to give it now?

MR. BANDER: Ch, no. Sorry, sorry. |
apol ogi ze for ny enthusiasm

JUDGE BAKER  Pardon ne?

MR. BANDER: Qur -- | would Iike to wait for
sonme coverage to allow tonight in the formof our
cor porate counsel .

JUDGE BAKER  Very wel |

MR. BANDER:  Thank you

JUDGE BAKER Well, let the record refl ect
that right now, we can hear anyone who w shes to give
testinony, and there is no one here in the room who
W shes to give testinony tonight, and | want the record
to clearly reflect that.

If no one -- if there's nothing else to
present at this tinme, then we will recess until 8:00
t onor r ow nor ni ng.

Thank you all very nuch

(Wher eupon, at 6:20 p.m, the hearing was
adj ourned, to reconvene tonorrow norning, Thursday,

Novenber 14th, 2001, at 8:00 a.m)
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